June 13, 2024

The Manager, The Manager,

Listing Department, Listing Department,

BSE Limited, The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.,
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tower, Exchange Plaza, 5 Floor, Plot C/1, G Block,
Dalal Street, Bandra - Kurla Complex,

Mumbai 400 001. Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051.

Tel No.: 22721233 Tel No.: 2659 8235

Subject: Annual Report along with Notice of 18th Annual General Meeting for the Financial
Year ended 31st March, 2024

Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to the Regulation 50(2) and Regulation 53(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable
provision (if any)s, we are hereby submitting the Annual Report of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023-24 along with Notice of 18th Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held
on Thursday, 20th June, 2024 through VC /OAVM at 04:00 p.m., which is already being sent to
the Members, who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company/ Depositories,
through electronic mode.

Annual Report and the Notice of Annual General Meeting are also uploaded on the Company’s
website at: https:/ /www.iiflhomeloans.com/.

Kindly take the same on your record.

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,
For IIFL Home Finance Limited
AJAY Digitally signed by

AJAY KUMAR

KUMAR JAISWAL
JAISWAL  Sasonttobnt
Ajay Jaiswal
Company Secretary
Email id: secretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com

IIFL Home Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U65993MH2006PLC166475
Corporate Office: Plot No. 98, Udyog Vihar, Phase —IV, Gurgaon — 122015 (Haryana)
Registered Office: IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V Plot No. B-23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area, Wagle Estate, Thane- 400604
Tel: (91-124) 478 0900 e Email: secretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com e Website: iiflhomeloans.com
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IFL Home Finance Limited
CIN No. U65993M112006P1.L166475

Regd. OMce - 1IFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road no. 16V, Plot no. B-23, MIDC Thane Industrial Area, Wagle Estate, Thane - 400604
Corporate Office- Plot No.98, Udyog Viliar, Phase - IV, Gurgaon - 122015
Tel: (91-22) 2580 6654 Fax: (91-22) 3929 4000

Emall: secretarlalhfe@lilhomecloans.con Web Site- http://www.illThomeloans.com

SHORTER NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Eightcenth Annual General Meeting (Y AGM") of the members of [[FL Home
Finance Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Thursday, 20t day of June, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. through
Video Conference (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). The venue of the AGM shall be deemed
to be the Registered Office of the Company. The following business will be transacted at the AGM:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. (a) To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2024, Auditors Report thereon together with the Report of the
Board of Directors. )

{b) To consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 and Auditors Report thereon.

2. To confirm interim Equity dividend declared during Financial Year 2023-24.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT an interim dividend at the rate of Rs. 55 per share to the equity shareholder as
recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024, be and is

hereby approved and confirmed as interim dividend and paid by the Company to its members.”

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Nirmal Jain, Director (DIN:00010535), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Nirmal Jain, Director (DIN: 00010535), who retires by rotation from the Board of
Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Company, and being eligible offers himself for reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as the
Director of the Company.”

4. To appoint Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

Appointment of M/s Sundaram & Srinivasan, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 0042075) as one
of the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
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ct of wh-om ll.1e Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a
proposing his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as an Non -
e Director of the Company, who shall be lable to retire by rotation.

VED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of

s of the Co.mpany, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
Aecessary, in regard thereto.”

7. To consider & approve the payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors of the Company

for the subsequent five years i.e., FY 2024-25 to FY 2028- 29
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution, as a Special Resolution:

’-’RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 197, 198 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
there-of, the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to all applicable approval(s) as may be
required, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the payment of commission for a period of
subsequent five years commencing from April 01, 2024 to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company as
may be decided by the Board from time to time, provided that the total commission payable to the Non-
Executive Directors per annum shall not exceed one percent of the net profits of the Company for that year
as computed in the manner specified under Section 198 of the Act, with authority to the Board to determine
the manner and proportion in which the amount be distributed among Non-Executive Directors.”

8. To approve existing as well as new material related party transactions with IIFL Finance Limited

(including its Subsidiaries and Associates)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 and all other applicable Regulations, if any, of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to Hime (“the
Listing Regulations”), and all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Rules
made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and basis the approval and
recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of ‘irectors, approval of the Members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (“the Board” which term sh: be deemed to include a Committee
of the Board) to enter into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis in
arrangements/ transactions/contracts (whether individu: transaction or transactions taken together or
series of transactions or otherwise) with IIFL ~ iance Limite (including its Subsidiaries and Associates),
a Related Party as defined in the Listing Regulations and the Act, whether by way of renewal(s) or
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/arrangements/ transactions or otherwise, with respect
to transactions as detailed in the explanatory statement including transactions as may be disclosed in the
notes forming part of the financial statements for the relevant period on an ongoing basis, whether
individually and/or in the aggregate, may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the
Company’s last audited financial statements, without being required to seek any further consent or
approval of the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be necessary, expedient or desirable inclu  ngany negotiation(s)/ renegotiation(s)/ modification(s)/
ratification(s)/ amendment(s) to or termination(s) thereof, of the subsisting arrangement(s)/
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5)/ contract(s) or any future arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ contract(s) and to make or
¢/ monies or to perform all other obligations in terms of such arrangement(s)/
(s)/ contract(s) filing of necessary forms/documents with the appropriate authorities and to
such deeds, documents, agreements, letters, instruments and writings as it may in its sole and

scretion deem necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may
ard thereto;

D FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the B¢ d in connection with any matter referred to or
ed in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified 4 confirmed in all respects.”

To approve existing as well as new material related party transactions with IIFL Samasta
Finance Limited

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 and all other applicable Regulations, if any, of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“the
Listing Regulations”), and all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Rules
made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and basis the approval and
recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, approval of the Members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (“the Board” which term shall be deemed to include a Committee
of the Board) to enter into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis in
arrangements/ transactions/ contracts (whether individual transaction or transactions taken together or
series of transactions or otherwise) with IIFL Samasta Finance Limited, a Related Party as defined in the
Listing Regulations and the Act, whether by way of renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier
contracts/arrangements/ transactions or otherwise, with respect to transactions as detailed in the
explanatory statement including transactions as may be disclosed in the notes forming part of the financial
statements for the relevant period on an ongoing basis, whether individually and/or in the aggregate, may
exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the Company’s last audited financial statements,
without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members and that the Members shall
be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be necessary, expedient or desirable including any negotation(s)/ renegotiati\on{"‘
modification(s)/ ratification(s)/ amendment(s) to or termination(s) thereof, of the subsisting
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ contract(s) or any future arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ contract(s) and
to make or receive/pay monies or to perform : other obligations in terms of such arrangement(s)/
transaction(s)/ contract(s) filing of necessary forms/documents with the appropriate authorities and to
execute all such deeds, documents, agreements, letters, instruments and writings as it may in its sole and
absolute discretion deem necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may
arise in regard thereto;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be an are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.”

10. To approve existing as well as new material related party transactions with IIFL Securities
Limited (including its Subsidiaries and Associates)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolutionm:
4
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'ElD T'HAT pursuant to Regulation 23 and all other applicable Regulations, if any, of the SEBI
bllgah?ns and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“the
egulahom?"), and all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Rules
reunder, (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
forc.e), the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and basis the approval and
1dation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, approval of the Members be and is
. -orded to the Board of Directors ("the Board” which term shall be deemed to include a Cormnmittee
of the Board) to enter into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’'s length basis in
arr.::mgements/ transactions/contracts (whether individual transaction or transactions taken together or
series of transactions or otherwise) with IIFL Securities Limited (including its Subsidiaries and Associates),
a Rela‘ted Party as defined in the Listing Regulations and the Act, whether by way of renewal(s) or
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/ arrangements/ transactions or otherwise, with respect
to transactions as detailed in the explanatory statement including transactions as may be disclosed in the
)..“lOt(.ES forming part of the financial statements for the relevant period on an ongoing basis, whether
individually and/or in the aggregate, may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the
Company’s last audited financial statements, without being required to seek any further consent or
approval of the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this resolution;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be necessary, expedient or desirable including any negotiation(s)/ renegotiation(s)/ modification(s)/
ratification(s)/ amendment(s) to or termination(s) thereof, of the subsisting arrangement(s)/
transaction(s)/ contract(s) or any future arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ contract(s) and to make or
receive/pay monies or to perform all other obligations in terms of such arrangement(s)/
transaction(s)/ contract(s) filing of necessary forms/documents with the appropriate authorities and to
execute all such deeds, documents, agreements, letters, instruments and writings as it may in its sole and
absolute discretion deem necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may
arise in regard thereto;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.”

11. To approve existing as well as new material related party transactions with 360 One WAM
Limited (including its Subsi aries and Associates)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 and all other applicable Regulations, if any, of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“the
Listing Regulations”), and all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} and Rules
made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), the Company’s Policy on Relate Party Transactions and basis the approval and
recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, approval of the Iembers be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (“the Board” which term shall be deemed to include a Committee
of the Board) to enter into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s lengtt ° ° °
arrangements/ transactions/contracts (whether individual transaction or transactions taken t

series of transactions or otherwise) with 360 One WAM Limited (including its Subsidiaries and #

a Related Party as defined in the Listing Regulations and the Act, whether by way of rer
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/arrangements/ transactions or otherwise, w
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ons as detailed in the explanatory statement including transactions as may be disclosed in the
ing part of the financial statements for the relevant period on an ongoing basis, whether
y and/or in the aggregate, may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the

last audited financial statements, without being required to seek any further consent or
f the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
y the authority of this resolution;

O FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of
f the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
essaty, expedient or desirable including any negotiation(s)/ renegotiation(s)/ modification(s)/
)/ amendment(s) to or termination(s) thereof, ‘of the subsisting arrangement(s)/
transaction(s)/ contract(s) or any future arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ contract(s) and to make or
receive/pay monies or to perform all other obligations in terms of such arrangement(s)/
transaction(s)/ contract(s) filing of necessary forms/documents with the appropriate authorities and to
execute all such deeds, documents, agreements, letters, instruments and writings as it may in its sole and
absolute discretion deem necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may

arise in regard thereto;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.”

12. To approve existing as well as new material related party transactions with 5paisa Capital
Limited (including Subsidiaries and Associates)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 and all other applicable Regulations, if any, of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“the
Listing Regulations”), and all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Rules
made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), the Company’s Policy on Related Party ‘ansactions and basis the approval and
recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, approval of the Members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (“the Board” which termn shall be deemed to include a Committee
of the Beard) to enter into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis in
arrangements/transactions/contracts (whether individual transaction or transactions taken together or
series of transactions or otherwise) with 5paisa Capital Limited (including its Subsidiaries and Associates),
a Related Party as defined in the Listing Regulations and the Act, whether by way of renewal(s) or
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/arrangements/ transactions or otherwise, with respect
to transactions as detailed in the ex] natory statement including transactions as may be disclosed in the
notes forming part of the financial statements for the relevant period on an ongoing basis, whether
individually and/or in the aggregate, may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the
Company’s last audited financial statements, without being required to seek any further consent or
approval of the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto

expressly by the authority of this resolution;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all ¢r*~h arte desde mahere and thines ac
may be necessary, expedient or desirable including any negotiatior
ratification(s)/ amendment(s) to or termination(s) thereof,
transaction(s)/ contract(s) or any future arrangement(s)/ trans
receive/pay monjes or to perform all other obligations
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n{s)/ contract(s) filing of necessary forms/documents with the appropriate authorities and to
1 such deeds, documents, agreements, letters, instruments and writings as it may in its sole and

liscretion deem necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may
gard thereto;

2D FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter rEfe"e,fi to or
ited in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.

By Orderofthe™ ~ "7°
For ITFL Home ]

q({] avwal

Company Secre
Membership Nt
Date: June 07, 2024
Place: Gurugram

MOTICE
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itement pursuant to Section 102 of the
s Act, 2013 (“the Act”) relating to the
usiness to be transacted at the Annual
feeting of the Company (“AGM"” or the
) is annexed hereto.

w of the situation arising out of Covid-
vz povar pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (*“MCA") vide its General Circulars
No.14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, No. 17/2020
dated 13th April, 2020, No. 22/2020 dated 15th
June, 2020, No. 33/2020 dated 28th September,
2020, No. 39/2020 dated 31st December, 2020,
No. 10/2021 dated 23rd June, 2021, No. 20/2021
dated 8th December, 2021, No. 03/2022 dated 5th
May, 2022, No. 10/2022 dated 28th December
2022 and No. 09/2023 dated 25 September 2023
("“MCA Circulars”), respectively, permitted the
holding of AGM through VC or OVAM without
the physical presence of Members at a Common
venue. In Compliance with these MCA Circulars
and the relevant provisions of the Act, the AGM
of the Members of the Company is being held
through VC/OVAM. Hence, Members can attend
and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM
only. The deemed venue for the AGM of the
Company shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

(iif) As this AGM is being held pursuant to MCA
Circulars for General Meetings through VC /
OAVM, the facility to appoint proxy wi not be
available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form
an Attendance Slip are not annexed to this
Notice. However, a Body Corporate is entitled to
appoint authorised representative to attend the
AGM through VC / OAVM and participate
thereat and cast their votes.

(iv) Member can participate in the meeting by
clicking on
https://zoom.us/j/94568053301?pwd=85
Vv7ZiTplzxsvnFbDVawk * " BPZN1kWI.1
Meeting ID: 945 6805 33u1

Passcode: 375206

NOTICE

(v) Institutional / Corporate Shareholders are
required to send a scanned copy of (PDF /PG
format) of its Board or governing body
Resolution / Authorization etc. authorizing the
representative to attend the AGM through VC /
OAVM on its behalf to participate and vote
during AGM. The said Resolution /
Authorization shall be sent to Company
Secretary by email on
secretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com,

{(vi) As this AGM will be held through VC /
OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this
Notice,

(vii) Members seeking any information with
regard to the financial statements, accounts or
any other matter to be placed at AGM are
requested to submit their questions in advance to
secretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com. The same
will be replied by the Company suitably.
Alternatively, the Members may also post their
queries directly on the VC/OAVM: platform
during AGM.

(viii) Pursuant to section 107 of the Act,
resolutions set out in this notice shall be put to
vote and decided by show of hands unless poll is
demanded under the provisions of Section 109 of
the Act and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

{ix) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of
contracts or arrangements in which directors are
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the
Act, will be available electronically for inspection
by the Members during the continuance of AGM.

(x) All documents referred in the Notice and
explanatory statement are open for inspection
during working hours on all working days till the
conclusion of AGM. Members may request such
documents by sending their requests at
~~zretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com. ‘

(xii) Member are requested to:



otify the change if any, in address,
mtact details, bank account etc,
amediately to the Company and the
egistrar and Share Transfer Agent
RTA").

luote their Regd. Folio No./ DP ID
lientID Nos. in all their correspondence
tith the Company or its RTA.

(xiii) Attendance of Members/ Authorised
Representatives through VC/OAVM shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

(xiv) The financial statements including
Board's report, Auditor’s report and other
documents required to be attached
therewith (“Annual Report”) and AGM
Notice will be sent only by ema to the

By Order of the Board of Directors,

For ITFL Home
\
iswal

Company Sec
Membership !
Date: June 07,
Place: Gurugram

NOTICE
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members, directors, debenture trustees,
auditors and to all other persons s0 entitlled.
In case any such person requires a physn_:al
copy, the same will be provided on receipt
of such  request  addressed to
secretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com. Members
may note that Notice and Annual Report for
the FY 2022-23 will also be available on the
Company’s website at
https:/ / www.iiflhomeloans.com/ and on
website of stock exchanges ie. BSE Limited
at www.bseindia.com and National Stock
Exchange of India at www.nseindia.com

(xv) The form for consenting to call this
AGM at shorter notice is attached to this

notice. v
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

2 4

mbers at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting and Annual General Meeting held on September

- & June 29, 2023 had approved the appointment of M/s. Suresh Surana & Associates LLP (ICAI

gistration No. 121750/ W100010) & M/s. S.R. Batliboi and Associates LLP (ICAI Firm Registration

MOW/E300004) as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company, in terms of the Circular issued by
nese ve Bank of India vide no. RBI/2021- 22/25 Ref. No. DoS. CD.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated
April 27, 2021 ('RBI Guidelines’), to hold office for a continuous period of three years untl FY 2023-24 and
FY 2025-26 respectively at a remuneration and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses as may be
mutually decided.

As per the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 201_3, and the
Rules framed thereunder, vacancy of the Statutory Auditors could be filled up by the Company In General
Meeting as per recommendations made by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors. However, RBI
Guidelines stipulates that the Company shall appoint Statutory Auditor for a continuous period of three
years, subject to the Statutory Auditor satisfying the eligibility norms as stipulated therein, each year. RBI
being the sectoral regulator, the Company had appointed the statutory auditor as per the RBI guidelines
for a period of 3 years.

Hence, as a prudent practice, it is now proposed to seek appointment of M/s Sundaram & Srinivasan,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 0042075) as joint statutory auditor on account of completion of
term of M/s Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, for a period of three years from FY 2024-25 to FY 2026-27 at
a remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company and reimbursement of out of
pocket expenses as may be incurred by them during the course of the Audit. M/s Sundaram & Srinivasan,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 0042075) have provided their consent and confirmed their
eligibility to continue as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company as laid under the applicable provisions
of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made thereunder and the RBI
Guidelines.

The Board accordingly recommends the ordinary resolutions set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice for
approval of the Members.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item Nos. 4.

Item No. 5

Mr. Ramakrishnan Subramanian (DIN:02192747) was appointed as an Additional Director {(Non-Executive
& Independent) on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (*NRC”), by the
Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ Act”).

Considering present Board size and future growth plans, the Company has been looking forward to
expanding its Board size by addition of senior qualified professionals having specialized knowledge &
experience with diverse background to further enhance the qualitative inputs & deliberations at Board
Level.

10
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. o ; ce. He has
akrishnan Subramanian is a Chartered Accountant, Cost Accountant and Mas'tef's n g"'_’;:;e; Nomtinee
veral leading Banks, Fls in leadership roles since 1990 in India and abroad. He is a Sr Advi

& Strategic consultant with leading Private cquity, Venture Capital, Fintech.

. . ; sport,
erved as a Board mentber of ING Vysya Bank (merged with Kotak) and Shriram CﬂP‘mz'gl 171;7‘1"1 IZZ:, i sid
City Union. Ramky Subramanian has done senior executive roles such as_CEO,'MDf ou ol JHong Kong,
[ head roles in domestic and international banks having worked 3 decades in India, Smg“P”, ; banker with
1, Asean in Citi bank, HDFC Bank, ING, Standard Chartered. He is a yeteran c;mmerrcol:s functions in
mal background in Retail bank, SME, Digital, M&A and has decp donmu? knowledge aSCME LAS, Gold,
“inaneing - Mortgage, LAP, Auto finance, unsecured Persc'n'ml ’& Business loans, Hoara: Gm;f,:mance
Microftnance, CV/CE, Securitization, He has worked in senior capacities 1{12{0101"8 -S'trﬁtegj,f lio M anagement,
cotipled with business & credit risk roles covering Channels, Product, Pricing, Digital, 10;]; %, Non-Banking
Funding, Credit Policy, Credit Underwriting, Collections Management of large Universal Danks,
Financial Companies (“NBFCs") and Fintech.

i f NRC
The NRC carried out his fit and proper assessment and the Board on the recon;mﬁ(flazono?nment
considered him suitable for appointment as an Independent Director and recommended his app
to the members for a period of 5 years w.e.f. April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2029.

In terms of the amended Regulation 17(1C}) of the Listing Regulations, effective from 1st Iam:;lryé 202(12,0?
listed entity has to ensure that the approval of shareholders for appointment of a person on the ﬂ:)a;
Directors has to be taken either at the next general meeting or with%'n a time period Qf three months rczhn;
the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. In order to comply Wlth the af(_)remenhoned- provmlon:,M
approval of the shareholders is being sought by way of special resolution for appointment of Mr.
Ramakrishnan Subramanian as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Ramakrishnan Subramanian that he meets the crite'ria for
being appointed as Independent Director as provided under Section 149(6).of the Act and Regulation 1'6
(1)(b} of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in respect of his
appointment a notice of candidature under section 160 of the Act has also been received.

He is not disqualified/debarred from being appointed a: 1dependent Director in terms of Section 164 of
the Act, or by any order of Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), RBI or any other such authority
and has given his consent to act as Director of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfils the
conditions and criteria of independence for his appointment as prescribed unc  the relevant provisions of

the Act and rules made thereunder, the Listing Regulations, guidelines issued by the RBI, from time to time
and he is independent of the management.

The Board recommends the passing of Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice for approval
by the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the consent of the members is sou

ght for passing the Special Resolution as set out in Item No.
5 of the notice.

Except Mr. Ramakrishnan Subramanian and his relatives,

. . . none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested

in this resolution.

Brief profile and other additional informatio

; n pursuant to Secretarial Standard ; )
issued by the Institute of Company Secretar. g andard on General Meetings (SS-2)

ies of India is furnished as annexure to the Notice,
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san .Sridhar (DIN:00004272) was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive & Non-
nt Director) on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC”), by
of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

1’s tenure as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company was expired on March 31,
sidering that Mr, Sridhar's ongoing participation, leadership and mentorship would be
+in guiding the Company to achieve its strategic objectives and navigating the next phase of
is proposed to appoint Mr. S. Sridhar as an Additional Director in the Capacity of Non-Executive

Mr. . Sridhar is an eminent personality in the banking and finance industry and has held several senior positions in
retail, corporate and export/import banking in his career of almost four decades. He was the Chairman of NHB and
Central Bank of India, where, he was responsible for a number of new initiatives such as the NHB Residex, R_ural
Housing Fund, Reverse Morigage for senior citizens. Prior to this, he was with Export Import Bank of India as

Executive Director as well as State Bank of India.

The NRC carried out his fit and proper assessment and the Board on the recommendation of NRC
considered him suitable for appointment as Non - Executive Non- Independent Director.

In terms of the amended Regulation 17(1C) of the Listing Regulations, effective from 1st January, 2022, a
listed entity has to ensure that the approval of shareholders for appointment of a person on the Board of
Directors has to be taken either at the next general meeting or within a time period of three months from
the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. In order to comply with the aforementioned provisions, the
approval of the shareholders is being sought by way of ordinary resolution for appointment of Mr. S.

Sridhar as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company.

He is not disqualified/debarred from being appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Act, or by any order of Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), RBI or
any other such authority and has given his consent to act as Director of the Company and in respect of his

appointment a notice of candidature under section 160 of the Act has also been received.

The Board recommends the passing of Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 6 of this Notice for
approval by the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the consent of the members is sought for passing the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item
No. 6 of the notice.

Except Mr. S. Sridhar and his relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives
are in any way concerned or interested in this resolution,

eral Meetings (58-2)

Brief profile and other additional information pursuant to Secretarial Standard on Gen
Notice.

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is furnished as annexure to the
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No.7

2 Annual Get?er.al Meeting of the Company held on August 02, 2019, the Members had approved the
ent of commission to Non-Executive Directors of the Company not exceeding one percent per annum
net profits of the Company computed in the manner prescribed in Section 198 of the Companies Act,
in respect of profits of each year commencing from 1st day of April and ending on 31st day of March
year for the period of 5 years upto April 01, 2024.

»roposed to continue with the payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors of the Company

1e subsequent period of 5 years. Accordingly, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 06,
2Uz8, had approved the payment of commission to Non-Executive Directors for the subsequent period of 5
years commencing from April 01, 2024 upto April 01, 2029 subject to the approval of the Shareholders of
the Company. Accordingly, in terms of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Non-Executive
Directors be paid, for each of the five subsequent financial years commencing from April 1, 2024,
remuneration not exceeding one percent per annum of the net profits of the Company computed in

accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The manner and the proportion in which the amount will be distributed amongst all or some of the
Directors shall be decided by the Board.

The Board recommends the passing of Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 7 of this notice for the

approval of the members.

All the Directors of the Company except the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives, are concerned or inferested in the Resclution at Item No. 7 of the Notice to the extent of the

remuneration that may be received by each of them.

Item No. 8,9,10, 11 and 12

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended (“Listing Regulations”) approval of Members by means of an ordinary resolution for all
material related party transactions, including transactions that are in the ordinary course of business of the

concerned company shall be required.

A transaction with a related party shall be considered material under the Listing Regulations, if the
transaction(s) in a contract to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions
during a financial year, exceeds Rs. 1,000 Crore or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company
as per the last audited financial statements whichever is lower, or any other materiality threshold

prescribed by any other applicable law.

The annual consolidated turnover of the Company for FY 2023-24 is Rs. 3,316.76 Crore. Accordingly, any

transaction(s) by the Company with its related party exceeding Rs. 331.68 Crore (10% of the Company’s
annual consolidated turnover) shall be considered as material transaction and hence, the prior approval of
the Members wi  be required for the same. A transaction pertaining to payments made to a related party
with respect to brand usage or royalty shall be consi red material if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceed five percent of
the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of

the Company. :
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ir relatives, none of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel/their
or interested, financially or otherwise in the Ordinary Resolution set

A m———— gy

Place: Gurug;'am
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CONSENT BY MEMBER FOR SHORTER NOTICE
[pursuant to provisions of Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013]

To

The Board of Directors

IIFL Home Finance Limited

IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road no. 16V,
Plot no. B-23, MIDC Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane — 400604

Dear Sir{s)/Madam,

Sub: Consent to hold the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting on Shorter Notice.

The undersigned {Designation) of {Name of
Member), the Member of IIFL Home Finance Limited (IIHFL), holding
( ' equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, pursuant to Section 101 of

the Companies Act, 2013, we hereby give consent to hold Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of lIHFL on
Thursday, June 20, 2024 at 04:00 p.m. at IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, Plot No., B-23,
MIDC, Thane Industrial Area, Wagle Estate, Thane- 400604 on shorter notice though Video Conference
(“VC")/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM")..

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
For

Signature
Name:
Designation:

Date:
Place:
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IIFL Home Finance Limited
Directors’ Report - FY 2023-24
Dear Members,

It is our immense pleasure to present the Eighteenth (18") Annual Report of your Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024. It covers the business performance and operations of the
Company, along with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2024.

1) Financial Summary

The Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 is presented
below:

Consolidated and Standalone Financial Results

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review is summarised below:

(Xin Crore)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Gross Total Income 3316.76 2,709.32 3,293.59 2,702.47
Less: Expenditure 2002.41 1,708.80 1965.38 1,679.58
Profit before Share of Profit of 1314.35 1000.52 1328.21 1,022.89
Associate and Tax
Profit from Associate - 3.76 - -
Profit before Tax 1314.35 1004.28 1,328.21 1022.89
Less: Taxation 297.80 236.16 301.37 232.57
Net Profit after Tax 1016.55 768.12 1,026.84 790.32

- The Standalone and Consolidated Financial statements for the year under review have been
prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

- The financial results and revenue from operations, including major developments have been
discussed in detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached to this Annual
Report.

- The standalone and the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) applicable to the Company.

Financial Performance

Consolidated

On a consolidated basis, your Company has recorded an excellent performance with a turnover
of X 3316.76 Crores during FY24 as against X 2709.32 Crores in the previous year and a profit
after tax of X 1016.55 Crores as against X 768.12 Crores in the previous year.



2)

3)

Standalone

On a standalone basis, your Company recorded an exceptional performance with a turnover of X
3,293.59 Crores during FY24 as against X 2702.47 Crores in the previous year and a profit after
tax of X 1026.84 Crores as against X790.32 Crores in the previous year.

The Company’s strong liquidity position provides significant headroom for growth. The Company
has a CRAR of 42.84% as on March 31, 2024 as compared to 47.28% as on March 31, 2023.

Change in the Nature of Business

During the year, there has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
Review of Business

Operational Highlights in brief

- The aggregate Assets under Management (AUM) of the Company stood at X 35,498.55 Crores
as on March 31, 2024. This represents a year on year (YoY) growth of 25% as compared to
March 31, 2023.

- The Company disbursed X 12,861 Crores during FY 24, an increase of 28% over FY 2022-23.
- The company has 396 branches across India.

- The Company has reported 32% increase in its profitability at a consolidated level with a net
profit of X 1,016.55 Crores for the year ended March 31, 2024 as compared to a net profit of
INR 768.12 Crores for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Total Income has increased from X 2,709.32 Crores for the year ended March 31, 2023 to X 3,316.76
Crores for the year ended March 31, 2024 .

At the segment level, there is 37% growth in the loan book of Home Loans and growth of 11% in the LAP
segment. The total loan book has grown by 29% y-o-y to X 23,289.29 Crores as on March 31, 2024.
During the year, your Company has recorded an excellent performance and intends to keep up the
growth prospects in coming future.

4)

Resource Mobilisation

During the year under review, your Company has continued to diversify the sources of funds
includes public sector bank, private sector bank, National Housing Bank and other financial
institutions. Your Company vide Special Resolution passed on March 31, 2023, under Section 180
(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, authorized the Board of Directors to borrow money upon such
terms and conditions as the Board may think fit in excess of the aggregate of paid up share capital
and free reserves of the Company up to an amount of X 35000 crore (Rupees Thirty Five
Thousand Crores only) and the total amount so borrowed shall remain within the limits.
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6)

Non-Convertible Debentures

During the year under review, the Company issued Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures aggregating to an amount of X 1,140 Crores on private placement basis. The Company
has also raised X 250 Crores by way of issuance of Commercial paper. Further, the Company
redeemed /bought Back Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to X 76.90 Crores, issued on
private placement basis.

The Company has been regular in making payments of principal and interest on NCDs. During the
year under review, the Non-Convertible Debentures were paid / redeemed by the Company on or
before their respective due dates. As of March 31, 2024, outstanding Secured Non-Convertible
Debentures stands at X3,250.79 Crores and outstanding Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures
amount to X 937.12 Crores.

Disclosure Under Chapter Xl Guidelines on Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures
(NCDs) of RBI Master Directions:

(i) The total number of NCDs which have not been claimed by the Investors or not paid by
the Company after the date on which the non-convertible debentures became due for
redemption is 6,833 NCDs.

(ii) The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond
the date referred aforesaid X 76, 61,763.

Term Loans and Other Borrowings

During the year under review, the Company availed Rs. X 2,500 Crores of refinance facilities from
NHB under various refinance schemes of NHB. Further, the Company raised funds by way of
borrowing from term loans X 2,893.10 Crores. As on March 31, 2024, total outstanding
borrowings excluding NCDs stood at ¥13,292.99 Crores.

Assignment of Loans

During the year under review, the Company assigned the receivables of housing loan portfolio
aggregating to X1,775.94 Crores and Non-housing loan portfolio aggregating to X 460.73 Crores.
The Company was appointed as a servicer by the Assignee/Trustee to collect and receive payment
of the receivables from the Assigned Assets.

Dividend

During the year under review, considering the performance of the Company and the liquidity
buffer available with the Company, your Directors recommended an Interim Dividend of X 55 per
equity share of face value of X 10 each. The dividend was paid to those shareholders whose
names were registered in the Register of Members as on January 19, 2024 being the record date.
Total outgo towards payment of Dividend was X 144,89,55,090. Your Directors recommend that
the said Interim Dividend be considered as final.

Transfer to Reserves
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Pursuant to Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to
transfer at least 20% of its net profit every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared.
During the year under review, the Company transferred X 205.40 Crores (20% of Net Profit for the
year) to Special Reserve. As on March 31, 2024, the said Reserves stood at X 766.47 Crores. The
balance in General Reserves stood at Rs. 143.86 Crores.

Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital

As on March 31, 2024, Authorised Share Capital of the Company was X 1,72,00,00,000 (Rupees
One Hundred and Seventy-Two Crore Only) divided into 15,20,00,000 (Fifteen Crore and Twenty
Lakh) Equity Shares of X 10 (Rupees ten only) each and 2,00,00,000 (Two crore) Preference Shares
of X 10 (Rupees Ten only) each.

Paid-up Share Capital

As on March 31, 2024, the paid up share capital of the Company stands at X 26,34,46,380
comprising of 2,63,44,638 equity shares of X10 each.

Public Deposits

The Company is registered with National Housing Bank as a non-deposit taking housing finance
Company. During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/ renewed any public
deposit. The provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013, read with applicable rules
thereto and disclosure requirement under the para 44 of the Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 are not
applicable to the Company.

Employee Stock Option Schemes

Your Company has formulated Employee Stock Option Scheme (“Scheme”), which have been duly
approved by the shareholders of the Company in their meeting held on August 04, 2022. The
Schemes have been devised in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 with amendments or
any enactments thereof, SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021 (to the extent applicable).

The Company has approved to create, issue, offer and allot options exercisable into Equity Shares
not exceeding 5,37,746 (Five Lakh Thirty-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Six Only) options,
with each such option conferring a right upon the Employee (as defined in the Scheme) to apply
for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of such grant.
Further, during the year under review pursuant to the Scheme the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee approved to grant 4,85,126 to 86 employees of the Company, out of which 50% i.e.
2,42,563 ESOPs granted w.e.f. October 01, 2023, rest 50% ESOPs granted w.e.f. April 01, 2024.

In line with the Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the details
related to options granted under the Employee Stock Option Scheme as on March 31, 2024 is
provided in Annexure IIA.
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12)

Investor Education and Protection Fund

The amount due on Non-Convertible Debentures remaining unclaimed for period of seven years
from the date they become due for payment have been transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund in accordance with the Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
(“IEPF Rules”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. During the year, the Company has
transferred X 0.81 Crores to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). The concerned
debenture holders can claim the interest from IEPF.

Internal Financial Control with Reference to Financial Statements

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to Financial Statements and
operations and the same are operating effectively. The Internal Auditors tested the design and
effectiveness of the key controls, and no material weaknesses were observed in their
examination. Further, Statutory Auditors verified the systems & processes and confirmed that the
Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting are adequate and such controls are
operating effectively as of March 31, 2024.

Vigil Mechanism

In Compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Rules made thereunder, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established
the necessary vigil mechanism for employees to report genuine concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics
policy. The Policy also provides for adequate safeguard against victimisation of Whistle Blower
who avails of such mechanism and also provides for the access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. None of the Whistle Blowers have been denied access to the Audit Committee.
Whistle Blower  Policy is uploaded on website of the Company at
https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-governance

13) Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has strong
‘Policy for Prevention Of Sexual Harassment (POSH)’ at workplace to prohibit, prevent or deter
any acts of sexual harassment at workplace and to provide a procedure for redressal of
complaints pertaining to such harassment. In order to sensitise the employees about the policy,
the Company has placed the policy on intranet portal of the Company for ease of access and
unified dissemination of the policy to each and every employee of the Company.

The Company also has an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) constituted in compliance with
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 read with its allied Rules. The committee is responsible for conducting inquiries pertaining
to complaints under the Act. Specialised training for ICC members is conducted every year and all
the employees undergo POSH training module periodically.



14)

15)

16)

During the year, ICC has received ‘NIL’ complaints of sexual harassment from the employees of
the Company. The Company ensures to sensitize its employees on regular basis about prevention
and prohibition of sexual harassment.

Credit Ratings

During the year under review, the Company’s long term debt was rated BWR AA+ (Negative) by
Brickworks Ratings, CRISIL AA/Watch Developing (Placed on 'Rating Watch with Developing
Implications') by CRISIL Rating Limited, [ICRAJAA; Placed on 'Rating Watch with Negative
Implications by ICRA Limited; CARE AA (RWD) Placed on Rating Watch with Negative Implications by
CARE Ratings Limited and IND AA/Rating Watch With Negative Implication by India Ratings and
Research.

Anti-Corruption Mechanism

It is the Company's vision - “To become the most respected company in the financial services
space in India." Accordingly, we have an Anti-Corruption framework which consists of Anti-
Corruption, Gift and Whistle Blower/Vigilance policies applicable to all our employees. The
Company has responsibility to be transparent in all our dealings towards both the stakeholders
and to the communities with which we conduct business.

The Company has a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and other forms of unlawful
activities. Our Anti-Corruption framework ensures that stakeholders do not engage in bribery or
corruption in any form. In all our policies, we explicitly stipulate that neither the Company nor its
representative will pay or procure payment of a bribe or unlawful fee to encourage the
performance of a task or one which is intended or likely to compromise the integrity of another.
The Company does not accept any payment, gift or inducement from a third party which is
intended to compromise our own integrity.

E-learning training on anti-corruption is mandatory for all employees to ensure a clear
understanding of Anti-Corruption Policy and ways to mitigate such risks.

Particular of Holding /  Subsidiary / Associate Companies

IIFL Finance Limited is the Holding Company of your Company and is one of the leading players in
the Indian financial services space. It provides along with its subsidiaries home loans, gold loans,
loans against property, medium and small enterprise financing, micro finance, construction and
real estate finance and capital market finance, catering to both retail and corporate clients.

[IHFL Sales Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. IIHFL Sales Limited offers
professional/ consultancy services that include sourcing, marketing, promoting, publicizing,
advertising, brand building, selling and distributing, among others. It also intends to provide all
kinds of advisory/consultancy services and fees-based intermediation, syndication and liasoning
services. And there is no material change in the nature of business during the year under review.

As per provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015,
(Listing Regulations) IIHFL Sales Limited does not fall under criteria of “material subsidiary”.
Further, the Company has framed a policy on Determination of Material Subsidiary and the same
has been placed on the website of the Company.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, your Company has prepared Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company, which forms part of this Annual Report. Further, a
Statement containing salient features of Financial Statement of the Subsidiary in the prescribed
format AOC-1 pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, is annexed with the Financial Statements. In accordance with Section 136 (1) of the Act, the
Annual Report of your Company containing inter alia, Financial Statements including Consolidated
Financial Statements, has been placed on our website at https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/reports.

Your Company does not have any joint venture and associate company at any time during the
year ended March 31, 2024.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in Company’s Securities

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, the Company has complied and formulated a
Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading Policy, which prohibits trading in securities of
the Company by insiders while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation
to the Company. The objective of this Code is to prevent misuse of any price sensitive information
and to prevent any insider trading activity by way of dealing in securities of the Company by its
Designated Persons.

Mr. Ajay Jaiswal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, is authorized to act
as Compliance Officer under the Code. Further the Company has maintained a Structural Digital
Database (SDD) pursuant to provisions of regulations 3 (5) and (6) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Risk Management

Risk management is an indispensable part of the Company’s strategy. The Company operates in
an environment wherein various types of risks emanate from internal as well as external
sources which, if not managed properly, could lead to disruption in business and impact the
attainment of main objectives of the organisation.

In order to safeguard and facilitate proactive management of risk, the Company has Board
approved Risk Management Policy in place and created a comprehensive “Enterprise Risk
Management Framework (ERM) which is designed to identify, measure, monitor, control and
mitigate various types of risk.

The Company’s Risk Management strategy is governed by the Board with the assistance of Risk
Management Committee that regulates and oversees enterprise-wide risk management, ensuring
it to develop a sustainable business, creating the long term value for our stakeholders.

Risk Management Department identifies, analyse and takes measures to mitigate various risks
faced by the Company. The department is guided by the Company’s Risk Management Committee
and the Senior Management to develop and implement Risk Assurance practices through
organisation. The risk management framework institutionalized in the Company is supported by a
“Three Lines of Defense” approach. Business functions act as the first line of defense, control
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functions like Risk Management and Compliance act as second line of defense and the Internal
Audit acts as the third line.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has nine Directors comprising of one Executive Director, and
eight Non-executive Directors including five Independent Directors and one Nominee Director.

During the year under review, Mr. Kranti Sinha (DIN: 00001643), an Independent Non-Executive
Director resigned, with effect from August 08, 2023 due to some personal reasons. Your Directors
wish to place on record appreciation for the contribution made by Mr. Kranti Sinha during his
tenure as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, appointed Mr. Mathew Joseph (DIN: 01033802) as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from October 31, 2023. The Members in their Extra-ordinary
General Meeting held on January 30, 2024 approved the appointment of Mr. Mathew Joseph
(DIN: 01033802) as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect October
31, 2023, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years. The detailed profile of Mr. Mathew
Joseph is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

Changes in Board Composition after March 31, 2024

- The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, appointed Mr. Ramakrishnan Subramanian (DIN: 02192747) as an Additional
Director in the capacity of Independent Director of the Company with effect from April 01,
2024 for a term of five consecutive years, subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing
General Meeting.

- The two terms of Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar (DIN: 00004272) as an Independent Director of five
consecutive years each had expired on March 31, 2024 (with effect from close of business
hours).

- Considering Mr. Sridhar’s ongoing participation, leadership and mentorship would be
invaluable in guiding the Company to achieve its strategic objectives and navigating to the
next phase of growth, Board upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee appointed Mr. Sridhar as the Chairman and an Additional Director in the capacity
of Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company, effective from April 01, 2024,
subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing of General Meeting.

- The tenure of Mr. A K Purwar (DIN: 00026383), independent Director stands expired on
March 31, 2024 from close of business hours due to completion of tenure of Mr. Purwar as
an Independent Director on the Board of IIFL Finance Limited, Holding Company. Your Board
wish to place on record the invaluable contribution of Mr. Purwar to the growth of the
Company.

Non-Executive Directors

In terms of provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nirmal Jain (DIN:
00010535), Non-Executive Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General



Meeting and, being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment. The Board recommends the
same for shareholders’ approval.

Disclosure under Section 197(14) of the Companies Act 2013

The CEO of the Company has not received any commission from the Company’s subsidiary
company.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, Mr. Gaurav Seth, appointed as Chief Financial officer and Whole-
time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f. October 17, 2023 in place of Mr. Amit
Gupta. Due to internal restructuring within the Company, Mr. Amit Gupta re-designated as Head
Finance of the Company.

Mr. Monu Ratra, Executive Director & CEO, Mr. Ajay Jaiswal, Company Secretary and Mr. Gaurav
Seth, Chief Financial Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

20) Number of Meetings of Board

During the period under review, Six (6) Board meetings were held and the gap between the said
meetings did not exceed the limit of 120 days as prescribed under the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013, and Rules made thereunder, Secretarial Standard-l Issued by Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations. The dates of Board meetings and
details of attendance of each director have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
annexed with Board’s Report as Annexure-V.

21) Committees of the Board

The Company believes that Board Committees are crucial to promote best Corporate Governance
practices within the Company. Accordingly, the Company has constituted various Board
Committees to improve the Board efficiency and to support in decision making. The constitution
of these Committees is in acquiescence of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and relevant
rules made thereunder, SEBI Listing Regulations, applicable regulations of National Housing
Bank/Reserve Bank of India, Articles of Association and other guidelines issued from time to time.
The details of the Board Committees of the Company including number & date of meetings of
Committees held during the FY 2023-24 and attendance there at are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annexed with Board’s Report as Annexure-V.

22) Code of Conduct for directors and Senior Management Personnel
The Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company is in

conformity with the requirements of the Listing Regulations and is placed on the website of the
Company.



All the Directors’ of the Company and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with Company’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management during the year and a
declaration to that effect, signed by the CEO of the Company is enclosed to this Annual Report.

23) Directors & Officers Insurance Policy

The Company has an appropriate Directors and Officers Liability Insurance Policy which provides
indemnity in respect of liabilities incurred as a result of their office. The policy is renewed every
year.

The coverage of the insurance extends to all directors of the Company including the Independent
Directors.

24) Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations. The performance of the board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from
all the directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance of the committees was
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of criteria
such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The above
criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017. In a separate meeting of Independent Directors,
Performance of Non-Independent directors, the Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company
was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to
the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful
and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. At the board meeting that followed the
meeting of the independent directors and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
the performance of the Board, its Committees, and individual directors was also discussed.

In this regard, the Board of Directors considers that the Independent Directors on the Board of
the Company has the required level of expertise, experience and integrity as is required for the
position.

25) Familiarization Program for Independent Director

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25(7) and 62 of the Listing Regulations, the
Company familiarises its independent directors at regular intervals, with their roles and
responsibilities and the business strategies of the Company. Apart from the aforementioned, the
Company also update the independent directors periodically with the recent changes in statutory
provisions applicable on the Company and/or any change /addition in the business operations of
the Company. The details of training and familiarization program conducted during the year are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report and is also available on the website of the
Company.



26) Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide its Notification No. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC. No.
120/03.10.136/2020-21 February 17, 2021 prescribed Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC Directions) for
housing finance Companies. The RBI HFC Directions, inter alia, requires all the Housing Finance
Companies to put in place an Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance and a Policy on “fit
and proper” criteria for Director/s at the time of appointment, and on a continuing basis, with the
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company has Internal Guidelines on
Corporate Governance and the same is placed on the website of the Company.

27) Statement of declaration by Independent Directors

In terms of provisions of sub-section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
25(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has received declarations by Independent
Directors stating and confirming that they are not disqualified to act as Independent Directors on
the Board of the Company and further the Board is also of the opinion that the Independent
Directors fulfil all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them eligible to act
as the Independent Director.

28) Auditors and Reports:

M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004) and M/s.
Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, (Firm Registration Number: 121750W/ W100010) are the Joint
Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of three consecutive years from the
date of their appointments. M/s. Suresh Surana & Associates, had been appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 24™ Extra-ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of the
Company held on September 30, 2021, in conformity with the provisions of RBI Guidelines,
Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (includes amendments thereto) for a term of 3 years. The tenure of M/s. Suresh
Surana & Associates LL,P shall expire from the conclusion of 18™ Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

29) Auditors Report

The Audit Report as issued by M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants and
M/s. Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants), Statutory Auditors of the Company
forming part of the Company’s Financial Statements does not contain any qualifications,
observations or remarks made by the Statutory Auditors in their Report.

30) Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor have not
reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the
Audit Committee under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be
mentioned in this Report.



31) Maintenance of Cost Records:

The Company being a Housing Finance Company is not required to maintain cost records as
prescribed under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32) Regulatory Guidelines

The Company has duly complied with the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 regarding accounting standards,
prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy,
concentration norms and ALM requirements, among others, as in force from time to time.

The Company has been maintaining capital adequacy as prescribed by RBI. The Capital adequacy
was 42.84% (IND-AS) (as against 15% prescribed by the RBI) as on March 31, 2024.

Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs

The Reserve Bank of India in 2021 issued Scale Based Regulation (SBR) a revised regulatory
framework for NBFC’s which is applicable to your Company being an NBFC HFC category falling
under middle layer.

The SBR framework encompasses different facets of regulation of NBFCs covering capital
requirements, governance standards, prudential regulation, etc., the RBI decided to first issue an
integrated regulatory framework for NBFCs under SBR providing a holistic view of the SBR
structure and set of fresh regulations was issued during the financial year 2023-24.

With respect to above, the RBI has issued various circulars/ guidelines in the Financial Year 2021-
22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 which were duly implemented by the Company including formation of
policies, implementing procedures and to review their outcome on periodic basis.

IRDAI Compliance

The Company is registered with IRDAI for carrying on the Insurance Agency Business and has
complied with the applicable requirements under Insurance Regulatory and Development Act,
1999 and IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agent) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time.
Being an insurance intermediary, Company is maintaining all the required information as per IRDAI
regulations.

33) Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the Nomination and Remuneration Policy on
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Objective of the Policy is to
have adequate composition of the Board comprising of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors and appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
(KMPs). The Policy also provides for remuneration to Directors, KMPs and senior management,
involves balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goal. The Remuneration Policy is
placed at website of the Company at https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-governance.



34) Material Changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position of the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the Report.

35) Significant and Material Orders

During the year, there were no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

36) Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee of the Board has formulated and
recommended to the Board a CSR Policy indicating the CSR activities that can be undertaken by
the Company. The Board approved the CSR Policy which is available on the website of the
Company at https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-governance.

The CSR projects of the Company are guided by the same values that guide the business of IIFL
Group Companies. It can be summarised in one acronym: —HELP, which stands for Health,
Education, Livelihood and Poverty Alleviation.

Most of the activities are undertaken through the India Infoline Foundation (generally referred to
as “lIFL Foundation”), a CSR arm of the IIFL Group. During the year under review, your Company
was required to spend 2% of its average net profits (computed as per the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013) of the preceding years on CSR projects. The details of the amount spent
and unspent are provided in the Annual Report on CSR which is enclosed at Annexure I.

37) Particulars of Employee

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure ll(b).

Further, a statement showing the names and other particulars of employees drawing
remuneration as per the limits set out in Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the aforesaid Rules, forms part of
this Report. However, in terms of the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules, the Annual Report and Accounts are being sent to the members and others
entitled thereto, excluding the aforesaid information. If any member is interested in obtaining a
copy thereof, such member may write to the Company Secretary, whereupon a copy will be sent.

38) Secretarial Audit
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial Audit was
conducted by M/s RMG & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries for the FY 2023-24. The



Secretarial Audit does not contain any qualifications and the same is annexed as Annexure Ill to
this Report.

39) Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s RMG & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries Firm to conduct an annual secretarial audit for FY 2023-24 on compliance with all
applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued there under. The Secretarial Auditors
issued the Secretarial Compliance Report (the Report) Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A
of the Listing Regulations read with SEBI circular dated February 08, 2019.

40) Corporate Governance

Pursuant to the requirements of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC Directions) and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI
LODR), Related Party Transaction Policy and a Report of the Directors on Corporate Governance
forms part of this report and are placed at Annexure IV and Annexure V, respectively.

41) Management Discussion and Analysis Report

In accordance with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC Directions), the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report forms part of this report and is provided in this Report at Annexure VI.

42) Annual Return

As required under Section 92(3) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and amended from
time to time, the Annual Return of the Company in prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the
website of the Company, i.e., www.iiflhomeloans.com.

43) Secretarial Standards

The Board confirms that the Company complied with all applicable mandatory Secretarial
Standards for the FY 2023-24.

44) Name & Contact Details of Debenture Trustees

a. Vistra ITCL (India) Limited
(Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Limited)
The Qube, 6th Floor, A Wing, Hasan Pada Road, Mittal Industrial Estate, Marol, Andheri (E),
Mumbai - 400059
E-mail: mumbai@vistra.com

b. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
(Erstwhile GDA Trusteeship Limited)
Unit No- 901, 9th Floor, Tower B, Penninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower
Parel (W), Mumbai — 400013
E-mail: dt.mumbai@ctltrustee.com



45) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of Section
134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation of annual
accounts for the year ended as of March 31, 2024 and states that:

a. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards were
followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures;

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
Profit and Loss of the Company for that period;

c. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively; and

f. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

46) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

As the Company is a Housing Finance Company, the disclosures regarding the particulars of the
loans made, guarantees given and security provided are exempt under the provisions of Section
186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013. As such the particulars of loans and guarantees have not
been provided in this Report.

Your Company has committed to invest upto Rs. 25 crore to acquire 5% stake in the RMBS
Development Company Limited consortium as a founding member.

RMBS Development Company Limited is aimed at revitalizing the residential mortgage-backed
securities (RMBS) market and unlocking its potential for financing affordable housing,

Further other investments made by the Company during the regular course of the business, are
provided under Note No. 8, which forms part of the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended on March 31, 2024

47) Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in the ordinary
course of the business of the Company and were on an arm’s length basis. No contracts/
arrangements have been entered into by the Company with its Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or other persons that may have a potential conflict with the interests of the



Company. Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary
course of business and were on an arm’s length basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company. The transactions with related parties are disclosed in the Notes to Accounts in the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024

Related Party Policy which has been approved by the Board of Directors, the same has been
placed on the website of the Company https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-governance

48) Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Conservation of Energy

The Company is engaged in providing home loans and other financial services and as such, its
operations do not account for substantial energy consumption. However, the Company is taking
all possible measures to conserve energy. Several environment friendly measures were adopted
by the Company such as:

e Gurugram head office was certified with Gold Level LEED Rating under Operations and
Maintenance Category (Version 4.1) from USGBC (U.S Green Building Council)

e Solar panels of 25kWp capacity is installed on the rooftop of the Gurgaon head office
aimed at diminishing energy consumption.

e Education and awareness programs for employees.

e C(Creating environmental awareness by way of distributing the information in electronic
form.

The Management frequently puts circulars on the corporate intranet, IWIN, for the employees
educating them on ways and means to conserve electricity and other natural resources and
ensuring strict compliance with the same.

Technology

The Company remains committed to investing in technology to provide it with a competitive edge
and business scalability. Digitization and analytics through all business

processes have been the Company’s focus, enabling agility, flexibility, and relevance.The major hig
hlights of the current year are as follows:

- The Company has introduced DIY Lead flow with real time validation of KYC, with
decision derived from Jhatpat Business Rule Engine with auto-allocation to the sales team to
take forward. This is LIVE and available on our Website

- The company has shifted to a new HR management system, enabling more efficient HR
process along with attendance self check-in

- The company has focused on the whastapp customer service journey by introduction of
vernacular languages, starting with hindi, and by providing customer requested documents
real time within the whatsapp conversation.

- The company has shifted to a new collections module for legal and call center, empowered by a
business rule engine with automated allocation.



- The company has utilized Robotic Process Automation for different departments to
automate repetitive tasks leading to cost and process optimization.

- The Company has introduced many tools such as Test Sigma for QA Automation, Github Co-
Pilot for Assisted Coding, JIRA for Project Management etc. to enhance the go to market of
technology changes.

As the Company continues to expand its geographic reach and enhance the scale of
operations, it intends to further develop and integrate technology to support growth and
improve service quality.

49) Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

During the year under review, the details of Foreign Exchange earnings & Outgo of the Company
are as under

Foreign exchange earnings: - Nil
Foreign exchange expenditure: - 0.74 Crores
50) Application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

No application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the reporting period.

51) Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof

Not applicable during reporting period.

52) Disclosure pursuant to SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/ DDHS-RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/172 dated
October 19, 2023 read with Chapter XIll of SEBI Operational Circular No. SEBI/
HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and SEBI Circular
SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018.

Company has raised incremental long-term borrowing of X 6,120 crore in the current financial
year (FY2024). Borrowings raised by way of issuance of debt securities during the current year
was X 1,140 crore. There was a short fall of X 390 crore, since the capital market condition was
muted for raising long term debt securities during the year.

53) Annexure forming part of this Report of Directors

The Annexure referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed
are annexed herewith and form a part of this Report of the Directors:

a. Report on Corporate Social Responsibility - Annexure |
b. The details related to options granted under the Employee Stock Option Scheme as on






Annexure |

The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities of IIFL Home Finance Limited for

1.

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

IIFL Home Finance Limited (“the Company” or “lIFL Home Finance”) ensures that its activities extend
beyond business and include initiatives and endeavours for the benefit and development of the
community and society. The Company strongly believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)
initiatives play a crucial role in promoting inclusive growth and equitable development.

The CSR Policy and activities of the Company are guided by the same values that guide its business
of the Company. It can be summarised in one acronym — FIT, which stands for:

e Fairness in all our transactions
e Integrity and Honesty in letter, in spirit and in all our dealings with people
e Transparency in all our dealings

By applying these values to the CSR activities, IIFL Home Finance Limited undertakes initiatives that
create sustainable growth and empower underprivileged sections of the society.

The focus areas prioritised by IIFL Home Finance Limited in its CSR strategy are guided by the
philosophy of HELP (Health, Education & Environment, Livelihood and Poverty Alleviation). The CSR
activities of IIFL Home Finance are executed by India Infoline Foundation (generally referred to as
“IIFL Foundation”), the Implementing Agency. In line with its philosophy, the Company had
undertaken the following activities during FY 2023-24:

e Providing long term intervention, following a holistic approach (nutrition, health, learning, and
community strengthening, in a caring and protecting environment) through our “Chauras”
programme, which has benefited 500 children through 10 centers in Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan,
Gujarat.

e The Building foundational literacy among females from marginalised communities in Rajasthan,
through our ‘Sakhiyon ki Baadi’ programme, which has engaged with 9,000 students across 4
districts through 300 learning centers.

e Promoting a programme Smart Shaal for Academic Learning of Teachers and Students at
Government schools in Sonbhadra & Chitrakoot, Uttar Pradesh. Through this programme we
engage with 2.7 Lakhs students and 5582 teachers from 2791 Government schools

e Growfund — Grant for building the capacity of 6 Non-Governmental Organisations (NGOs) from
Tamil Nadu, Jharkhand, Karnataka and Maharashtra.

e Development of an in-patient ward at Bhaktivedanta Hospital, Mira Road, Thane, Maharashtra.,
dedicated to offer treatment at a low cost for patients. The facility offers Cancer radiation
therapy, comprehensive eye care and other multi-specialty services.



Creating awareness on the adoption of sustainable construction practices and the adoption of
sustainable affordable housing through “Kutumb” - a knowledge ecosystem that promotes
green affordable building in India. One Kutumb event was organised in New Delhi with 75+
participants. ‘Humara Kutumb’, an extension of Kutumb was launched which focused on
providing awareness on sustainable construction techniques to BLC homeowners as well as
assisting them in green certification processes. 28 homeowners have initiated their process for
green certification.

Partnering with the Government of Rajasthan we have provided Flat interactive panels (Smart
TVs) to 75 government schools in Udaipur and Baran districts of Rajasthan, to promote learning
over digital means. The project is approved under the guidance of Honorable Minister of School
Education, Rajasthan.

Support to 10 community-based learning centers — Seva Kutir, for holistic development of
children from marginalized scheduled tribe communities in Madhya Pradesh. Children are
offered special coaching to excel in academics, along with nutritious meals twice a day and
engagement in extra-curricular activities.

Partnered with Gyan Shaala to improve the literacy outcome of the girls enrolled in the Sakhiyon
ki Baadi programme in Rajasthan, through development of structured syllabus and curriculum
followed with training of the teachers.

Creating awareness on solid and liquid waste management through the “DISHA” programme,
which has engaged more than 3300+ people in Noida, Ghaziabad, Gurgaon & New Delhi.

The Building foundational literacy among children of migrant workers and providing trainings to
the construction workers, through our ‘Pankh’ programme, which has enrolled 200+ children.

Contribution of 50 electric wheelchairs to Indian veterans.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
SI. | Name of Director Designation/ | Number of Meetings of | Number of Meetings of
No. Nature of CSR Committee entitled | CSR Committee attended
Directorship to attend during the year
1. Ms. Mohua Mukherjee Chairperson 3 3
2. Mr. R Venkataraman Member 3 2
3. Mr. Monu Ratra Member 3 3
4 Mr. Kranti Sinha* Member 1 1

3.

*Note- Resigned w.e.f. August 08, 2023.

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

https://www.iifhomeloans.com/corporate-governance

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

Not Applicable




Sl. | Particulars Amount (in X)

No.

a. Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 868,50,82,248
135

b. Two percent of average net profit of the Ccompany as per sub-section | 17,37,01,645
(5) of section 135

C. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of NIL
the previous financial years
d. Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any Nil
Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] 17,40,00,000/- ( Rounded off)

a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project):
11, 76,60,093 - FY 23-24
3,93,76,480 - from unspent CSR Account of FY 22-23

b. Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Not Applicable
c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: 15, 70,36,573

e. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in )
Total Amount Spent

for the Financial Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under]
Year. Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule Vil as per second proviso to section 135(5).
(in%) section 135(6).
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Amount. Date of transfer.
Fund
11,76,60,093 - FY 23- | ¢ 63 39 907 26.04.20224 _ , _
24 Not Applicable Not Applicable | Not Applicable
3,93,76,480 - FY 22-
23(unspent account)

f. Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Nil

Sl. No. | Particular Amount (in X)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section | Nil

(5) of section 135
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of | Nil

the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil




6. Details of unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sl. Preceding | Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Deficiency,
No. | Financial transferred Amount in | Spent in the | transferred to a | remaining | ifany
Year(s) to Unspent | Unspent Financial Fund as specified | to be spent
CSR Account | CSR Year (in Rs) under Schedule VI | in
under sub- | Account as per second | succeeding
section (6) of | under sub- proviso to sub- | Financial
section 135 | section (6) section (5) of | Years (in X)
(inX) of section section 135, if any
135 (in X)
Amount | Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
1 FY 2022-23 | 5,20,31,490/- | 1,26,55,010 | 3,93,76,480/- NIL - NIL -
2 FY 2021-22 | 3,03,00,000/- Nil - - - - -
3 | Fr2020-21 - - - - - - -
7. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired — N/A
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
Sl. | Short particulars of | Pincode | Date of | Amount of | Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
No. | the property or | of the | creation CSR the registered owner
asset(s) property amount
[including complete | or spent
address and location | asset(s)
of the property]
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable
1 - - - - - - -
8. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as

per sub-section (5) of section 135:

The unspent amount was pertaining to the ongoing projects and the same would be required and
utilised over the period of three years as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013

Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee:

Through this report, IIFL Home Finance Limited seeks to communicate its commitment to CSR to the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy are in compliance
with the CSR objectives and policies as laid down in this Report. The Board of the Company and the CSR







Annexure |l (a)

The details related to options granted under the Employee Stock Option Scheme as on March 31, 2024 is
provided below:

to:-

S. Particulars Disclosure
No.
1. options granted 2,42,563 (Granted till March 31, 2024)
2. options vested 0
3. options exercised 0
4, the total number of shares arising as a |0
result of exercise of option
5. options lapsed 3,935
6. the exercise price 1,338
7. variation of terms of options Time based and Performance based
8. money realized by exercise of options 0
9. total number of options in force 2,38,628
10. | employee wise details of options granted

(i) key managerial personnel;

1) Mr. Monu Ratra (CEO & Whole-time Director)-
134411

2) Mr. Gaurav Seth (Chief Financial Officer) -
13441

3) Mr. Ajay Jaiswal (Company Secretary) — 5630

(i) any other employee who receives a
grant of options in any one year of option
amounting to five percent or more of
options granted during that year.

0

(iii) identified employees who were granted
option, during any one year, equal to or
exceeding one percent of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the company at the time of
grant;




Annexure Il (b)

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other
details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sr. No | Requirements Disclosure
1 The ratio of the remuneration of each | Executive Chairman NIL
Sr'l:e%”e:;’ ft;‘reﬂ:‘“eef‘?'r']jr‘];z’r‘”er;fram“ of the I ecutive Director & CEO | 86.43%
i i .
ploy y Non- Executive Director
Mr. S. Sridhar 7.14%"
Mr. Kranti Sinha* 5.71%"
Mr. Nirmal Jain NIL
Mr. R. Venkataraman NIL
Mr. Kabir Mathur Nil
Ms. Mohua Mukherjee 5.71%"
Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar Nil
Mr. Venkataramanan 5.71%
Anantharaman
Mr. Mathew Jospeh 5.71%
2 The percentage increase in remuneration of | Executive Chairman NIL
each director, CFO, CEO and CS in the Executive Director & CEO 10%
financial year. Non- Executive Director
Mr. S. Sridhar NIL
Mr. Kranti Sinha NIL
Mr. Nirmal Jain NIL
Mr. R. Venkataraman NIL
Ms. Mohua Mukherjee# NIL
Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar NIL
Mr. Venkataramanan NIL
Anantharaman*
Mr. Kabir Mathur** Nil
KMPs other than Directors
Chief Financial Officer 8%
Company Secretary 13%
3 The percentage increase in the median | The median remuneration of the employees in

remuneration of employees in the financial
year

the financial year increased by 8%. The
calculation of the % increase in median
remuneration is done based on comparable
employees. Due to this, the employees who
were not eligible for any increment have been
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Company Secretaries

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
No. 9 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

IIFL Home Finance Limited

(CIN: U65993MH2006PLC166475)

IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V,
Plot No. B-23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane, Maharashtra - 400604

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable
statutory provisions and in adherence to good corporate practices by IIFL
Home Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), having its
Registered Office at IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, Plot No. B -
23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area, Wagle Estate Thane, Maharashtra — 400 604
and Corporate Office at Plot No. 98, Udyog Vihar, Phase IV, Gurgaon, Haryana
-122 015. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification, of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering financial
year ended March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the Audit Period, according

to the provisions of:

[. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

207 & 201, Suchet Chambers, 1224/5, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi -110005
Phone: 9212221110, 011-4504 2509; www.rmgcs.com, E-Mail: info@rmgcs.com
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II.

III.

IV.

V.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of compliances relating to Foreign Direct
Investment. However, during the period under review, there were no
transactions for Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) :-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; [Not applicable since the
shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange
during the period under review|;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015.

() Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable since
the shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange
during the period under review|;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; [The Company has
introduced Employee Stock Option Plan. However, being a Debt
listed Company, the regulations are not applicable since the
shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange];

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies
Act and dealing with client to the extent of the securities issued,;

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; [Not applicable since the shares of the
Company are not listed on any stock exchange during the period
under review|;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable since the shares of the
Company are not listed on any stock exchange during the period
under review|.
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VI. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company
belongs, as identified by the management, that is to say:

1. The National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

2. Non-Banking Financial Company-Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021.

3. Guidelines on ‘Know Your Customer’ and ‘Anti Money Laundering
Measures’ for HFCs.

4. The IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015.

For the compliances of Labour Laws & other General Laws, our examination
and reporting is based on the documents, records and files as produced and
shown to us and the information and explanations as provided to us, by the
officers and management of the Company and to the best of our judgment and
understanding of the applicability of the different enactments upon the
Company, in our opinion there are adequate systems and processes exist in the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable, Labour Laws &
other General Laws.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been
subject to review by the Statutory Auditor and other designated professionals.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:

1.  Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-
1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. However, the stricter applicability of the Secretarial
Standards is to be observed by the Company.

2.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)
to the extent applicable.

3.  General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 10/2022 dated December 28,
2022, 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs to hold Extra-Ordinary General Meetings/ Annual
General Meetings through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual
Means (OAVM).

We further report that

o The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent
Directors and Woman Director. The following changes took place in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the period which were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act/SEBI LODR,
2015 except as stated below.
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o Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent generally seven days in advance to all the directors except where the
meetings were held at a shorter notice. Further, a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

o As per the minutes of the meetings of the Board and Committees of the
Board, duly signed by the Chairman, all the decisions of the Board were
adequately passed and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that the Company has generally complied with the
provisions of Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading
Regulations), 2015 with respect to maintenance of Structural Digital Database
to the extent applicable.

As per the records, the Company has filed returns, documents and resolutions
as were required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and other
authorities except for few discrepancies in filing of certain forms.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Guidelines, Standards etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has undertaken
following specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards etc. referred to above :-

1.  Mr. Kranti Sinha (DIN: 00001643) has stepped down from the Board as
Independent Director of the Company with effect from August 8, 2023
and due to the same, composition of the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee
was affected for few days.

2.  Mr. Mathew Joseph (DIN: 01033802) has been appointed as an Additional
Director (Independent Director) on the Board of the Company with effect
from October 31, 2023. Further, his appointment was confirmed by the
Shareholders in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) held on
January 30, 2024.

3.  Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar (DIN: 00004272) and Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar
(DIN: 00026383) have completed their respective tenure as Independent
Directors on March 31, 2024. Further, Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar, is
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10.

11.

appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive Director) of the
Company with effect from April 01, 2024.

Mr. Ramakrishnan Subramanian (DIN: 02192747) has been appointed as
an Additional Director (Independent Director) by the Board of Directors
with effect from April 01, 2024.

Mr. Gaurav Seth was appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect from
October 17, 2023 as his earlier incumbent Mr. Amit Gupta was re-
designated as Head Finance of the Company on account of internal re-
structuring in the senior management of the Company.

The Company has approved the appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi &
Associates LLP (ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/ E300004) as one of
the Joint Statutory Auditors to hold office for a period of 3 (three) years
from Financial Year 2023-24 to Financial Year 2025-26 in an Annual
General Meeting held on June 29, 2023 on account of completion of
tenure of earlier incumbent.

The members of the Company had approved amendments in the IIFL-
HFL ESOP PLAN-2022 (herein after referred as “ESOP Plan”) by way of
passing a Special Resolution in the Annual General Meeting held on June
29, 2023.

The Company has altered its Articles of Association by passing a Special
Resolution in the Annual General Meeting held on June 29, 2023.

The Board of Directors have accorded their approval to raise funds and to
offer, Secured /Unsecured/ Listed/ Unlisted/ Rated/ Unrated / Non-
Convertible/ Market Linked/ Subordinated Debt/ Perpetual Debentures/
Fixed Maturity Debentures, aggregating to INR 5,000/- Crore (Indian
Rupees Five Thousand Crores) on private placement basis during the
financial year 2024-25, in one or more tranches.

The Board of Directors have accorded their approval for making
investment in RMBS Development Company Limited (a “proposed new
Company”) up to INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty Five Crores
only) in one or more tranches.

The Company has allotted 32,000 (Thirty Two Thousand) Secured
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (SNCDs) of INR 1,00,000/- each
(Indian Rupees One Lakh each) for cash at par aggregating to INR
320,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Three Hundred and Twenty Crore only)
and 8,200 (Eighty Two Hundred) Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures (SNCDs) of INR 10,00,000/- each (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh
each) for cash at par aggregating to INR 820,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Eight Hundred and Twenty Crore only) on private placement basis on May
23, 2023 and August 18, 2023 respectively.
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Annexure IV
IIFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Related Party Transaction Policy
I. Objective
To ensure that all transactions with the related parties are properly identified, reviewed and approved
pursuant to the applicable law. This policy applies to any transaction where the Company is a
participant, and the Related Party has or will have a direct or indirect material interest in the
transaction. This Policy may be amended at any time and is subjected to further guidance from the Audit
Committee/ Board of Directors.
Il. Guiding Act/Regulations/Rules
a) The Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under
b) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015(“Listing
Regulation”) as amended from time to time
c)Ind AS - 24

lll. Definitions

(i) “Audit Committee” or “Committee” means Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
constituted under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(iii) “Control” shall have the same meaning as defined in SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

(iv) “Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act,
2013

(v) “Material Related Party Transaction” mean transactions as defined under Regulation 23(1) and
23(1A) of Listing Regulations

(vi) “Material Modification” Material modification will mean and include any modification to an existing
related party transaction having variance of 20% of the existing limit as sanctioned by the Audit
Committee / Board / Shareholders, as the case may be.

(vii) “Policy” means the Policy on Related Party Transactions
(viii) “Related Party shall have the same meaning as defined under Regulation 2(1)(zb)of Listing
Regulation and sub-section (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Accounting

Standard.

(ix) ‘Relative’ has the same meaning as described in the Companies Act, 2013, which is defined as
follows:



Pursuant to Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 a “related party”, with reference to a company,
means-

(i) a director or his relative;

(ii) a key managerial personnel or his relative;

(iii) a firm, in which a director, manager or his relative is a partner;

(iv) a private company in which a director or manager is a member or director;

(v) a public company in which a director or manager is a director or holds along with his relatives, more
than two per cent. of its paid-up share capital;

(vi) any Body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager is accustomed to act in
accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a director or manager;

(vii) any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director or manager is accustomed to act:

Provided that nothing in sub-clauses (vi) and (vii) shall apply to the advice, directions or instructions
given in a professional capacity;

(viii) any company which is-
(A) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; or
(B) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary;

(ix) such other person as may be prescribed;
As per Rule 3 of the Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014,

“related party” - For the purposes of sub-clause (ix) of clause (76) of section 2 of the Act, a director other
than an independent director or key managerial personnel of the holding company or his relative with
reference to a company, shall be deemed to be a related party.

IV. Related Party Transactions (RPT): following shall mean related party transactions:

(a) “Related Party Transactions” or “RPTs” means transactions as given under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including Rules thereof and as defined in Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the Listing
Regulations.

(b) As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder the approval of Audit
Committee is required for any transactions of the Company with Related Parties including any
subsequent material modification thereof. Further, the Audit Committee may make omnibus approval
for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to such conditions,
as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Listing Regulation, RBI
Directives and other applicable law.

Note: Any definition not mentioned above shall have the same meaning as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and applicable Accounting Standard.

V. COMPLIANCES/APPROVALS/PROCESSES WITH RESPECT TO RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS



In compliance and as provided in Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulation the
following process is put in place, the following process is put in place:

A. Approval of the Audit Committee

1. All proposed related party transactions / arrangements or any modifications thereof, with the details of
related party, nature of transaction, reason for undertaking the transaction, confirmation on arms
length & in the ordinary course of business, duration of the transaction will be placed before the Audit
Committee for prior approval.

a. All proposed related party transactions / arrangements or any and subsequent material
modifications thereof, with the details of related party, nature of transaction, reason for
undertaking the transaction, confirmation on arm’s length & in the ordinary course of business,
duration of the transaction will be placed before the Audit Committee for prior approval.

However, the Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions
proposed to be entered into by the company subject to the following conditions:

i. The Audit Committee lays down the criteria for granting the omnibus approval in line
with the policy on Related Party Transactions of the company and such approval shall be
applicable in respect of transactions which are repetitive in nature.

ii. while granting omnibus approval, the Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for
such omnibus approval and that such approval is in the interest of the company;

iii. Such omnibus approval shall specify (i) the name/s of the related party, nature of
transaction, period of transaction, maximum amount of transaction that can be entered
into, (ii) the indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for variation in
the price if any and (iii) such other conditions as the Audit Committee may deem fit;
Provided that where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and
aforesaid details are not available, Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for such
transactions subject to their value not exceeding Rs.1 crore per transaction.

iv. Audit Committee shall review, atleast on a quarterly basis, the details of RPTs entered
into by the company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given.

v. Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one year and shall
require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year.

b. Related Party Transaction to which the subsidiary of the Company is a party but the Company is not
a party, shall require prior approval of the audit committee of the listed entity if the value of such
transaction whether entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a
financial year exceeds ten per cent of the annual consolidated turnover, as per the last audited
financial statements of the listed entity;

c. With effect from April 1, 2023, Related Party Transaction to which the subsidiary of the Company is
a party but the Company is not a party, shall require prior approval of the audit committee of the
listed entity if the value of such transaction whether entered into individually or taken together
with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds ten per cent of the standalone turnover,
as per the last audited financial statements of the subsidiary company;

d. However, prior approval of the Audit Committee of the Company shall not be required for a
Related Party Transaction to the subsidiary of the Company is itself listed entity, to which the
provisions of Regulation 23, 15(2) and other specified provisions of Listing Regulations are
applicable.



However Related Party Transaction of unlisted subsidiary of a listed subsidiary, prior approval of
the Audit Committee of the listed subsidiary shall suffice.

e. All subsequent Material Modification(s) to Related Party Transaction(s) to which the subsidiary of
the Company is a party but the Company is not a party, unless such transaction is ‘exempt’ under

Listing Regulations, shall be placed before the Audit Committee of the Company for prior approval.

B. Approval of the Board

Related Party Transactions as defined under Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 which are not in
ordinary course of business and/or not on arms length basis or any subsequent modification thereto,
will be placed before the Board for its approval.

C. Approval of Shareholders

i. All Material Related Party Transactions and any subsequent material modification as defined above
shall require prior approval of the shareholders through ordinary resolution. However, prior approval
of shareholders of the Company shall not be required for such cases as may be prescribed under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended or as notified by any
regulatory authority.

ii. Further, all Material Related Party Transaction(s) and subsequent Material Modification(s), to which
the subsidiary of the Company is a party but the Company is not a party, unless such transaction is
exempt under Listing Regulations, shall require prior approval of the shareholders of the Company

Provided that if such subsidiary of the Company is itself a Listed Entity to which the provisions of
Regulation 23, 15(2) and other specified provisions of Listing Regulations are applicable, then such
Material Related Party Transaction(s) and subsequent Material Modification(s) need not be placed
before the shareholders of the Company prior approval of shareholders of such Listed Subsidiary shall
suffice.

D. Materiality Threshold

Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations requires a company to provide materiality thresholds for
transactions beyond which approval of the shareholders through resolution will be required and the
related parties shall abstain from voting on such resolutions whether the entity is a related party to the
particular transaction or not. The Company has fixed its materiality threshold at 10% and for the brand
usage or royalty at 5% of the annual consolidated turnover of the company as per last audited financial
statements of the company for the purpose of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

E. Review of RPTs by Audit Committee

Review of transactions with related parties pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard — 24, on quarterly
basis.

F. Disclosure

i. Details of all material transactions with related parties shall be disclosed quarterly along with the
compliance report on corporate governance.



ii. The company shall disclose the policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions on its website and
also in the Annual Report.

The Company shall submit to the stock exchanges disclosures of related party transactions in the format
as specified by the SEBI from time to time, and publish the same.

VI. CRITERIA/DOCUMENTS/PROCESS FOR ALL TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

a) For all the transactions, due documentation by way of contract/agreement/bills/invoices/ should be
in place.
b) All the related party transactions shall be subject to the applicability, limits, enablement and other
conditions as prescribed under the applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations and circulars and guidelines of
Regulatory authorities including RBI, NHB, SEBI, MCA, Income Tax, etc.
c) In case of infrastructure and common sharing arrangement, the terms of arrangement including the
nature and quality of services, consideration and other terms and conditions shall be as comparable
with the terms if availed from the market/third parties.
d) In case of purchase/ sale of fixed assets or other assets, the same shall be at market prices or per the
valuer certificate.
e) Related Party Transaction shall be approved after assessing all material terms and conditions of the
transaction and ensure that the terms are comparable with the market rates/practices at the particular
point of time and on arms length basis. The following information will be taken into account when
assessing a Related Party Transaction:

a. The terms of such transaction;

b. The Related Person’s interest in the transaction;

c. The purpose and timing of the transaction;

d. the nature of the Company’s participation in the transaction;

e. If the transaction involves the sale of an asset, a description of the asset, including date

acquired and costs basis;

f. Information concerning potential counterparties in the transaction;

g. Whether the proposed transaction includes any potential reputational risk issues that may

arise as a result of or in connection with the proposed transaction and

h. Any other relevant information regarding the transaction.

f) Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a director or any other employee, without
obtaining the consent of the Board or approval by a special resolution in the general meeting, should be
ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a meeting within three months from
the date on which such contract or arrangement was entered into. If the said ratification is not done
such contract or arrangement shall be voidable at the option of the Board;

Any other regulatory changes in this regard will stand updated in the policy from time to time.



Annexure V

Report on Corporate Governance

Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

IIFL Home Finance Limited puts a strong emphasis on corporate governance and ethically
sound practices that build trust and transparency between our business and all stakeholders.
We regard our stakeholders as invaluable partners in our journey and work to ensure their
wellbeing, regardless of market or economic fluctuations. Our dedication to transparency and
providing timely, precise data regarding our management and organizational structure has
enhanced our reputation both domestically and abroad. This has enabled us to draw in the best
people and resources to make our objectives, both short and long-term, into a workable
business plan.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is instrumental in developing the long-term vision and
policy of our organisation to ensure the highest quality in governance and operations. We have
a clear guideline and framework in place to guide decision-making and management practices,
in order to become the leader in our industry and beyond. Your Company has an experienced
and well informed Board that oversee the Company's corporate governance and ensures the
Company meets its fiduciary responsibilities to its stakeholders. Best practices are followed to
ensure sustainable, ethical leadership and good corporate citizenship. Your Company places a
strong emphasis on corporate governance, cultivating sustainable growth from the top down,
which is reflected in its sound financial system and strong market reputation. The Board
strongly emphasizes on forming a talent base from around the nation, adhering to ethical
business practices and ensuring that all of our actions are in line with protecting the
environment through green technologies and practices.

Over the years, your Company has complied with the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), SEBI
Regulations, RBI Directions/ Circulars, IND-AS (Indian Accounting Standards), Secretarial
Standards, etc., Strong governance practices have rewarded the Company in the sphere of
valuations, stakeholders confidence, market capitalization and good credit ratings in positive
context apart from receiving of awards from appropriate authorities. Your Company makes all
efforts to comply with such standards. Your Company firmly believes that Corporate
Governance is an ever-evolving journey, rather than a mere destination. This is an ongoing
process, as your Company continues to strive for excellence in creating sustainable value. Your
Company’s efforts in this regard are reflected in this Report, where the Company has outlined
multiple initiatives to sustain the highest standards of governance.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27
read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable, with
regard to corporate governance.

1) Board of Directors

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Company has an adequate mix of Board with a majority of Independent Directors
(including one woman as an Independent Director) in line with the provisions of the



Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time-to-time. The Board provides
leadership, strategic guidance and discharges its fiduciary duties by safeguarding the
interests of the Company and its stakeholders.

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of the Company consisted of nine directors. The Chairman of
the Board is a Non-Executive Independent Director and majority of the Board comprises Non-
Executive and Independent Directors. None of the Directors of the Company are related to
each other. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name of Director

Independent Director Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar

Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar

Ms. Mohua Mukherjee

Mr. Mathew Joseph*

Mr. Venkataramanan Anantharaman
Non-Executive other than | Mr. Nirmal Jain

Independent Director Mr. Rajamani Venkataraman
Nominee Director Mr. Kabir Mathur**
Executive Director & CEO Mr. Monu Ratra

* Mr. Mathew Joseph was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from October 31, 2023.
** Mr. Kabir Mathur was appointed as Nominee Director on behalf of Platinum Owl C 2018 RSC Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary of Abu Dhabi Investment Authority) on August 22, 2022.

Note:

- Mr. Kranti Sinha, Independent Director of the Company resigned with effect from August 08, 2023 due to some

personal reasons and there is no other material reason for his resignation.

- The tenure of Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar Independent Director on the Board was expired on March 31, 2024 w.e.f. close
of the business hours. Considering ongoing participation and on the recommendation of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, Mr. S. Sridhar was re-appointed as Non- Executive Director on the Board of the Company
w.ef. April 01, 2024.

- The tenure of Mr. A K Purwar, independent Director stands expired on March 31, 2024 from close of business hours
due to completion of tenure of Mr. Purwar as an Independent Director on the Board of IIFL Finance Limited, Holding
Company. Your Board took on record the invaluable contribution of Mr. Purwar to the growth of the Company.

- Mr. Ramakrishnan Subramanian appointed as Additional Director (Independent) of the Company with effect from
April 01, 2024.

2) Matrix chart of core skills / expertise / competencies of the Board members

The Board comprises talented and dedicated directors with a diverse mix of expertise,
experience, skills, and backgrounds. For the purpose of Board composition, diversity includes,
but is not limited to, educational and functional background, industry experience, geography,
age, insider status, gender, and ethnicity. The skills and backgrounds collectively represented
on the Board reflect the diverse nature of the business environment in which the Company
operates.

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a
matrix chart setting out the core skills, expertise, and competence of the Board is mentioned
below:



Sr. | Skills/expertise/ | Mr. S. | Mr. Arun | Ms. Mr. Mr. R | Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr.
No. | competence Sridhar | Kumar Mohua | Nirm | Venkatar | Monu Kabir | Venkat | Mathe
Purwar Mukhe | al aman Ratra Math | arama |w
rjee Jain ur nan Joseph
Ananth | **
arama
n
1 Knowledge of 4 4 4 4 4 v v v v
Sector
2 Accounting and v 4 4 4 4 v v v v
Finance
3 Corporate v v v v v v v v v
Governance &
Compliances
4 Marketing v v v v v v v v v
Experience
5 Strategy v v v v v v v v v
Development and
Implementation
6 Information 4 4 4 4 4 v v v
Technology
7 Stakeholders 4 4 4 4 4 v v v v
Relationship
8 Risk Management 4 4 4 4 4 v v v v
System
9 CEO / Senior 4 4 v 4 4 v v v v
Management
Experience /
Leadership

Brief profile of Directors is as follows.

Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar is an eminent personality in the Banking and Finance industry and
has held several senior positions in retail, corporate and export/import banking in his career
of almost 4 decades culminating as the Chairman of NHB and the Central Bank of India. In his
stint as Chairman and Managing Director of the NHB, he was responsible for a number of new
initiatives such as the NHB Residex, Rural Housing Fund, and Reverse Mortgage for senior
citizens. Prior to this, he was associated with the Export Import Bank of India as Executive
Director as well as the State Bank of India in the early part of his career. He holds directorship
in 12 Companies including IIFL Home Finance Limited.

List of Directorship
in other listed
Company

Name of Company

Category of Directorship

Go Fashion (India) Limited

Independent  Director and
Chairman

Strides Pharma Science Limited

Independent Director

Jubilant Pharmova Limited

Independent Director

Shriram Finance Limited

Independent Director

Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar works as Chairman of Eroute Technologies Private Limited, a
fintech Company as well as in Jindal Panther Cement Limited. He also works as an
Independent Director in Companies across diverse sectors like power, telecom, steel,




engineering consultancy, pharma and financial services. He also acts as an advisor to Mizuho
Securities, Japan. He was Chairman of the State Bank of India (“SBI”) from 2002 to 2006 and
Chairman of the Indian Bank Association from 2005 to 2006. He has previously held positions
such as Managing Director of State Bank of Patiala and was associated with the setting up of
SBI Life. After his retirement from SBI, he was associated with a leading industry house in
setting up the first healthcare focused private equity fund as well as a non-banking finance
company focused on funding real estate projects as well as educational institutions. He has
won a number of awards including the CEO of the year award from the Institute of
Technology and Management (2004), "Outstanding Achiever of the Year" award from the
Indian Banks Association (2004) and "Finance Man of the Year" Award by the Bombay
Management Association in 2006.

List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship
in other listed | IIFL Finance Limited Independent Director and
Company Chairman

Balaji Telefilms Limited Independent Director

Alkem Laboratories Limited Independent Director

Mohua Mukherjee is a seasoned development economics professional with thirty years of
international experience. She was among the youngest candidates ever selected for the
globally competitive Young Professionals Program of the World Bank in Washington DC. Her
career at the World Bank included responsibility for designing and supervising World Bank
investment projects, based on dialogue with Ministers and senior government officials in
client countries. Mohua has led policy dialogue and formulated investment projects in 9
different sectors of the economy, in 44 countries on 4 continents, all pertaining to the UN’s
Millennium Development Goals and later the Sustainable Development Goals. She is an
experienced leader of multi-disciplinary teams and has received various awards of
appreciation from government clients for her consultative approach. She headed the
Corporate Finance department first at Citibank and then at ABN AMRO Bank Nairobi, Kenya.
Apart from this hands-on financial sector experience in Kenya, Mohua also has energy sector
investment experience in 15 African countries, plus Nepal and Bangladesh and of course India
as well. From 2014-2017, Mohua led the India Solar Energy Team of the World Bank, and she
was responsible for managing a large team of professionals to complete the delivery of a
US$1 billion solar program to the government of India. The US$640 million blended-finance
Solar Rooftops project with the State Bank of India, which she designed from the start,
brought the OPEX model to the Indian solar rooftop market. Apart from the solar energy
sector, Mohua also has a great deal of experience in the Indian electricity distribution
company sector. She has contributed to various World Bank publications and also has three
solo-authored books, with the most recent one being (in 2014) on private participation in the
Indian power sector. In 2017 she ended her long career in Washington and moved to
Bangalore for family reasons. Following her relocation to India, Mohua worked pro-bono for
2 years at the International Solar Alliance, to support its initial establishment. She is currently
a World Bank consultant and she is Advisor to the India Smart Grid Forum. Mohua has a
Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree in Economics, with distinction, and a Master of Business
Administration degree in International Finance, all from Boston University. She also has a
certificate in Public Private Partnerships from the Harvard Kennedy School. She holds
directorship in 2 Companies including [IFL Home Finance Limited.



List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship
in other listed
Company

Mr. Nirmal Jain is a MBA from IIM, Ahmedabad, a rank holder Chartered Accountant and a
Cost Accountant. He started his career in 1989 with Hindustan Lever Limited (HUL), the
Indian arm of Unilever. He founded Probity Research and Services (later re-christened as
India Infoline Limited) in 1995, one of the first independent equity research companies in
India. Under his leadership, IIFL Group has grown into a dominant and diversified player in
the financial services space. He holds directorship in 5 Companies including IIFL. Home
Finance Limited.

List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship
in other listed | IIFL Finance Limited Executive Director and
Company Managing Director

360 ONE WAM Limited | Non-Executive Director
(Erstwhile IIFL Wealth
Management Limited)

Mr. Rajamani Venkataraman is a non-executive Director of our Company and is one of the
Non-Executive Directors of our Company. He is a B.Tech in electronics and electrical
communications engineering from IIT, Kharagpur and holds a Post Graduate Diploma in
Management from [IM, Bangalore. He has more than 20 years in the financial services sector.
He is the Co-Promoter and an Executive Director of our Promoter India Infoline Limited. Prior
to joining the India Infoline Board in July 1999, he held senior managerial positions in ICICI
Limited, ICICI Securities Limited, BZW and Taib Capital Corporation Limited. He holds
directorship in 6 Companies including [IFL Home Finance Limited.

List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship
in other listed | IIFL Finance Limited Executive Director and Joint
Company Managing Director

360 ONE WAM Limited (Erstwhile | Non-Executive Director
IIFL Wealth Management
Limited)]

[IFL Securities Limited Chairman and Managing
Director

Mr. Kabir Mathur is Head of Asia Pacific within the Private Equities Department of Abu
Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA). He is responsible for leading all aspects of ADIA’s private
equity activities in the Asia Pacific region and is a member of the Private Equity Executive
Committee. Prior to joining ADIA in 2018, Mr. Mathur worked at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts &
Co (KKR) where he was responsible for sourcing, executing and managing private equity
investments in Asia. Mr. Mathur joined KKR in 2008, having previously worked at TPG
Capital, also in their Asian private equity business. Mr. Mathur began his career in the
Investment Banking division of Citigroup/Salomon Smith Barney. Mr. Mathur graduated from
the London School of Economics and Political Science with a BSc (Hons.) in Economics. He
holds directorship in 3 Companies including IIFL Home Finance Limited.



List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship

in other listed | MPHASIS Limited Non-Executive Director
Company

Mr. Venkataramanan Anantharaman has over 30 years of experience in the financial
services sector in India and overseas, having led corporate and investment banking teams in
several leading international banks. He was also a Senior Advisor to British International
Investment (formerly CDC), the UK Government Development Finance Institution. He is
currently Chairman of Transunion CIBIL, India’s leading Credit Information Bureau and is on
the Boards of The Indian Hotels Company Limited, Axis AMC and Ecom Express. He is an
advisor to Lighthouse Funds, a leading consumer and healthcare focussed mid-market
growth private equity firm. He brings strong Board level advisory experience across mergers
& acquisitions, capital markets, risk management, HR and ESG. Anantharaman holds a BE in
Metallurgy from Jadavpur University and a PGDBM from XLRI, Jamshedpur. He has also has
an FT Non-Executive Director Diploma and an ESG Competent Boards Certificate and
Designation (GCBD). He holds directorship in 5 Companies including IIFL Home Finance
Limited.

List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship

in other listed | The Indian Hotels Company Limited Independent Director
Company

Mr. Mathew Joseph has over 35 years experience with India’s Largest Housing Finance
Company and superannuated as Member of Executive Management and Chief Risk Officer.
Apart from overseeing Risk, his expertise included both Retail and wholesale Financing and
was a Member of Core Committees of the Corporation. During his tenure with the
Corporation, he led World Bank / IFC assignment’s for supporting and establishing Housing
Finance Institutions in Africa and Asia. He holds a bachelor’s degree in science from the
Madras University and is a Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants. He is a Director
on the Boards of Tamil Nadu Urban Infrastructure Financial Services Ltd, Tamil Nadu Urban
Infrastructure Trustee Co Ltd, Veritas Finance Private Ltd and a Consultant with World Bank
for their Affordable Housing Fund. He is also an advisor on Lok Capital, an Impact Fund. He
holds directorship in 4 Companies including IIFL. Home Finance Limited.

List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship
in other listed
Company

Mr. Monu Ratra is a veteran in the mortgages industry with nearly two decades of
experience. Mr. Ratra has been associated with brands like HDFC Ltd., ICICI Bank and India
bulls Housing. Prior to joining IIFL Home Finance Limited, his last assignment was with India
bulls HFC as National Business Manager. Mr. Ratra has been a part of the pioneering teams
leading various functions to provide excellence through process and quality initiatives,
contributing to industry-leading growth. While with the last company, his efforts and vision
led to the building of a growth sales structure, starting from scratch, in a start up like
environment. At [IFL Home Loans, Mr. Ratra brings strong focus on developing and delivering



customer satisfaction with ease and low turnaround time. He holds directorship in 1
Company i.e., IIFL Home Finance Limited.

List of Directorship | Name of Company Category of Directorship
in other listed
Company

3) Board Meetings and Directorship / Committee Membership(s) of Directors

During the year under review, six (06) Board Meetings were held on the following dates:
April 24, 2023; July 25, 2023, October 17, 2023, January 15, 2024, March 16, 2024 and
March 28, 2024. As mandated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereof, none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company is a member of more than ten (10) specified Committees and none is a Chairman
of more than five (5) specified Committees in which they are Directors across all the Public
Limited Companies whether listed or not except private limited companies, foreign
companies, high value debt listed entities and Companies incorporated under Section 8 of
the Companies Act, 2013. None of the Independent Directors serves as an Independent
Director in more than seven (7) listed entities (Equity Listed). None of the Directors holds
directorship in more than seven (7) listed entities (Equity Listed). None of the Whole Time
Director/Managing Director serves as an Independent Director in more than three (3) listed
entities (Equity Listed). Further none of our Independent Directors serve as Non-
Independent Director on the Board of any Company, of which any Non-Independent
Director is an Independent Director on the Board of our Company. None of the directors are
inter-se related. Also, there are no material significant related party transactions made by
the company with its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other Designated persons and
their relatives which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large.

The Company has received the necessary disclosures from all the Directors regarding
Committee positions held by them in other companies. The table below gives the details of
the names of the members of the Board, their category, their attendance at the Board
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM),
their Directorships, Committee Memberships and Chairmanships in Indian Companies as on
March 31, 2024:

Name of the | Date of Category Number Num | Attendan | Directors | Membership
Director original of Board ber of | ce hips of Committees
(DIN) appointmen meetings | Boar | atlast in Listed (including IIFL. Home
t entitled d AGM Companie | Finance Limited)
to attend | meeti s Member | Chairman
ngs (including
IIFL Home
Finance
Limited)
Mr. Srinivasan | October 01, Chairman 6 6 Yes 5 7 5
Sridhar 2013 and
(DIN: Independent
00004272) Director
Mr. Kranti October 01, Independent 2 2 Yes NA NA NA
Sinha* (DIN: 2013 Director
00001643)




Mr. Arun August 22, Independent 6 6 Yes 4 3
Kumar 2019 Director
Purwar
(DIN:
00026383)
Ms. Mohua August 26, Independent 6 6 Yes 1 1
Mukherjee 2021 Director
(DIN:
08714909)
Mr. Nirmal December26, Non- 6 6 No 3 0
Jain 2006 Executive
(DIN:00010535 Director
Mr. Rajamani December Non- 6 6 Yes 4 3
Venkataraman 26,2006 Executive
(DIN: Director
00011919)
Mr. Monu January 28, Executive 6 6 Yes 1 1
Ratra 2016 Director &
(DIN:0740628 CEO
4)
Mr. Kabir August 22, Nominee 6 3 No 2 1
Mathur 2022 Director
(DIN:
08635072)
Mr. February 21, | Independent 6 6 Yes 2 5
Venkataraman 2023 Director
an
Anantharama
n
(DIN:
01223191)
Mr. Mathew October 31, Independent 3 3 NA 1 0
Joseph** 2023 Director
(DIN:
01033802)

*Mr. Kranti Sinha, Independent Director of the Company resigned with effect from August 08, 2023 due to some
personal reason.
** Mr. Mathew Joseph was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from October 31, 2023.

1. The Committees considered for the above purpose are those prescribed in the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 viz. the Audit Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

2. The membership count also includes the count in which the Director is Chairman.

4) Board Level Performance Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for the performance

evaluation of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors

(“ID’s”) and Board as a whole.

The criteria for performance evaluation are as follows:



For Chairperson

The criteria for evaluation of the Chairman, inter alia, includes his/her ability to conduct meetings,
ability to elicit inputs from all members, ability to present and openly discuss challenging matters,
attendance at meetings, assistance to the Board in formulating policies and setting standards,
accessibility, ability to analyze strategic situations, ability to project a positive image of the
Company, compliance with regulatory requirements, impartial in conducting discussions, being
sufficiently committed to the Board, and ability to keep shareholder’s interest in mind during
discussions and decisions.

For Executive Directors

The criteria for evaluation of Executive Directors, inter alia, includes their ability to elicit inputs
from all members, their ability to present and openly discuss challenging matters, attendance and
participation at meetings, integrating quality and re-engineering, capitalize on opportunities
created by economic and technological changes, assistance to the Board in formulating policies and
setting standards and following them, accessibility, ability to analyse strategic situations, ability to
project a positive image of the Company, compliance with regulatory requirements, and handling
critical situations concerning the group.

For Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors)

The criteria for evaluation of Non-Executive Directors, inter alia, includes attendance at the
meetings, study of the agenda and active participation, contribution to discussions on strategy,
participate constructively and actively in Committees of the Board, exercise of skills and diligence
with due and reasonable care and to bring independent judgment to the Board, ability to bring in
best practices from his / her experience and adherence to the code of conduct.

For Board as a Whole

The criteria for evaluation of the Board, inter alia, includes composition and diversity, induction
programme, teamwork, performance culture, risk management and financial controls, integrity,
credibility, trustworthiness, active and effective participation by members, proper mix of
competencies to conduct affairs and processing enough experience to efficiently manage matters.

5) Separate Meetings of the Independent Directors

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of
Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 26, 2024, inter alia, to review the
following:

e Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

e Performance of the Chairperson of the Company; taking into account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors;

e Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the
Company’s Management and the Board, which is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform their duties;



The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction with the overall functioning and
implementation of their suggestions.

The evaluation process endorsed the Board Members confidence in the ethical standards of the
Company, the cohesiveness that exists amongst the Board Members, the two-way candid
communication between the Board and the Management and the openness of the Management in
sharing strategic information to enable Board Members to discharge their responsibilities.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

In accordance with the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has laid out a Familiarization Programme for Independent
Directors to familiarize them with the workings of the Company, their roles, rights and
responsibilities vis-a-vis the Company, the industry in which the Company operates and its
business model, among others. Further, the Board members are provided with necessary
documents/ brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarize with the
Company’s procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board
Committee Meetings on business, operations and performance updates of the Company. Quarterly
updates on relevant statutory and regulatory changes applicable to the Company are discussed at
the Board meetings. The details of such familiarization programmes of the Company may be
accessed on the website of the Company i.e. https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-
governance.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

» Frequency: The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and
other items on the Agenda. There are a minimum of four meetings of Board in a calendar
year, with a maximum gap of 120 days between two consecutive meetings. Whenever
necessary, additional meetings are held. In cases of business exigencies or matters of
urgency, resolutions are passed by circulation, as permitted by law, and are noted in the
subsequent Board Meeting.

» Board Meeting Location: The location of the Board/Committee Meetings is informed well in
advance to all the Directors. Each Director is expected to attend the Board / Committee
Meetings. A video conference facility is made available to facilitate Directors travelling /
residing abroad or at other locations to participate in the Board / Committee Meetings. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has granted relaxation with regard to the requirement
of the physical presence of the Directors at the Board meeting and therefore few Board
meetings were held through video conferencing or other audio-visual means.

» Notice and Agenda Distributed in Advance: The Company’s Board/Committee members are
presented with detailed notes along with the agenda papers, which are circulated well in
advance of the Meeting. The Company has implemented an App based e-Meeting system
accessible through secured iPads provided to the Directors and key officials. The agenda,
presentation, notes and minutes are made available to the Board and Committee Members.

» The Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairperson of the Board/Committees sets
the Agenda for the Board/Committee Meetings. All material information is incorporated in
the Agenda to facilitate meaningful and focused discussions at the Meeting. Wherever it is



not practical to attach any document to the Agenda, the same is tabled before the Meeting
with specific reference to this effect in the Agenda. In special and exceptional circumstances,
additional or supplementary items on the Agenda are permitted. The Board periodically
reviews compliance reports of laws applicable to the Company, prepared and placed before
the Board by the Management.

» Other Matters: The senior management team of the Company is advised to schedule its
work plans in advance, particularly with regard to matters requiring discussions / decision
with the Board / Committee Members.

» Presentations by the Management: The Board/Committee is given presentations, wherever
practicable covering finance, sales, marketing, major business segments and operations of
the Company, global business environment including business opportunities, business
strategy, risk management practices and operating performance before taking on record the
financial results of the Company.

» Access to Employees: The Directors are provided free access to officers and employees of
the Company. Whenever any need arises, the Board/Committee Members are at liberty to
summon personnel whose presence and expertise would help the Board to have a full
understanding of the issues being considered.

Information Supplied to the Board/Committees
Among others, information supplied to the Board / Committees includes:

Business plan and updates thereof, quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company as per
the format prescribed in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

e Minutes of the Meetings of the Board and all other Committees of the Board

e Information on the recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board
level, including the appointment or removal, if any, of the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

e Show cause, demand, prosecution notices, and penalty notices, which are materially
important

e Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, or any material effluent or pollution
problems

e Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company, if any

e Any issue, that involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature,
including any judgement or order, that may have passed strictures on the conduct of the
Company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise that can have negative
implications on the Company

e Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement

e Transactions that involve substantial payment towards royalty, goodwill, brand equity or
intellectual property, if any

e Any significant development on human resources / industrial relations front, as and when it
occurs

e Sale of material nature of investments and assets that are not in the normal course of
business Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by the
Management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if material



e Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and
shareholders service, such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer, if any, and
others steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any

Minutes of the Meetings

The draft Minutes of the proceedings of the Meetings are circulated amongst the Members of the
Board/ Committees. Comments and suggestions, if any, received from the Directors are
incorporated in the Minutes, in consultation with the Chairman. The Minutes are confirmed by the
Members and signed by the Chairman of such meeting at any time before the next meeting is held
or by the Chairman of the next Board / Committee Meetings. All Minutes of the Committee Meetings
are placed before the Board for perusal and noting.

Post Meeting Follow-up Mechanism

The Company has an effective post-meeting follow-up review and reporting process for the
decisions taken by the Board and Committee(s) thereof. The important decisions taken at the
Board/Committee(s) Meetings that calls for actions to be taken are promptly initiated and
wherever required, communicated to the concerned departments/divisions. The action taken
report is placed at the immediately succeeding Meeting of the Board/Committee(s) for information
and review by the Board / Committee(s).

Confirmation of Independence

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act,
2013 and are independent of the Management.

Board Committees

In terms of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and RBI Master Directions, the Board of Directors has constituted various
Committees. The composition of the various Committees along with their Terms of Reference is as
follows:

Audit Committee

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and in line with other regulatory provisions
as may be applicable, the Board constituted the Audit Committee.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

1. Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar - Chairman

2. Mr. Kabir Mathur - Member
3. Mr. Venkataramanan Anantharaman - Member

4. Mr. Rajamani Venkataraman - Permanent Invitee



During the year under review, the Audit Committee met five times i.e., on April 24, 2023, July 25,
2023, October 17, 2023, January 15, 2024 and March 28, 2024.

Details of the number of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during
the financial year 2023-24 are summarized below:

Name Category No. of No. of Meetings
meetings attended
entitled to
attend

Mr. Srinivasan Independent Director 5 5

Sridhar

Mr. Kranti Sinha* Independent Director

Mr. Kabir Mathur Nominee Director

Mr. Independent Director

Venkataramanan

Anantharaman** 3 3

Mr. Rajamani Non-Executive Director

Venkataraman 5 5

*Mr. Kranti Sinha ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with effect from August 08, 2023.
**Mr. Venkataramanan Anantharaman, Independent Director, inducted to the Audit Committee with effect from
September 06, 2023.

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company and representatives of the Statutory Auditors and the
Internal Auditors, if required. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on June 29, 2023.

During the year, there were no instances where the Board did not accept the recommendations of
the Audit Committee.

The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

i.  oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii. =~ recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

iili. ~ approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

iv.  reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

e matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in
the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

e changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;



vi.

vil.

viil.
ix.

Xi.
xii.

Xiii.
Xiv.
XV.
XVi.
XVii.

xviii.
Xix.

XX.

XXi.
XXii.
xxiii.
XXIiv.

major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
disclosure of any related party transactions;

modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue
or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and making
appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company
in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date
of coming into force of this provision.

consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders, if any.

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;



XXV.

XXVI.

XXVii.

xxviii.

the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the audit committee.
statement of deviations:
e quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 52 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

e annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation 52 of (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted
at least once in two years to assess operational risks faced. The Information System Audit as
prescribed shall be carried out separately through a Certified Information System Auditor
(CISA).

The Audit Committee have such powers and it performs such functions as may be required
under the Companies Act, 2013 and such other applicable Regulations as may be notified by
Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Housing Bank/Reserve Bank of India and
other regulators from time to time.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and in line with other regulatory provisions
as may be applicable, the Board constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

1.

4,

Mr. Venkataramanan Anantharaman - Chairman
Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar - Member
Mr. Kabir Mathur - Member

Mr. Rajamani Venkataraman - Permanent Invitee

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, includes the
following:

formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and
on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of
an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an



ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.
vil.

viii.

ix.

independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the
purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity;

and

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.

formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board
of directors;

devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board
of directors their appointment and removal.

whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.
ensure that compensation levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of the company
and the need to maintain adequate capital based on ICAAP.

ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/existing directors and that there is no conflict of
interest in appointment of directors on Board of the company, KMPs and senior management

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee have such powers and it performs such
functions as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013 and such other applicable
Regulations as may be notified by Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Housing
Bank/Reserve Bank of India and other regulators from time-to-time.

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met five times i.e., on
April 24,2023, April 28, 2023, June 15, 2023, August 07, 2023 and October 09, 2023.

Details of the number of meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during the
FY 2023-24 are summarized below:

Name Category No. of No. of meetings
meetings attended
entitled to
attend

Mr. Independent Director

Venkataramanan

Anantharaman** 1 1

Mr. Srinivasan Independent Director

Sridhar 5 5

Mr. Kranti Sinha* Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Kabir Mathur Nominee Director 5 3

Mr. Rajamani Non - Executive 5 2




Venkataraman Director

*Mr. Kranti Sinha ceased to be a member and chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with
effect from August 08, 2023.

**Mr. Venkataramanan Anantharaman, Independent Director inducted into the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as Chairman with effect from September 06, 2023.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and in line with other regulatory provisions
as may be applicable, the Board has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

1. Ms. Mohua Mukherjee - Chairman
2. Mr. Venkataraman Rajamani - Member
3. Mr. Monu Ratra - Member

Grievances relating to Stakeholders/Investors may also be forwarded to the Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer of the Company at secretarialhfc@iiflhomeloans.com. Mr. Ajay Jaiswal has been
designated as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer in this regard.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter alia, includes the
following:

i.  Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer/transmission of securities, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.

ii.  Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders
iii.  Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect

of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

iv.  Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends/interest and ensuring timely receipt
of dividend/interest warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders
of the company.

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once on January 22,
2024.

Details of the number of meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during FY
2023-24 are summarised below:



Name Category No. of No. of
meetings meetings
entitled to attended
attend

Mr. Kranti Sinha* Independent Director 0 0

Ms. Mohua Independent Director 1 1

Mukherjee**

Mr. Venkataraman Non-Executive Director

Rajamani 1 0

Mr. Monu Ratra Executive Director & CEO 1 1

*Mr. Kranti Sinha ceased to be a member and chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee with effect
from August 08, 2023.

**Ms. Mohua Mukherjee, Non- Executive & Independent Director inducted to the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee as chairperson with effect from September 06, 2023.

The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee attended the last Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on June 29, 2023.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary of the Committee.
During the year 2023-24, the Company received 01 complaints from Non-Convertible Debenture
holders (investors) including complaints received through SEBI’s SCORES portal. The complaints

were redressed to the satisfaction of the investors / debenture holders.

The details of the complaints are given below:

Sr. | Particulars No. of
No. Complaints
1 Investor complaints pending at the beginning of the year -
2 Investor complaints received during the year 1
3 Investor complaints disposed off during the year 1
4 Investor complaints remaining unresolved at the end of the | -
year
5 Investor complaints not solved to the satisfaction of the -
security holders

Corporate Social Responsibilitv (CSR) Committee

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder, the Board has constituted a CSR Committee.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as
follows:

1. Ms. Mohua Mukherjee — Chairman
2. Mr. Venkataraman Rajamani - Member

3. Mr. Monu Ratra - Member



The terms of reference of the CSR Committee is governed by the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules and such modification or amendments as made
thereto from time-to-time.

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee, inter alia, include the following:

a. Consider any matters relating to the social, charitable, community and educational
activities, expenditures and related publications of the Company and its subsidiary
companies that it determines to be desirable. In addition, the CSR Committee shall examine
any other matters referred to it by the Board

b. Maintain the Company’s CSR policy framework (e.g. environment, human rights and
responsible business conduct) in line with best practice and the appropriate international
standards and guidelines

c. Receive reports and review activities from executive and specialist groups managing CSR
matters across the Company’s operations; and consider and propose an annual budget for
CSR activities to the Board.

During the year under review, the CSR Committee met thrice on August 03, 2023, March 21, 2024
and March 22, 2024.

Details of number of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during the
FY 2023-24 are summarised below:

Name Category No. of No. of
meetings meetings
entitled to attended

attend

Ms. Mohua Independent Director 3 3

Mukherjee**

Mr. Kranti Sinha* Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Monu Ratra Executive Director & 3 3

CEO
Mr. Rajamani Non-Executive Director 3 1
Venkataraman

*Mr. Kranti Sinha ceased to be member of CSR Committee with effect from August 08, 2023.
**Ms. Mohua Mukherjee, Independent Director was appointed as Chairperson of CSR Committee with effect from
September 06, 2023.

Risk Management Committee

The Board of Directors constituted Risk Management Committee comprising of Directors and
senior officials of the Company in line with the provisions of RBI Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with
Regulation 21 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

1. Mr. Mathew Joseph - Chairman

2. Mr. Monu Ratra - Member



3. Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar - Member

4. Ms. Mohua Mukherjee - Member

5. Mr. Kabir Mathur - Member

6. Mr. Rajamani Venkataraman - Member
7. Ms. Abhishikta Munjal - Member

8. Mr. Govind Modani - Member

9. Mr. Gaurav Seth - Member

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are in line with guidelines prescribed by
NHB/RBI and SEBI which, inter alia, includes the following:

a. To identify the various types of risks involved in the business, both financial and non

financial risk, internal and external, operational, sustainability and ESG related risk

To define the methodology to measure / quantify the risks

To control and mitigate the variety of risks involved in business

To specify the risk tolerance of the Company

To ensure regulatory and statutory compliance with risk management and prudential

norms,

To improve the asset quality of the Company by using risk management tools

g. To maximise the profit of the Company,

h. To maximise the return on equity with an acceptable level of risk, for the purpose of
protecting, preserving and increasing the net worth of the Company

i. To ensure business continuity and to avoid accidents and disasters. To ensure that
appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company

j-  Tokeep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken

k. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall
be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee

. Periodically review the Risk Management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity

m. To strengthen internal control and prevent unauthorised and improper access to data,
thereby ensuring the appropriate protection of information assets i.e. risk related to cyber
security

n. To monitor and oversee implementation of the Risk Management policy, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems.

0. Records regarding to Monitor and Control of Outsourced Activities shall be updated
promptly and half yearly reviews shall be placed before Risk Management Committee and
further to the Board.

p. To formulate/ review a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

o a0 o

-

i. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the
listed entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability



(particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as
may be determined by the Committee.

ii. Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.

iii. Business continuity plan.

During the year under review, the Committee met four times on May 25, 2023, August 11, 2023,
December 08, 2023 and February 12, 2024.

Details of the number of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during
the FY 2023-24 are summarized below:

Name Category No. of No. of Meetings
meetings Attended
entitled to
attend

Mr. Kranti Sinha* Independent Director | 1 1

Mr. Mathew Joseph**| Independent Director | 1

Mr. Monu Ratra*** Executive Director & 4

CEO
Mr. Srinivasan Independent Director | 4 4
Sridhar
Ms. Mohua Independent Director | 4 4
Mukherjee
Mr. Kabir Mathur Nominee Director 4 0
Mr. Rajamani Non - Executive 4 3
Venkataraman Director
Ms. Abhishikta Chief Risk Officer 4 4
Munjal
Mr. Govind Modani | Treasury Head 4 1
Mr. Gaurav Seth**** | Chief Financial Officer |1 1

*Mr. Kranti Sinha ceased to be member of Risk Management Committee with effect from August 08, 2023.

**Mr. Mathew Joseph, Independent Director was inducted to the Risk Management Committee and appointed as Chairman of
Risk Management Committee with effect from January 15, 2024.

***Mr. Monu Ratra ceased to be Chairman of Risk Management Committee with effect from January 15, 2024.

****(Mr. Gaurav Seth was inducted to the Risk Management Committee with effect from January 15, 2024.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

In accordance with the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with the Liquidity Risk Management Framework
issued by RBI (earlier under Policy Circular No. NHB/ND/DRS/Pol-No. 35/2010-11 dated October 11,
2010), the Board of Directors constituted the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO).

The composition of the ALCO Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:
1. Mr. Monu Ratra - Chairman

2. Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar - Member
3. Mr. Kabir Mathur - Member



Mr. Rajamani Venkataraman - Member
Ms. Abhishikta Munjal - Member

Mr. Mohit Kumar - Member

Mr. Govind Modani - Member

Mr. Gaurav Seth - Member

© N

During the year under review, the Committee met four times on May 23, 2023, August 11, 2023,
December 08, 2023 and February 12, 2024.

Details of the number of the meetings held and attended by the members of the ALCO during the
financial year 2023-24 are summarised below:

Name Category No. of No. of Meetings
meetings Attended
entitled to
attend
Mr. Monu Ratra Executive Director & 4 4
CEO
Mr. Kabir Mathur Nominee Director 4 0
Mr. Srinivasan Independent Director 4 4
Sridhar
Mr. Rajamani Non-Executive 4 2
Venkataraman Director
Ms. Abhishikta Chief Risk Officer 2 2
Munjal*
Mr. Mohit Kumar** National Credit 2 2
Manager
Mr. Govind Treasury Head 2 2
Modani***
Mr. Gaurav Seth**** | Chief Financial Officer 1 1

*Ms. Abhishikta Munjal was inducted to the ALCO with effect from September 06, 2023.
** Mr. Mohit Kumar was inducted to the ALCO with effect from September 06, 2023.
*#*Mr. Govind Modani was inducted to the ALCO with effect from September 06, 2023.
*¥*EMr. Gaurav Seth was inducted to the ALCO with effect from January 15, 2024.

The terms of reference of the ALCO are in line with the guidelines prescribed by the RBI which,
inter alia, includes the following:

a. Liquidity risk management should include decision on desired maturity profile and mix of
incremental assets and liabilities, sale of assets as a source of funding, the structure,
responsibilities and controls for managing liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity
positions of all branches;

b. Management of market risks

c. Funding and capital planning

d. Profit planning and growth projection

e. Forecasting and analysing 'what if scenario' and preparation of contingency plans



IT Strategy Committee

In accordance with the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (earlier under the Policy Circular No.
NHB/ND/DRS/Policy Circular No. 90/2017-18, dated June 15, 2018), the Board of Directors
constituted IT Strategy Committee.

The Composition of IT Strategy Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

1. Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar - Chairman

2. Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar - Member
3. Mr. Monu Ratra - Member
4. Ms. Abhishikta Munjal - Member
5. Mr. Rachit Gehani - Member
6. Mr. Shankar Ramrakhiani - Member
7. Mr. Mitesh Vora - Member
During the year under review, the Committee met twice on August 08, 2023 and February 05, 2024.

The number of the meetings held and attended by the members of the IT Strategy Committee
during the FY 2023-24 are summarised below:

Name Category No. of No. of Meetings
meetings Attended
entitled to
attend
Mr. Srinivasan Independent Director 2 2
Sridhar
Mr. Arun Kumar Independent Director 2 2
Purwar
Mr. Monu Ratra Executive Director & 2 2
CEO
Ms. Abhishikta Chief Risk Officer 2 1
Munjal
Mr. Rachit Gehani Chief Technological 2 2
Officer
Mr. Shankar Chief Information 2 2
Ramrakhiani Security Officer
Mr. Mitesh Vora* Head IT Infrastructure 1 1
and Cyber Security

* Mr. Mitesh Vohra has resigned and ceased to be the member of IT Strateqy Committee w.e.f. November 28, 2023.

The terms of reference of the Committee are in line with guidelines prescribed by RBI which, inter
alia, include the following:



10.

Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has put an
effective strategic planning process in place

Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices ensuring that the
IT delivers value to the business

Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable

Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to
achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcin gand use of IT resources
Ensuring a proper balance of IT investments for sustaining the required growth and
becoming aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls

Guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the overall

strategy of the RE towards accomplishment of its business objectives;

Satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure fosters
accountability, is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well defined
objectives and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organisation;

Ensure that the RE has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT and
cybersecurity risks;

Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function (including for IT security), cyber
security are commensurate with the RE’s IT maturity, digital depth, threat environment and
industry standards and are utilised in a manner intended for meeting the stated objectives;
and

Review, at least on annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business Continuity
Planning and Disaster Recovery Management of the RE.

ESG Committee

The composition of the ESG Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

N UTE W

Ms. Mohua Mukherjee - Chairman
Mr. Monu Ratra - Member

Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar - Member
Mr. Ajay Jaiswal - Member

Ms. Abhishikta Munjal - Member
Mr. Rachit Gehani - Member

Ms. Rashmi Priya - Member

Ms. Madhvi Gupta - Member

During the year under review, the Committee met once on December 26, 2023.

Details of the number of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during
the financial year 2023-24 are summarized below:

Name Category No. of No. of
meetings meetings
entitled to attended
attend
Ms. Mohua Independent Director 1 1




Mukherjee

Mr. Srinivasan Independent Director 1 1

Sridhar

Mr. Monu Ratra Executive Director & 1 1
CEO

Mr. Ajay Jaiswal Chief Operating Officer 1 1

Ms. Abhishikta Chief Risk Officer

Munjal

Mr. Rachit Gehani Chief Technological 1 1
Officer

Ms. Rashmi Priya HR Head 1 1

Ms. Madhvi Gupta* Marketing Head 1 1

*Ms. Madhvi Gupta was inducted into the ESG Committee with effect from September 06, 2023.

The terms of reference of the Environmental Social Governance Committee (ESG Committee), inter
alia, includes the following:

I.
ii.

ii.

iv.

V.

Vi.

vii.

viil.

To set general ESG strategies keeping in mind the Company’s commitments.

To ensure that the company’s ESG strategy is integrated into its business plan by
developing and implementing initiatives and policies based on that strategy,

To monitor the integrity and quality of the company’s ESG strategy, ensuring that it serves
to foster a culture of responsibility and transparency.

To provide oversight on behalf of and to the Board in relation to IIFL HFC’s ESG strategy and
activities.

To oversee communications with employees, investors, and stakeholders with respect to
ESG Strategy and related matters

To review and approve IIFL HFL’s impact reports to be issued from time to time.

To review and approve the qualifications, independence, engagement, compensation and
performance of the external party chosen to provide assurance on IIFL HFL’s annual
Sustainability Report.

Any other incidental and ancillary matters pertaining to ESG Strategy and Programme of the
Company.

Senior Management:

The Particulars of senior management for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Full Name Current Designation

Abhishikta Chadda

Munjal Chief Risk Officer - HFC

Ajay Kumar Jaiswal Chief Operating Officer - HFC
Madhvi Gupta Marketing Head - HFC

Lokesh Goyal National Technical Manager - HFC
Rashmi Priya Head HR - HFC

Amit Sengar Zonal Sales Head

Praveen Khullar Zonal Sales Head




Rachhit Gehanii

Chief Technology Officer

Manoj Kumar

Head Legal - HFC

Kranth Kranth Namala

Zonal Sales Head

Gaurav Seth

CFO - HFC

Mohit Kumar National Credit Manager - HFC
Igbal Ahmad Farooqui National Collection Manager
Sagar Riaz Special Projects Lead

Changes in the particulars of Senior Management Personnel during the financial year are as follows:

1. Mr. Amit Gupta, Chief Financial Officer was redesignated to Head-Finance w.e.f. October 17,
2023 due to internal restructuring within the Company.
2. Mr. Gaurav Seth was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. October
17,2023.

Remuneration of Directors

Details of Remuneration for the FY 2023-24 and details of the number of shares and

Convertible instruments held by Directors as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Name of | Designation | Salary and | Commissio | Sitting fee | Contrib | Stock Number
Director Perquisite | n/Bonus ution to | options of
PF and equity
other shares
funds, and non
gratuity convert
ible
instrum
ents
held
Mr. Independent - X25,00,000 | X - - -
Srinivasan Director 10,60,000
Sridhar
Mr. Kranti | Independent - X7,04,918 X3,50,000 - - -
Sinha# Director
Mr. Non- - - - - -
Rajamani Executive
Venkataram | Director
an
Mr. Nirmal | Non- - - - - -
Jain Executive
Director
Mr. Arun | Independent - - %3,90,000 - - -
Kumar Director
Purwar
Mr. Monu | Executive 4 Eq - - 2,68,822 100*
Ratra Director & | 302,50,000 | 350,00,000
CEO
Ms. Mohua | Independent - 20,00,000 | %5,10,000 - - -
Mukherjee Director




Mr. Kabir | Nominee - - - - -
Mathur Director

Mr. Independent - %20,00,000 | %5,10,000 - - -
Venkataram | Director

ana

Anantharam

anan

Mr. Mathew | Independent X8,36,065 2,10,000

Joseph## Director

Note: i. Remuneration of Fixed CTC and performance bonus has been considered for presenting data on comparable basis for Mr. Monu
Ratra Executive Director & CEO, the remuneration is exclusive of the value of perquisites on ESOPs.

ii. The remuneration of Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar, Mr. Kranti Sinha, Mr. Venkataramana Anantharamanan, Mr. Mathew Joseph and Ms.
Mohua Mukherjee has been presented on the basis of commission to be paid for FY 2023-24.

iii. No severance fees was paid to any of the Director during FY 2023-24.

* Monu Ratra holds shares as nominee of IIFL Finance Limited.

#Mr. Kranti Sinha had resigned and stepped down from the post of Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company
with effect from August 08, 2023, due to personal reasons.

##Mr. Mathew Joseph was appointed on the Board as Independent Director with effect from October 31, 2023.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees,
commission and other expenses (travel, boarding and lodging incurred for attending the
Board/Committee meetings). The Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors are not paid any
sitting fees.

With effect from October 01, 2021, the Company is paying sitting fees of ¥50,000 (Rupees Fifty
Thousand only) per meeting to the Non-Executive Independent Directors for Board Meeting and
Audit Committee. However, for other Committees, the Company is paying sitting fees of 330,000
(Rupees Thirty Thousand only) per meeting. The sitting fees were paid for attending meetings of
the Board and the Committee (excluding the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings
for which there were no sitting fees payable). Additionally, the Company also provided
reimbursement for actual travel and out-of-pocket expenses, if any, incurred by them.

Apart from the above, the Non-Executive and Independent Directors are eligible for commission as
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on August 2,
2019. The amount of commission is based on the overall financial performance of the Company and
Board of Directors. In addition to the aforementioned, no other remuneration is paid to the Non-
Executive Independent Directors.

There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions between Non- Executive Directors and the
Company. The Company has obtained a Directors and Officers Liability Insurance policy covering all
its Directors and Officers in respect of any legal action that might be initiated against them.

Periodic review of compliances of all applicable laws

The Company follows a system whereby all the Acts, Rules and Regulations applicable to it are
identified, and compliance with such Acts, Rules and Regulations is monitored by dedicated teams
on a regular basis. Verification of compliances with the major Acts/Regulations is carried out by
suitable external auditors, and their reports and implementation of their observations are reported
to the Board / Audit Committee. In addition, the audit and verification plan and actual status



thereof are reviewed by the Board/Audit Committee periodically. A consolidated compliance
certificate based on the compliance status received from the Company in respect of various laws,
Rules and Regulations applicable to the Company is placed before the Board on a regular basis and
reviewed by the Board. Necessary reports are also submitted to the various regulatory authorities
as per the requirements from time to time.

General body Meetings

Date of AGM Location Time Whether any
Special
resolution
was passed
June 29, 2023 IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, 04:00 p.m. Yes

Plot No., B-23, MIDC Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane - 400604

July 20, 2022 IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, 4.30 p.m. No
Plot No., B-23, MIDC Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane - 400604

June 23,2021 IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, 4.30 p.m. No
Plot No., B-23, MIDC Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane - 400604

Postal Ballot
During the year under review, no resolution was passed through the Postal Ballot.
Means of communication to the Stakeholders

The primary source of information to the shareholders, customers, analysts and other stakeholders
of your Company and to public at large is through the website of your Company
www.iiflhomeloans.com. The Annual Report, quarterly financial results, corporate actions and
copies of press releases, if any, among others, are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges and
uploaded on the website of the Company including Quarterly / Annual Financial Results in
accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All
the disclosures made to the Stock Exchanges are also available on the website of the Company i.e.
https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/investor-relations. The quarterly and annual results of your
Company are published in widely circulated English newspaper(s).

General Shareholder Information

1 Annual General Meeting For the details please refer to the Notice of ensuing
Annual General Meeting

2 Finance Year (2023-24) From April 1 to March 31

3 Dividend payment date (Interim During the financial year 2023-24, your Company
dividend) had declared X 55 per equity share and payment

was made within the stipulated timeline.

4 Name and address of each stock Publicly issued Non-Convertible Debentures
exchange(s) at which the listed (NCDs) are listed on BSE Ltd. (BSE) and National
entity's securities are listed and a Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and privately
confirmation about payment of placed NCDs are listed on NSE.




annual listing fee to each of such
stock exchange(s);

The Listing fees as applicable have been duly paid
to stock exchanges

5 Stock Code Not applicable
6 Market price data- high, low during | Not applicable; as Equity Shares of the Company
each month in last financial year are not listed on any Stock Exchange
7 Performance in comparison to | Notapplicable; as Equity Shares of the Company
broad-based indices such as BSE | are notlisted on any Stock Exchange
sensex, CRISIL Index etc
8 In case the securities are suspended | Not Applicable
from trading, the directors report
shall explain the reason thereof
9 Registrar to an issue and share Link Intime India Private Limited
transfer agents C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri
Marg, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai, Maharashtra 400083.
Telephone: 022-49186000
Email: rnthelpdesk@linkintime.co.in
bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
10 Share transfer system Equity shares- Registrar and Transfer Agent
NCDs are in dematerialised form transfer and
transmission of security is outsourced to Registrar
and transfer agent
11 Distribution of shareholding Not Applicable
12 Dematerialization of All shares are in dematerialized form.
Shares and liquidity
13 Outstanding global depository | Not Applicable
receipts or American depository
receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion
date and likely impact on equity
14 Commodity price risk or foreign | Not Applicable
exchange risk and hedging activities
15 Plant locations Not Applicable
16 Address for Mr. Ajay Jaiswal, Company Secretary & Compliance
Correspondence Officer
Plot No. 98, IIFL Towers, Udyog Vihar, Phase 1V,
Gurgaon, Haryana- 122015
17 List of all credit ratings obtained by | The details are provided below

the entity along with any revisions
thereto during the relevant financial
year, for all debt instruments of
such entity or any fixed deposit
programme or any scheme or
proposal of the Ilisted entity
involving mobilization of funds,
whether in India or abroad




Details of Rating as on March 31, 2024

Instruments Rating Agency | Rating
CRISIL AA/Watch Developing (Placed
CRISIL Limited | on 'Rating Watch with Developing
Implications")
[ICRA]AA; Placed on 'Rating Watch
ICRA Limited with Negative Implications

Non-Convertible

Debentures CARE AA (RWD) Placed on Rating
CARE Ratings Watch with Developing Implications
Brickwork .
Ratings BWR AA+/Negative

India Ratings

IND AA/Rating Watch With Negative
Implication

Long Term Principal

CRISIL PP-MLD AA/Watch
Developing (Placed on 'Rating Watch

Protected Market Linked CRISIL Limited | With Developing Implications’)
Debentures PP-MLD[ICRA]AA; Placed on 'Rating
ICRA Limited Watch with Negative Implications
ICRA Limited [ICRA]AA; Placed on 'Rating Watch
Subordinated Debt with Negative Implications
Brickwork
Ratings BWR AA+/Negative
Principal Protected Market CRISIL PP-MLD AA/Watch
Linked Non-Convertible Developing (Placed on 'Rating Watch
Subordinated Debentures CRISIL Limited | with Developing Implications')
CRISIL AA/Watch Developing (Placed
on 'Rating Watch with Developing
Bank Loan CRISIL Limited | Implications’)
[ICRA]AA; Placed on 'Rating Watch
ICRA Limited with Negative Implications
c 21 P CRISIL Limited | CRISIL A1+
ommercial Paper
P ICRA Limited | [ICRAJAL+

Migration of Rating

During the Financial year 2023-24, there are no migration of rating, however, CRISIL
changed its outlook from Stable to Positive. Further, Pursuant to RBI restriction on
gold loan business of parent company, the rating have been put under watch by the
rating agencies.



Shareholding Pattern

Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2024

Name of Shareholder Category of Number of % of
Shareholder shares Shareholding

IIFL Finance Limited Promoter 2,09,67,681 79.59

Platinum Owl C 2018 RSC Non-Promoter 53,76,457 20.41

Limited, acting in its
capacity as the trustee of
Platinum Jasmine A 2018

Trust

Mr. Govind Modani* Individual 100 -
Mr. Gaurav Seth* Individual 100 -
Mr. Monu Ratra* Individual 100 -
Mr. Amit Gupta* Individual 100 -
Mr. Ajay Jaiswal * Individual 100 -

Total 2,63,44,638 -
*Individual shareholders are holding shares as nominee of IIFL Finance Limited (the holding
Company).

Other Disclosures

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of listed entity at large

The Company has put in place a Related Party Transactions Policy (RPT) which was approved by
the Board of Directors. The Policy provides for identification of RPTs, necessary approvals by the
Audit Committee/Board/Shareholders, reporting and disclosure requirements in compliance with
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. All transactions executed by the Company during the financial year with related parties were
on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. All such RPT were placed before the
Audit Committee for approval, wherever applicable. The policy on the materiality of RPTs (part of
the Related Party Transaction Policy) and dealing with RPTs as approved by the Board may be
accessed on the website of the Company ie. https://www.iflhomeloans.com/investor-
relations/corporate-governance. You may refer to Note no. 41 of the Standalone Financial
Statement which contains related party disclosures.

(b) Details of Non-Compliance
No strictures/ penalties were imposed on your Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India or by any statutory authority on any matter related to the

securities markets during the last three financial years.

No fines/penalties have been levied by the RBI during the year 2023-24.



(c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy, and affirmation that
no personnel was denied access to the Audit committee

In Compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the
necessary vigil mechanism for employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violations of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The
Policy provides adequate safeguard against the victimization of whistle blowers, who avails such
mechanism and also provides for the access to the Chairman of Audit Committee. None of the
whistleblowers have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The said Policy as approved by the
Board may be accessed on the website of the Company ie.
https://www.iiflhomelaons.com/investor-relations/corporate-governance.

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements;

The Company has adhered to all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance norms as
prescribed for High Value Debt Listed Companies in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the Company. The status of
Compliance with the Non- mandatory recommendation in the SEBI Regulations is as follows:

v" The Internal Auditor has direct access to the Audit Committee.
v" The Company follows a robust process of communicating with the shareholders which has
been explained earlier in the report under “Means of Communication”.

(e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed at
https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-governance

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed at
https://www.iiflhomeloans.com/corporate-governance

(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

(h) Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) : Not Applicable

(i) A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the
company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority forms part of
this report.

(j) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is
mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with reasons
thereof: No such instance was reported.



(k) Total Fees to Statutory Auditor

Total fees (exclusive of GST and other taxes as applicable) for all services paid by the listed
entity and its subsidiary, on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the
network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part, are as follows:

Amount (X in Amount (X in Amount (R in

Particulars Cr)(HFC) Cr) (IIHFL Sales) Cr)(Consol)

Audit Fee 0.65 0.07 0.72
Limited Review 0.71 0.01 0.72
™ -
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.22 0.22
Others, if any - - -
Total 1.83 0.08 1.91

() Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company recognizes its responsibility and continues to provide a safe working environment
for women, free from sexual harassment and discrimination. In Compliance with the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company has put in place a Policy on the prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee. During the year under review, there were
neither any complaint received nor any outstanding.

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
c. Number of complaints pending as on end of financial year: Nil

Number of workshops or awareness programmes against sexual harassment carried out: The
Company regularly sensitizes its employees on the prevention of sexual harassment through online
training.

(m) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount:

Except for transactions mentioned under related party transactions, no loans and advances are
granted to firms/companies in which Directors are interested.

(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity, including the date and place of incorporation
and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries- Not
Applicable



(o) Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10)
above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed: Company is complied with the requirements

(p) There has been no instances of breach of covenants of loan availed or debt securities issued
during the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

(q) Divergence in the asset classification and provisioning

There is no divergence in asset classification and provisioning as assessed by NHB where:
i) The additional provisioning requirements assessed by National Housing Bank (NHB)
exceeds 5% of the reported profits before tax and impairment loss on financial
instruments as on March 31, 2024, or

ii) The additional Gross NPAs identified by NHB exceeds 5% of the reported Gross NPAs as on
March 31, 2024.

(r) Among discretionary requirements, as specified in Part E of Schedule II of Listing Regulations
and other acts, rules, regulations, and guidelines as applicable, the Company has adopted the
following:

a. The Company has adopted a regime of financial statements with an unmodified audit opinion.

b. The Company has appointed separate posts for the Chairman and the CEO such that Chairman is
Non-Executive Director and not related to the CEO.

c. The internal auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee of the Company.

(s) The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in
regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62 (1A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations shall
be made in the section on corporate governance of the annual report.

The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to
27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, which have
become applicable to the Company as a High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”).

Declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer stating that the members of the Board of
directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of
conduct of the Board of Directors and Senior Management.

The confirmation from the Chief Executive Officer regarding compliance with the Code by all the
Board Members and Senior Management forms part of the Report. The Code of Conduct is displayed
on the website of the Company i.e. www.iiflhomeloans.com.

Compliance certificate from either the auditors or Practising company secretaries regarding
compliance with conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed to the Directors’
report.

The certificate received from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, M/s. RMG Associates,
Practising Company Secretary confirming the compliance of conditions of corporate governance is
annexed to this Report in terms of the provisions of Part E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.



Hot

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclalmed suspense account:

Applicable

Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding llsted entlties: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Doard of Dircctors

R. Venkataraman

Monu Ratra
Executive Director & CEO  Dircctor

DIN: 07406284 DIN: 00011919
Place: Mumbat Place: Mumbal

Date: May 06, 2024









RMG & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

[Pursuant to Notice No. 20220107-16 and Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para E of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members

IIFL Home Finance Limited

(CIN: U65993MH2006PLC166475)

IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V,
Plot No. B-23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane, Maharashtra, 400604

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance of IIFL
Home Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), having its
Registered Office situated at [IFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, Plot No.
B-23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area, Wagle Estate, Thane, Maharashtra, 400604,
and Corporate Office at Plot No. 98 Udyog Vihar Phase IV Gurgaon Haryana 122015
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to
27, Regulation 62 and Para C,D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the
conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations.

Responsibility of Practicing Company Secretary

Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we certify that the Company has generally complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. However, we
noted that Mr. Kranti Sinha (DIN: 00001643) has stepped down from the Board as
Independent Director of the Company with effect from August 8, 2023 and due to

207 & 201, Suchet Chambers, 1224/5, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi -110005
Phone: 9212221110, 011-4504 2509; www.rmgcs.com, E-Mail: info@rmgcs.com



RMG & Associates

Company Secretaries Continuation Sheet No. 2

the same, composition of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee was affected for few days.

We further state that this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RMG & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No. P2001DE016100
Peer Review No. : 734/2020
Digitally signed

SACHIN by SACHIN

KHURANA

KHURANA pate: 2024.05.06

20:15:48 +05'30'

Place: New Delhi CS Sachin Khurana
Date: 06.05.2024 Partner
UDIN: FO10098F000315106 FCS: 10098; C.P. No.: 13212



RMG & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Notice No. 20220107-16 and Regulation 34 (3) read with
Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members

IIFL Home Finance Limited

(CIN: U65993MH2006PLC166475)

IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V,
Plot No. B-23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area,
Wagle Estate, Thane, Maharashtra - 400604

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures
received from the Directors of IIFL Home Finance Limited (CIN:
U65993MH2006PLC166475) (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) having its
Registered Office situated at IIFL House, Sun Infotech Park, Road No. 16V, Plot No.
B-23, MIDC, Thane Industrial Area, Wagle Estate, Thane, Maharashtra — 400604
and Corporate Office at Plot No. 98 Udyog Vihar Phase IV Gurgaon Haryana
122015 as produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this
certificate, in pursuance of the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V
Para C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and to the extent of accessibility
of the data or information as available and according to the verifications (including
Director Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as
considered necessary by us and explanations furnished to us by the Company and
its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company, as stated below, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“‘MCA”) or any such other statutory authority.

S. No. | DIN Full Name Designation

1. 07406284 | Mr. Monu Ratra Whole Time Director & CEO

2. 00004272 | Mr. Srinivasan Sridhar Director

3. 01033802 | Mr. Mathew Joseph Director

4. 00010535 | Mr. Nirmal Bhanwarlal Jain | Director

S. 00011919 | Mr. Venkataraman Director
Rajamani

6. 00026383 | Mr. Arun Kumar Purwar Director

7. 08714909 | Ms. Mohua Mukherjee Director

8. 08635072 | Mr. Kabir Mathur Nominee Director

9. 01223191 | Mr. Venkataramanan Director
Anantharaman

207 & 201, Suchet Chambers, 1224/5, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi -110005
Phone: 9212221110, 011-4504 2509; www.rmgcs.com, E-Mail: info@rmgcs.com




RMG & Associates

Company Secretaries Continuation Sheet No. 2

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of a Director on the Board of
the Company is the ultimate responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basis of the
disclosures/information provided by the management of the Company. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For RMG & Associates

Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No. P2001DE016100
Peer Review No.: 734/2020

Digitally signed by
SACH I N SACHIN KHURANA
KH U RAN Date: 2024.05.06

20:14:48 +05'30'

Place: New Delhi CS Sachin Khurana
Date: 06.05.2024 Partner

UDIN: FO10098F000315141 FCS: 10098; C.P. No.: 13212



Annexure VI

Management Discussion and Analysis

Global Economic Overview

In CY23, the global economy demonstrated resilience despite
navigating unpredictable headwinds. According to the
International Monetary Fund (IMF), the economy experienced
a 2.8% growth over the year. However, elevated inflation
significantly impacted consumer spending, causing a notable
slowdown. Geopolitical tensions disrupted supply chains and
weakened investor confidence, resulting in a decline in both
international trade and business investment.

In response to inflation, major central banks raised policy
interest rates, leading to higher mortgage costs, reduced credit
availability, and decreased investment in businesses and
residential sectors. While these measures were necessary, they
also had the effect of disincentivising certain investment
activities. However, emerging and developing economies such
as India, Vietnam, and Mexico observed robust growth and
capital inflows from foreign institutional investors.

The prospect of an economic slowdown has significantly
reduced, facilitated by disinflation and steady growth. Global
headline inflation is expected to fall to 5.8% in 2024 and to 4.4%
in 2025, which should ease financial conditions. Inflation is
declining quicker than projected, with both headline and core
inflation approaching pre-pandemic levels. Additionally,
improved fiscal management across many economies provided
a buffer against potential shocks, contributing to a more secure
financial landscape.

Asia contributed ~70% of global growth in 2023

Source: IMF, World Economic Ounlook, April 2023

Note: Groupings based on IMF Regional Economic Outlook classifications.

https://www.mospi.gov.in/sites/default/files/press_release/
PressNoteGDP31052024.pdf

%https://pib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspx?PRID=1932051

Outlook

Looking ahead to 2024, the global economy is at a pivotal
juncture, with the potential for gradual recovery and
stabilisation. The global growth is predicted to be 3.1% in
CY24, with a slight increase to 3.2% in 2025. Despite the
prevailing challenges, the outlook demonstrates a sense of
cautious optimism, with anticipated easing of inflationary
pressures and more accommodative monetary policy
measures. As the global community navigates through
these uncertain times, the collective policy response and
resilience of economies worldwide will be instrumental in
shaping a sustainable and inclusive growth trajectory for
2024.

Indian Economic Review

In FY2024, the Indian economy showcased a robust
performance, characterised by a notable growth trajectory
and various strategic policy interventions aimed at fostering
sustainable economic expansion. The influence on the
economic landscape is attributed to proactive
governmental policies, infrastructural enhancements, and
the paradigm shift towards financial inclusion and digital
advancements.

In FY2024, the Indian economy achieved growth rate of
8.2%, facilitated by the Government’s enhanced capital
expenditure. This strategic fiscal manoeuvring has
improved the nation’s infrastructure, catalysing the housing
finance sector through improved consumer confidence and
escalating housing demand. Furthermore, robust economic
growth, favourable demographic trends and significant
digital advancements, have bolstered the growth of the
Indian economy.

This growth translates to increased disposable income,
fuelling more demand for goods and services. The centrally
funded schemes, such as Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan
Yojana (providing income support to farmers), National
Rural Livelihood Mission (promoting financial inclusion) and
Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (boosting
manufacturing to create job opportunities), have been the
key drivers to increase real income.

Launched in 2020, Production Linked Incentive (PLI)2
scheme has proven to be effective in accelerating the
momentum of the growth of the Indian economy. The
scheme augmented domestic manufacturing across 14
sectors. It increased production, enhanced employment
generation and aided economic growth by significantly
increasing the FDI in the manufacturing sector to 76%. The
PLI Scheme for food processing has positively impacted the
income of Indian farmers and MSMEs.



Outlook

Going forward, India’s growth is expected to remain strong,
supported by improving macroeconomic factors and robust
internal financial stability. The economy is set to grow by more
than 7% in FY25, making it the fastest-expanding major
economy in the world. This strong growth provides the central
bank with the opportunity to focus on price stability, while
rising demand across core sectors is anticipated to aid in job
creation.

A significant advantage for India's economic growth is its youth
population, with a median age projected to reach 31 by CY2030.
The working-age demographic is expected to increase by 1.2
times from 2015 to 2030, resulting in India becoming the
world’s largest working-age population of 1.03 billion by
CY2030. 3 This demographic expansion will be a key driver of
economic growth.

The anticipated economic expansion is largely driven by
substantial infrastructure investments. These investments are
supported by government spending and
improvements in the financial health of corporations and
banks. Such investments are crucial for sustaining growth and
enhancing the country’s infrastructure.

increased

Moreover, the young and expanding workforce, coupled with
efforts to develop smaller cities more inclusively, further
supports this growth. The demographic growth is likely to
increase demand in essential sectors such as transportation,
food, housing, and infrastructure, fostering a balanced and
sustainable economic environment.

Industry Overview

The Indian Housing Finance Industry is set for growth,
supported by the Government’s decision to increase capital
expenditure by 11.1% to H11.11 lakh crore for the fiscal year,
equating to 3.4% of GDP.4 This measure not only bolsters the
nation’s infrastructure but also benefits the housing finance
sector through improved consumer confidence and increased
housing demand. The sector’s growth can also be attributed to
strong economic performance, favourable demographics and
digital advancements.

Governmental initiatives, facilitate affordable housing by
making homeownership more accessible to
belonging to lower and middle-income groups, particularly in
rural areas. These initiatives, coupled with increased capital
expenditure, are anticipated to enhance infrastructure,
consequently bolstering the housing market.

individuals

In the Interim Budget 2024-25, it was announced that two crore
additional rural houses will be constructed under the Pradhan
Mantri Awaas Yojana-Gramin (PMAY-G) over the next five years,
aiming to meet the rising demand. Despite the challenges
posed by Covid-19, the government is close to achieving its
target of three crore houses. Additionally, a new scheme is
planned to support middle-class urban homebuyers in
purchasing or building their homes.

A stable economic environment, effective policies and
relentless governmental efforts towards financial inclusion and

3https://dea.gov.in/sites/default/files/Report%200f%20the%20Task%20Force%20National%20Infrastructure%20Pipeline%20%28NIP%29%20-%20volume-i_1.pdf

“https://pib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspx?PRID=2001130

the digitisation of financial services, have fostered growth and
enhanced the accessibility and affordability of housing finance.

Affordable Housing

The Affordable Housing Finance sector saw various
developments in FY2024, driven by a favourable operating
environment and high demand. The sector has effectively
tapped into underserved market segments, leveraging their
expertise in evaluating credit risks to serve lower and middle-

income groups.

With the diminishing share of priority sector lending-compliant
home loans within the overall banking sector portfolio over the
past two years, it has led to significant developments in the
sector, opening new avenues for AHFCs to broaden their
portfolios through co-lending agreements or direct assignment
transactions, augmenting market expansion and presence.

The sector saw improvements in asset quality, supported by
better collection efficiency and strategic write-offs, maintaining
stability despite inherent risks associated with lending to
selfemployed individuals with volatile incomes. The Gross
NonPerforming Assets (GNPA) ratio has stabilised at around
1.2% as FY2024 concluded. The sector’s capital structure
remained robust, supported by solid internal accruals, with a
gearing ratio approximately 2.9x as of March 31, 2024. AHFCs
achieved strong profitability through improved net interest
margins and controlled credit costs, despite increased
operating expenses due to branch expansion.

Banks are set to continue as a principal source of funding for
AHFCs, facilitating their growth and operational scalability. This
partnership is a symbiotic relationship between banks and
AHFCs, enabling the latter to leverage the financial stability and
resources of the former to meet the housing needs of
underserved communities effectively.

Significant Policy Changes

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has announced a series of policy
changes that are set to impact the housing sector positively.
The changes include a substantial increase in the housing loan
limits for Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs) and new lending
options for Rural Co-operative Banks.

For Tier 1 Urban Cooperative Banks (UCBs), the individual
housing loan ceiling has been raised to H 60 lakh, which is
double the previous maximum. Similarly, Tier 2 UCBs will see an
increase in their housing loan ceiling to H 1.40 crore. For Rural
Cooperative Banks, the upper limits have been increased from
H 20 lakh to H 50 lakh and from H 30 lakh to H 75 lakh,
respectively.

Furthermore, Rural Co-operative Banks have now been
authorized to lend to the Commercial Real Estate Residential
sector. This expansion

of their lending scope aims to meet the growing demand for
affordable housing in rural areas. These decisions are expected
to increase the credit flow to the housing sector, thereby
stimulating economic activities, enhancing capital formation,
and generating employment.

*https://www.careratings.com/uploads/newsfiles/1708066976_Affordable%20Housing%20Finance_CareEdge%20Report.pdf
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These policy changes by the RBI are anticipated to significantly
boost the housing sector, leading to overall economic growth
and development.

Market Penetration

Fuelled by resilience and anticipated rebound in housing and
developer loans, the Housing finance companies’ (HFCs) Assets
Under Management (AUM) grew in double-digits in FY2024 and
FY2025. With the support
fundamentals and various factors, including rapid urbanisation,
decreasing mortgageto-GDP ratios, favourable demography
and governmental initiatives, the residential real estate sector
is thriving. The paradigm shift towards spacious living and
premium amenities facilitated by low interest rates and stamp
duty cuts in some regions, is expected to propel the growth of
the industry in the coming years

of solid macroeconomic

The affordable housing segment is one of the fastest-growing
domains in Indian consumer finance, addressing the needs of
lower to middle-income brackets. The government’s focus on
increasing housing loan penetration, especially in rural and
semi-urban areas, underscores the potential for significant
market expansion.

However, challenges remain on the horizon. Regulatory
changes, tighter liquidity conditions, persistently high interest
rates, delays in resolving bad wholesale loans and increased
competition from banks are potential downside risks that HFCs
need to manage effectively.

PESTEL Analysis

The Indian housing market operates within a complex web of
factors influencing its growth and stability. The breakdown of
these key influences can be done by a PESTEL Analysis.

Political

Government Policies and Initiatives: Pradhan Mantri Awas
Yojana (PMAY): As of March 2024, over 2.56 crore houses have
been constructed out of the 2.94 crore sanctioned houses
under PMAY (Gramin). This program aims to provide affordable
housing to all eligible beneficiaries in rural areas.

Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act (RERA):
Enacted in 2016, RERA aims to protect home buyers and boost
investments in the real estate sector. As of May 2024, over
1,00,000 projects have been registered under RERA across
various states.

Taxation and Subsidies:

Income Tax Benefits: Homebuyers can claim deductions up to
H 1.5 lakh under Section 80C for principal repayment and up to
H 2 lakh under Section 24 (b) for interest on home loans .

Economic

Interest Rates: As of May 2024, the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) has maintained the repo rate at 6.75%, which
influences home loan interest rates offered by banks.

Economic Growth: Disposable income levels have been
rising, with per capita income increasing to H 2,14,000 in
2023-24 from H 1,72,000 in the previous year.

Affordability: Despite economic growth, housing
affordability remains a challenge. The affordability index,
which measures the ratio of house prices to household

income, stands at around 4.7 in urban areas.

Social

Demographic Trends: India’s urban population is expected
to grow to 600 million by 2031, up from 460 million in 2018,
driving demand for housing.

The median age in India is around 28.6 years, with a significant
portion of the population entering the housing market.

Technological

Efficient Loan Journeys through Fintech: Advanced
technologies like Al and digital platforms streamline the
loan application and approval process, reducing approval
times and enhancing customer experience.

Impact of Digital Unsecured Loans: The rise of digital
lending platforms has made unsecured personal and
more accessible, with these
experiencing a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of
approximately 86.4% over the past 5.5 years., marking a
significant impact on traditional lending practices .*

business loans loans

Environmental

Sustainable Development: Regulations now require new
housing projects to incorporate green building practices.
The Indian Green Building Council (IGBC) has certified over
7.9 billion sq. ft. of green building space as of 2024 .

Climate Change: Housing projects are increasingly
incorporating climate-resilient designs. The National
Building Code of India 2016 provides guidelines for such
practices.

Legal

Regulatory Compliance: Stringent norms enforced by the
RBI and NHB significantly impact the industry. The RBI has
Owned Fund (NOF)
requirement to X20 crore and raised the liquid asset
requirements from 13% to 15% of public deposits by March
2025. These measures strengthen financial stability and

increased the minimum Net

https://www.thehindubusinessline.com/money-and-banking/hfcs-eye-12-14-aum-expansion-on-back-of-housing-and-developer-loans/article67988330.ece
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compliance standards for housing finance companies
(HFCs).*

Land Acquisition Laws: Land acquisition remains complex due
to lengthy approval processes and legal challenges governed by
the Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Resettlement Act,
2013. This requires thorough understanding and strategic
planning to mitigate risks.

Company Overview

Established in 2006, IIFL Home Finance (formerly known as India
Infoline Housing Finance Limited) is a prominent subsidiary of
IIFL Finance Limited, a market leader in the Indian financial
services sector. The company received its registration certificate
from the National Housing Bank (NHB) in 2009, marking its
establishment as a trusted provider of home loan solutions in
India. Over the years, IIFL Home Finance has carved a niche in
the housing finance market by offering reliable and accessible
loan products.

In line with its commitment to promoting financial inclusion,
IIFL Home Finance focuses on addressing the needs of
underserved individuals, particularly those in the Economically
(EWS) and Lower-Income Group (LIG)
segments. Recognising that these individuals often have limited
or no credit history and rely on informal income, the company
strives to provide them with opportunities to access financial
services. By focusing on these segments, IIFL Home Finance
aims to bridge the gap in housing finance and contribute to the
broader goal of inclusive economic growth in India.

Weaker Section

Extensive Network, Technology-Driven Approach

With a network of 396 branches across India, the organisation
caters to both salaried and self-employed individuals. The
Company technology-driven lending
processes, offers competitive interest rates and provides
flexible repayment option, consequently enhancing customer
experience. A part of the diversified IIFL Group, the Company
leverages their strength and expertise to provide easy and
affordable home financing solutions throughout India.

utilises advanced

Fostering Innovation and Collaboration

IIFL Home Finance’ flagship platform, ‘Kutumb’, fosters
collaboration within the affordable housing industry. The
initiative brings together architects, construction experts,
developers and government representatives, to bridge the gap
between green and affordable housing solutions in India.
Financial Overview

Furthermore, the Company has enhanced its digital capabilities
through a userfriendly mobile app and revamped website,
providing online loan applications, status tracking and
Additionally, digital
onboarding processes facilitate paperless loan approvals and
faster turnaround times.

convenient account management.

Strategic Partnerships and Sustainability Initiatives

IIFL Home Finance has established co-lending agreements with
several banks and financial institutions, leveraging partner
capabilities and customer bases to provide borrowers with
varied home loan products and competitive pricing.

The Company is committed to sustainability, offering special
interest rate concessions and benefits on loans for
greencertified properties or those incorporating eco-friendly
features. This “Green Housing”
adherence to providing sustainable and affordable housing
solutions in India.

initiative reflects their

Shaping the Future of Housing Finance

By focusing on affordability, financial inclusion and
sustainability, IIFL Home Finance positions itself as a key player
in shaping the future of the Indian housing finance landscape.
Their commitment extends beyond simply providing loans, the
Company ensures they create a positive impact through their

innovative programs and policies.

Business Overview
Business Overview and Strategy for FY24

IIFL Home Finance Ltd. (IIFL HFL) is a leading market player in
the affordable housing segment. Our key objectives have been
to ensure- affordable mortgage options for the middle and
lower income strata and easy access to customers. The
Company over the last couple of years have been deepening
reach and now we have decisively pivoted in the
direction. Today out of an overall branch count of 396,

branches in smaller towns account for 83%

In FY2024, the Company continued to harness the power of
technology to optimise
operations and drive process efficiency. Technology has
enabled us to create the “phygital” model which ensures that
we have expanded our customer base, improved turn around

elevate customer experience,

times and made our entire loan approval process-seamless,
paperless and can be completed in 25 minutes. Inspite of the

Consolidated revenue grew driven by higher disbursals.
Due to better realization of margins, higher disbursals, and flat credit costs.
Lower due to the full-year impact of capital infusion of Rs. 2,200 Cr in August 2022.
Increased due to better realization of NI, higher disbursals, and flat credit costs.
Improved by 60 bps due to a strong legal and collection recovery mechanism.
Maintained the lowest level since FY19 with a provision coverage ratio of 108% on Gross

FY24 Value YoY Growth  Remarks

AUM X35,499 Cr 25% Driven by higher disbursals.
Disbursal 12,861 Cr 28% Net disbursals grew on a YoY basis.
Revenue %3,317Cr 22%

PAT 1,017 Cr 32%

ROE 16.9% -

ROA 4.4% -

Gross Stage 3 1.5% -

Net Stage 3 1.0% -

Stage 3 assets.
CRAR 42.7% -

3https://dea.gov.in/sites/default/files/Report%200f%20the%20Task%20Force%20National%20Infrastructure%20Pipeline%20%28NI1P%29%20-%20volume-i_1.pdf
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rapid branch and manpower expansion, extensive use of
technology has enabled us in maintaining our opex to AUM
ratios at 1.8%. Our asset light model approach has been
working well for us in the past years and this year as well we
have seen great success in the model. Our approach has been
to have a well balanced mix of onbook and off-book liabilities.
Apart from conventional borrowing from banks, mutual funds,
refinancing from National Housing Board, the Company has
also borrowed funds from various multilaterals and DFls

During FY2024, IIFL HFL Assets Under Management (AUM) grew
to H 354.99 Bn (USD 4.29 Bn), a growth of 25% with a balance
sheet size of H 253.34Bn (USD 3.06 Bn) by the end of the fiscal
year.

Following the footsteps of the Government’s ‘Housing for All’
mission, IIFL HFL has made significant strides in catering to
varied clientele through the Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme
(CLSS). The disbursements amount to over H 12,861 Cr as of
March 31, 2024. The Company has introduced specialised
norms across various states, including Andhra Pradesh, Tamil
Nadu, Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh and Punjab,
supporting the Beneficiary-Led Construction (BLC) Scheme of
the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs.

IIFL HFL's continued collaboration with state bodies facilitates
the expansion and promotion of its vision for sustainable and
affordable housing. These partnerships with State Level Nodal
Agencies (SLNAs) for the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna PMAY(U)
across multiple states highlights the Company’s commitment to
enhancing housing accessibility and affordability across India.

Segment Overview
Home Loans

IIFL Home Finance Ltd. (lIFL HFL) provides home loans to a
diversified clientele, including salaried
employed persons, professionals, and entrepreneurs. The
Company offers financial assistance to underserved segments
for home purchases, construction, renovations, and plot
acquisitions. Utilizing its ‘Jhatpat’ instant home loan solution,
IIFL HFL ensures swift loan approvals within 25 minutes. In
FY2024, the home loans segment saw a substantial increase in
Assets Under Management (AUM), reaching H 274.38 Bn This
growth highlights IIFL HFL’s focus on low-ticket size loans and its
consistent efforts to make homeownership accessible to first-
time buyers and borrowers from informal sectors, particularly
in non-metro and lower-tier cities.

individuals, self-

Secured Business Loans

IIFL HFL offers secured business loans backed by residential or
commercial properties, primarily targeting
mediumsized enterprises (SMEs). These loans meet the
working capital needs and other business-related financial
requirements of SMEs. In FY2024, the AUM for this segment

small and

experienced a growth of 28%, achieving a total of H 72.5 Bn.
This performance indicates the Company’s commitment to
supporting the financial needs of the SME sector. A robust
credit underwriting framework and a dedicated team ensure
reliable financing solutions for consumers.

Affordable Housing Project Finance

The Affordable Housing Project Finance segment recorded an
AUM of H 8.1Bn in FY2024, demonstrating significant growth in
the industry. IIFL HFL focuses on offering customized project
financing solutions to developers for the construction and
development of residential and mixed-use projects. The
Company focuses on funding environmentally and socially
sustainable projects to achieve Green Building Certification.
This strategy aligns with IIFL HFLs retail portfolio while
supporting the Company’s objective to aid economic growth
while promoting environmental and social sustainability.
Moving forward, IIFL HFL aims to continue identifying and
financing sustainable projects to reinforce its commitment to
broaden the goals of sustainable development and inclusive
growth.

Government initiatives

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) is the Government of
India’s flagship program aimed at providing affordable
housing to all. With a dedicated department working across
India, IIFL Home Finance have taken up housing finance
under PMAY as one of their core businesses.

The Company is actively collaborating with various state
governments and central government departments to
and provide housing
Economically Weaker Sections (EWS) and Low-Income
Groups (LIG). The Company’s focus is on the Affordable
Housing in Partnership (AHP) and Beneficiary-Led
Construction (BLC) verticals of PMAY, as the Credit-Linked
Subsidy Scheme (CLSS) is currently not operational.

construct subsidies for the

The Company has achieved significant success with the BLC
component in Andhra
Pradesh, formalizing a partnership with the state through a

(Beneficiary-Led Construction)

Memorandum of Understanding. This initiative provides
additional financing for BLC houses, ranging from Rs. 3-5
lakhs. The Company has assisted over 25,000 BLC customers
in Andhra Pradesh, marking the largest disbursement in this
PMAY component by any Housing Finance Company in a
single Currently, the Company processes
approximately 1,800 to 2,000 cases per month in Andhra
Pradesh.

state.

Despite slower progress in other states due to various
challenges, the Company aims to expand its geographic
footprint to Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra, Gujarat, Tamil
Nadu, Karnataka, and Madhya Pradesh. For the Affordable
Housing in Partnership (AHP) component, the Company

https://www.thehindubusinessline.com/money-and-banking/hfcs-eye-12-14-aum-expansion-on-back-of-housing-and-developer-loans/article67988330.ece
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focuses on approximately 8-10 states, with a strong
presence in Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Delhi, Maharashtra, Uttar
Pradesh, and Madhya Pradesh.

Challenges

While implementing PMAY, several challenges have been

data management, variable information levels stored by
StateLevel Nodal Agencies (SLNAs), and issues with
ownership documents provided by beneficiaries. Despite
these hurdles, the Company’s professional team has been
trained to navigate these state-specific challenges and align
the strategies with the Government's 'Housing for All'

encountered through the operations including inefficient agenda.

PMAY-U PERFORMANCE
PMAY- U verticals

BLC 73.76 59.88 28.11
CLSS 23.97

AHP 20.63 13.27 6.63
ISSR 433 6.43 4.9

Nos. in lakhs; Source: Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs- MIS, June 2022

Strengths

Leveraging Technology for Customer Centricity

With the aid of strategic technological integration, the Company ensures homeownership is made accessible and affordable. With 391*
touchpoints enhanced by a 'Phygital' approach, this integration enables the Company to expand into new markets. This strategy streamlines
operations while building sustained connections with customers. By capitalising on technological advancements, the Company offers
personalised solutions and transparency, optimises operations and elevates customer satisfaction.

*Excluding Gurgaon Udyog Vihar and Kochi

Comprehensive Credit Underwriting and Efficient Loan Processing

A meticulous credit underwriting process, complemented by advanced technological implementations such as artificial intelligence and machine
learning, forms the backbone of the Company. These technologies facilitate an in-depth credit assessment and ensure swift loan processing with
minimum risks. The Company leverages custom-developed systems and smart technologies to provide a seamless loan processing for their
consumers. The system ensures significant reduction in errors and turnaround times. This infrastructure positions the Company as a reliable
provider for individuals seeking uncomplicated and dependable home financing solutions.

Robust Risk Management

The Company's solid risk management framework exemplifies its commitment to safe and responsible lending practices. Designed to proactively
identify and mitigate lending-related risks while complying with regulatory requirements, this framework blends technological and human
expertise to ensure comprehensive risk assessment. This approach safeguards both the Company's operations and its customers, reinforcing
stability and trust.

Expanding Presence in Tier 3 and 4 Cities

The Company aims to expand its geographic footprint in Tier 3 and 4 cities by broadening its branch network and targeting unexplored market
segments. This expansion aligns with the commitment to make homeownership more accessible for all individuals, especially those living in the
areas traditionally underserved by the financial sector. The Company curates tailored financial solutions to support the growing demand for
affordable housing, reinforcing its dedication to contribute towards financial inclusion.

Strong Corporate Governance

The foundation of the Company is built upon corporate governance, ensuring transparency and accountability in all its activities. With a
governance structure that includes the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee and an Internal Audit function, the
Company conducts businesses with integrity and adhering to ethical standards. This governance framework is crucial for building stakeholder
trust and delivering value in a responsible manner.

3https://dea.gov.in/sites/default/files/Report%200f%20the%20Task%20Force%20National%20Infrastructure%20Pipeline%20%28NI1P%29%20-%20volume-i_1.pdf
“https://pib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspx?PRID=2001130
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Opportunities

Rising Urbanization and Demographic Shifts

With continuous urban migration and a significant demographic
that is increasingly becoming economically active, it provides a
lucrative market for home loans as younger generation is
prioritising homeownership.

Digital Transformation

With the advent of digitalisation, loan processing and approvals
have become a seamless experience. This has enabled the Company
to expand the customer base, especially among tech-savvy
consumers.

Government Initiatives and Schemes

Programs like Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) and other
affordable housing schemes create a conducive environment for
increased lending, particularly targeting the LIG and EWS segments.

Increasing women ownership

Governmental initiatives, such as reduced stamp duties and PMAY
subsidies, have facilitated a transformative shift in the home finance
sector. A rise in women investing in residential properties has been
observed, contributing to the industry's expansion.

Fintech and Co-Lending Models

The emergence of fintech startups and the adoption of co-lending
models with banks have diversified reach, streamlined processes
and provided innovative lending solutions to enable exploring the
underserved markets.

Affordable Housing Finance Growth

The focus on affordable housing finance caters to a significant
population portion. Addressing the demand in Tier Il and Tier Il
cities, contributes to volume growth in home loans.

Green Home Loans

The increasing awareness of environment and increasing shift
towards sustainable living has opened new avenues for green home
loans, incentivizing eco-friendly housing projects and investments.

Threats

Dominance of Banks: Banks' significant market share in the
prime home loan segment poses a competitive challenge to
HFCs and NBFCs, potentially limiting their market penetration
and growth.

Project Delays and Approvals: A delay in projects’ approval
can inhibit the construction of new properties, affecting the
demand for home loans and impacting the growth of housing
finance companies.

Collateral and Title Risks: Risks associated with collateral
fraud and discrepancies in property titles, especially in
hinterlands, peri-urban areas and in relatively new
developments, can lead to financial losses and undermine
investor confidence.

Interest Rate Fluctuations: The potential for rising interest
rates, influenced by macroeconomic factors and monetary
policy, can affect loan affordability and demand, posing a risk
to the housing loan market growth.

Economic Slowdowns: Any downturn in the economy can
reduce disposable incomes and affect job security, directly
impacting borrowers' ability to take new loans or repay
existing ones, thereby increasing NPAs.

Regulatory Changes: Changes in regulations, such as those
related to lending practices, KYC norms or taxation, can
introduce operational challenges and increase compliance
costs, affecting profitability and growth.

Strong Corporate Governance

The foundation of the Company is built upon corporate governance, ensuring
transparency and accountability in all its activities. With a governance
structure that includes the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee and an Internal Audit function, the Company
conducts businesses with integrity and adhering to ethical standards. This
governance framework is crucial for building stakeholder trust and delivering
value in a responsible manner.

Risk Management Overview

Risk Management is a pivotal element of IIFL Home Finance Ltd.'s
operational ethos. Acknowledging risks is an inherent component of
the business landscape, therefore, the Company focuses on effective
risk mitigation. IIFL follows a comprehensive, enterprise-wide risk
management framework, that is adept at identifying and analysing
risks promptly, and providing proactive measures to manage potential
impacts effectively.

Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Framework

The Company employs the 'Three Lines of Defence' strategy to
structure its risk management approach:

. Operational Management

. Specialised Functions such as Risk
Management and Compliance

. Internal Audit

https://www.thehindubusinessline.com/money-and-banking/hfcs-eye-12-14-aum-expansion-on-back-of-housing-and-developer-loans/article67988330.ece

8https://www.undp.org/india/press-releases/india-shows-progress-human-development-index-ranks-134-out-193-

countries#:~:text=0f%20193%20countries,India%20shows%20progress%20in%20Human%20Development%20Index%2C%20ranks%20134%200ut,the%20medium%20human%20developmen

°https://faceofindia.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/1.-Fintech-personal-loans_21st-Feb-2024_website.pdf

Ohttps://www.rbi.org.in/scripts/BS_PressReleaseDisplay.aspx?prid=57128



The Company is governed by the Board and supported by a
dedicated Risk Management Committee, seeking to balance risk and
return optimally, fostering
stakeholders.

sustainable value creation for

Credit Risk

The Company has instituted a robust credit risk management
architecture, utilising policies, procedures and advanced analytics to
enhance credit decision-making. By integrating machine learning
tools for real-time data analysis, the Company efficiently assesses
The Company is governed by the Board and supported by a
dedicated Risk Management Committee, seeking to balance risk and
return optimally, fostering
stakeholders.

sustainable value creation for

Credit Risk

The Company has instituted a robust credit risk management
architecture, utilising policies, procedures and advanced analytics to
enhance credit decision-making. By integrating machine learning tools
for real-time data analysis, the Company efficiently assesses borrowers'
creditworthiness. An independent internal audit team ensures
compliance, while stress testing systems conduct sensitivity analyses to

pinpoint potentially at-risk accounts.

Operational Risk

Operational risks are addressed through stringent internal control
systems and procedural monitoring to uphold process integrity across
the business. Responsibilities are clearly delineated with comprehensive
access, authorisation and reconciliation protocols in place. Digitisation
of credit operations significantly reduces reliance on manual tasks,
minimising errors through automation.

Liquidity Risk

The Company maintains a rigorous Liquidity Risk Management
framework, ensuring the availability of funds at optimal costs to meet
financial obligations and support growth. The Asset and Liability
Management Committee closely monitors liquidity risks, employing an
adaptive Asset Liability Management (ALM) framework to manage
financial assets and liabilities' maturity profiles efficiently.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risks are managed by balancing loan durations and adopting
diversified funding strategies. This approach optimises the borrowing
profile, aiming to reduce costs and enhance fund stability.

Foreign Exchange Risk

A conservative hedging policy manages foreign currency exposure
through Forward contracts and Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps,
setting fixed outflows in functional currency and minimising PBT and
equity impacts due to rate fluctuations.

Regulatory Risk

The Company actively monitors regulatory landscape changes, adapting
systems and practices promptly to comply with new directives and
maintain operational integrity.

IT and Data Risk

Overseen by the IT Strategy Committee, the IT risk mitigation strategy
aligns IT and business strategies, addressing security threats and
ensuring infrastructure compliance remains updated.

Climate Risk

Acknowledging the impact caused due to climate change, the Company
explores methods for resilience analysis against climate-related physical
and transitional risks. Initiatives such as obtaining LEED certification for
its Gurgaon Head Office and embracing digital and paperless operations
underscore its commitment to sustainability and climate risk
management.

Customer service and leadership

IIFL Home Finance has evolved to provide comprehensive solutions
tailored to the unique needs of its customers. The journey began with
understanding the gaps that exist between government subsidies and
the actual cost of constructing or purchasing a home. Products are
designed to bridge this gap, offering affordable financing solutions that
keep customers' repayment capacities in mind.

A commitment to customer centricity extends from the moment a
customer lead is acquired to their complete wish fulfilment. Dedicated
teams focus on different stages of the customer journey, ensuring a
seamless experience throughout. Field representatives visit customers
in their communities, onboarding them digitally and providing on-the-
spot solutions.

In line with the Government of India's 'Housing for All' mission,
strategies and processes are aligned to cater to the underserved
segments of society. Technology is leveraged to expand and provide
accessible solutions, even
institutions may not have a presence.

in areas where traditional financial

A significant shift from email to WhatsApp as a communication channel
has been made to provide faster resolutions and greater convenience,
with enhanced WhatsApp features including loan summaries, document
downloads, and payment links. The DIY system, which automates ticket
processing, further enhances efficiency and customer satisfaction. The
integration of an ORM solution and an advanced ticket management
process has streamlined query resolution and improved service delivery.

Looking ahead, IIFL Home Finance is implementing new Business Rule
Management logics for workflows such as part payments, rate changes,
and EMI cycle date changes, aiming for straight-through processing and
further operational efficiency.

In line with the developments in customer service the CSAT survey
scores increased from 2.27 in May '23 to 3.17 in March '24.

Human Resources

IIFL Home Finance has implemented robust HR strategies to attract,
develop, and retain top talent in alignment with its growth plans. The
company utilizes an RPO model, apprenticeship program tie-ups,
competitive compensation structures, and focused campus hiring from
Tier I, Ill, and IV towns. Significant milestones include transitioning to a
new HRMS, crossing 5,600 employees, and consistently achieving Great
Place to Work certification.

3https://dea.gov.in/sites/default/files/Report%200f%20the%20Task%20Force%20National%20Infrastructure%20Pipeline%20%28NIP%29%20-%20volume-i_1.pdf

“https://pib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspx?PRID=2001130

*https://www.careratings.com/uploads/newsfiles/1708066976_Affordable%20Housing%20Finance_CareEdge%20Report.pdf

Shttps://pib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspx?PRID=1832644
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of IIFL. Home Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of IIFL. Home Finance Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprchensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matier

Impairment of loans as at the balance sheet date (including determination of expected credit

losses)

(as described in note 3 {j) of the standalone financial statements)

its loans using the Expected Credit Loss
(“ECL”} model. ECL involves an
estimation of probability weighted loss
on financial assets over their lile,
considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions and other factors
which could impact the credit quality of
the Company’s loans.

In the process, a significant degree of

judgement has been applied by the

management for:

a} Defining qualitative/ quantitative
factors for ‘significant increase in
credit risk” (“SICR™) and ‘default’.

b} Grouping’ of borrowers (retail loan
portfolio) based on homogeneity for
estimating probability of default, loss
given default and exposure at default

¢) Determining effect of less frequent
past events on future probability of

default.

d) Determining MAacro-economic
factors impacting credit quality of
loans.

In view of the high degree of
management’s judgement involved in
estimation of ECL., impairment of loans
as at the balance sheet date (including
expected credit losse) is a key audit
matier,

The Company provide for impairment of

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Considered the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of loans and assessed compiiance of the
policies with Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments and
the governanee framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to applicable Reserve Bank of
India guidelines. (“the RBI Guidelines™).

e Evaluated the reasonableness of the management
estimates by understanding the process of ECL
estimation and related assumptions. Tested the
internal controls around extraction, validation and
computation of the input data used in such
estimation.

» Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their past-due status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring them
to be classified under stage 2 f{i.e. defauit in
repayment is within the range of 31 to 90 days) or
stage or 3 (i.e. the default in repayment is more than
50 days).

e Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company.

s Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included in the
standalone financial statements with the relevant
requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109.

QOther Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report. but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other mfnrmdtlon and we de not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. : -

B N
R
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In connection with our audit ot the standalone f{inancial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If; based on the work we have perforined, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Respongibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to ccase operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalene financial statements as
a whole are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misctatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedupes = =
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sectioy (i) of the Act, we aresalsa .. 7
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responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference 10 standalone financial staternents in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, included in these
standalone financial statements, have been audited by the one of the joint auditors t.e. Suresh Surana &
Associates LLP and cone of the predecessor auditors i.e. M. P. Chitale & Co. who expressed an
unumodified opinion on those standalone financial statements vide their report dated April 24, 2023,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

[

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the bcst of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; o
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entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date
of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.

vi. Based on our examination which cluded test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICALFjrm registration number: 101049W/E300004

Ramesh Gé‘upta
Partner

Membership No.: 102306
UDIN: 24102306BKCGAP4841 ~x.

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership No.: 094533
UDIN: 24094533BKEXFG3152

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 6 May 2024 Date: 6 May 2024
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1o companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are, prima facie.
not prejudicial to the Company's interest,

(ni)c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company as part
of its business of providing loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature
of loan transactions, it is not practicable to furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date
for repayment cr receipt and the cxtent of delay (as suggested in the Guidance Note on
CARO 2020, issued by the I[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under
this clause), in respect of loans and advances which were not repaid / paid when they
were due or were repaid / paid with a delay, in the normal course of lending business.

Further, except for 33,931 loans having total amount outstanding of Rs. 2,330.26 crores
and overdue amount of Rs. 76.01 crores as at March 31, 2024 where there are delays or
defaults in repayment of principal and / or interest as at the balance sheet date, the parties
are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of
interest, as applicable.

(i) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount of cases which
are overdue for more than ninety days as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 340.91 crores and the
number of such cases are 6,632, In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have
been taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

(iti}e) Since, the Company’s principal business is to give loans and accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii}(H The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifving any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(f) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companics Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the
Company.

{v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any

amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed under sub-section 1 of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii)a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues inciuding goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to sales
tax, service tax, duty of custems, duty of excise, value added tax and ccss_are not
applicable to the Company. T

gon,

-
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end. for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(vii}(b) The dues of goods and service tax, provident fund, employvees’ state insurance. income
lax, sales tax, service tax. duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues as applicable to the Company, which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute, are as follows:

Nature of Amount Amount Period to
under . . Forum where
Name of the . paid* which the . .
N . dispute . the dispute is
the statute | disputed . (Rs. in amount .
(Rs in pending
dues crores) relates
crores)
Income Tax | income
a8* S Y. 201922 1T
Act. 1961 | Tax 7.28 7.28 F.Y.2019-20 | CIT (Appeals)
Goods and | Goods
Services and Sy A Commissioner of
Tax Act, Services 0.76 0.04 b.Y. 2017-18 Appeals- Delhi
2017 Tax
* paid under protest
" adjusted against refund
{viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded

in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(ix}a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared as a wiltul defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender during the year.

{ix)(c) Money raised during the year by the Company by way of term loans has been applied for
the purpose for which they were raised other than temporary depioyment pending
application of proceeds.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been prima facie used for long-term purposes
during the year by the Company.

(1x)(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has pot taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to mect the
obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

(ix)}(H The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture,

Ny
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(x)(a) The Company bas not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /

further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{x)(b) The Company has not made any preterential allotment or placement of fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Further, the Company has not raised
money by way of private placement of shares during the year ended March 31, 2024,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{xi¥a) No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

{x1)(b) During the year and up to the date of this report, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been fhled by secretarial auditor or by
predecessor auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{xi¥c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xi1) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiit) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of

Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv){a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business,
{xiv)}{b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the

period under audit have been considered by us.

{xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(xvi}{b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

{xvi)c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) oi the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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{xvi)(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016), hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the cument financial year or the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii} One of the predecessor joint statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the
year pursuant to the requirements of the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central
Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs),
UCRBs and NBFC (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021, issued by the Reserve Bank of
India, and there are no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38B.(g) to the standalone financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statcments,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
ligbilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 {the
“Act™), in compliance with sccond proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 38A to the standalone financial statements.

H0O(h) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transterred unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility {CSR) amount as at the end of the current tinancial year, to a Special
account within a period of 30 days from the end of the current financial year in
compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 38A to the standalone financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FCAN\Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 ICAI Firm registration number: 121750W/W100010

Ramest Gupta

Partier

Membership No.: 102306 : -
UDIN: 24102306BKCGAP4841 =

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership No.: 094533
UDIN: 24094533BKEXFG3152

Place: Mumbai ‘ Place: Mumbai
Date: 6 May 2024 Date: 6 May 2024
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Reguiatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements of
liFL. Home Finance Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements (“standalone financial statements™) of the Company for the year
ended on that date. ‘

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control cver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*JCAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone {inancial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controis with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalonz financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these standalone {inancial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria cstablished by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
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IiIFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024

The estimated useful life of assets is as under:

: Useful Life as per Schedule §i Useful lifeasper °

Class of assets Companies Act Company
]E::::;Tent property Real 60 years / 30 years 20 years
Computers 3 years 3 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 years
Electrical Equipment?* 10 years 5 years
Furniture and fixtures* 10 years 5 years
Vehicles* 8 years 5 years

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation
carried out by external valuers, the Management believes that the useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which Management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful fives
for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1l of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Intangible assets i.e. Software are amortised on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
3 years.

(f)  impairment of Assets other than financials assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE,
intangible assets, intangible assets under development and investment property assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. if
such indication exists, the PPE, intangible assets, intangible assets under development and
investment property are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

If recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. -




















































11FL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Netes forming part of Standalone Financial Statenients as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

Note 4A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particnlars AsatMarch 31, 2024  AsatMarvch 31,2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.56 1.54
Cheques on hand 1.22 1058.73
Balance with banks

-In curvent accounts 268.17 82,64

-In deposit accounts (original maturity less than or equal to three months) 500.20 1,438.35
Cash and cash equivalents 771.15 1.628.26
Note 4B. Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

¥ in Crores

Particulars
Other bank balances

Asat March 31,2024 - Asat March 31, 2023

In earmarked accounts

- Unclaimed interest and redemption proceeds of NCDs 4.64 4,70
In deposit accounts {refer note 4B.1 bejow) 294.59 354.59
Total 299.23 359.29
Note 4B.1 Out of the deposit accounts shown above:
T in Crores
Particulars AsarMarch 31, 2024  AsatMarch 31,2023
Lien marked towards overdralt facilities 166.54 157,24
Lien marked towards other commitments 47.23 1542
Margin for eredit enhancement 80.80 80.68
Total 294.57 253,34
[ o
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HFL HOME PINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 1%, 2024

Note 5. Derivatives financlal instruments

{¥in Crores)

AsatMarch 31,2024 - . "~ AsatMarch33,2023
Notlonal amounts - Falr value - assets l;‘;i;ﬁ::;:: Net Asset / {Liabilitles) Notionalamounts  Fair value - assels l;?f;,:{:::ﬁ; {tf;;iss:;;

{1) Currency derivatives:

-Cross currency interest rate swaps 413.10 - 4.26 {4.26) 363.08 44.02 - 44.02

Subtotal {j) 413.10 - 4.26 (4.26) 363.08 44,02 - 44.02

(i1} Other derivatives

-Forward contract 1,092.46 1.65 - 1.65 968.75 - 2.03 (2.03)

Subtotal {ii) 1,092.46 1.65 . 1.65 968.75 - 2,03 £2.03)

Total derivative {i+ii)} 1,505.56 1.65 4,26 {2.61) 1,331.83 44.02 2.03 41.99
(X in Crores)

AsatMarch 31, 2;12& Asat March 3;,2823

Fair value - . n " et Fair value - _‘ Net Asset /
Habilities NetAsset / {Liabilities]  Notionalamounts  Fair value - assets liabilities (Liabilities)

Notional amounts  Fair value - assets

inctuded in above (Part I} are derivatives
held {or hedging and risk management
purposes as follows:

{1} Cash flow hedging:
- Currency derivatives 413.10 - 4.26 {4.26) 363.08 44.02 - 44.02
-Forward contract 1,092.46 1.65 ~ 1.65 - - - -
{11} Undesignated derivatives
-Forward contract - - - - 968.753 - 2.03 (2.03)

'I;i;a)i derivative financial instruments 1,505.56 1.65 426 (z.61) 1,331.83 44.02 203 41.99

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractua) obligations resulting in financial oss to the Company. The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its
ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are interest rate and currency risk. Refer Note 5.1 and 39 A.3{il).

(¥ in Croves)
Particulars ~ (Tom}l Exchange traded ¢ Over the counter
National Fair value Notional Falr value National Fair value

As at March 31,2024
Derivative asset - 1.65 - - - 1.65
Derivative labilities - 4.26 - - - 4.26
Net Derivative Asset / {Liabilities) 1,505.56 (2.61) - - 1,505.56 {2.61)
As at March 31, 2023
Derivative asset - 44,02 - - - 44.02
Derivative liabilities - 2.03 “ - ~ 2.03
Net Derlvative Asset / (Liabilities) 1,331.83 41.99 - 1,332 41,99




11FL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

5.1 Hedging activities and derivatives

5.1.1 Derivatlves designated as hedging instruments

The foreign curvency and interest rate risk on borrowings have been actively hedged through a combination of forward
contracts and cross carrency interest rate swaps.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from its foreign currency borrowings amounting to USD 18.16 Crores.
{as at March 31, 2023 USD 16.7% Crores). Interest on the horrowing is payable at a floating rate linked to USD LIBOR. The
Company hedged the interest rate risk arising from the debt with a receive floating pay fixed’ cross currency interest rate
swap and also with a Derivative Forward Contract,

The Company uses Cross Currercy Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) Contracts {Floating to Fixed) and Forward Exchange Contracts
to hedge its risks associated with interest rate and currency fluctuations arising from foreign currency loans / external
commercial borrowings, The Cempany designates such contracts in a cash flow hedging refationship by applying the hedge
accounting principles as per IND AS, These contracts are stated at fair value at each reporting date.

The Company uses Critical Terms Matching to deternine Hedge effectiveness. If the hedge is ineffective, then the movement
in the Fair Value is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, if the hedge is effective, the movement in the Fair Value of the
underlying and the derivative instrument is transferred to "Other Comprehensive Income” in Other Equity.

There is an economic relationskip between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the critical terms of the Forward
contracts/Cross Currency interest Rate Swaps match that of the foreign currency borrowings (notional amount, interest
payment dates, principal repayment date etc). The Company has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging
relationships as the underlying risk of the Forward contracts/Cross currency interest rate swaps are identical to the hedged
risk companents.

2 in Crores

Partleulars : AsatMarch 31,2024  AsatMarch 33, 2023

Notignal amount 150556 1,331.83
Carrying amount - Asset / (Liability} (2.611 41,99
jvati anci ivative i
Line item in the statement of financial position Dm,vamc financial Dm,va financial
instrument instrument
Change in fair value used for measuring ineffectiveness for the year {5.70} 10.04

Zin Crores

impactof hedging item g FY 2023-24 FY 2622.23

Change in fair value

Cash flow hedge reserve
Fair vajue change charged in Statement of Profit & Loss - {2.56)

Effect of Cash flow hedge Y 2023-24 Y 2022.73
Total hedging gain / (loss] recognised in GCI (5,70} 12,60

Total hedging gain / (loss) recognised in the statement of profit or (loss) . {2.56)

FY 2022-33

RHedging gain / {loss) recagnised in OC) FY 2023-24
{Gain}/Loss On Swap Transaction 49.60
|{Gain)/Loss On Mark To Marke: On Fluctuation Of Foreign Exchange [48.52) {32.76)
Tax implication on above {1.91) {4.24]
Total 5.70 12.60

% in Crores

Hedging gain 7 (foss) recognised in the statement of profitor floss}) FY 2023-24 FY 202223

Gain/(Loss On Swap Transaction - {0.53)
Gain/(Loss) On Mark To Market On Fluctuation Of Foreign Exchange - {203
Tax implication on above -

Total - (256
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HFL HOME HINANCE LIMITED

Notes Tormng par? of Standalone Finaneis) Ratements 25 at sud [or the yeor ended March 3t 2024
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1iFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 9, Other financial assels

Particulars

At Amurtised Cost

AsatMarch 31,
2024

{3 in Crores

Asat March 31,
2023

Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 3.64 2.40
- Unseeured, which have significant increase in credit risk 0.76 092
Less: impairment loss allowance {Refer Note 9.1 below) {0,763 {0.92)
Interest strip asseton assignment 374.55 375.59
QOther receivables® 108.25 74.37
Total 486.44 452,36

* Includes amount pertaining to receivables on account of assignment transaction.

Note 9.1. impairinent loss allowance on Security Deposits infrores
AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 20724 2023

Opening provision 0.92 0.80
Additons 0.04 0.13
Reductions (0,18} {6.01)
Closing provision 0.76 0,92

Note 10, Deferred tax assets {Net)

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Hecognisod

AR Recognised
Opening in Statement of
Particulars balance Profitand m/; eclasosé?ed halance
S ram
Deferred tax assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.63 012 - 0.75
Expected credit losses 127,22 {33.59) - 93,63
Provision for employee benefits 2.52 1.52 0.21 4.25
Leage liabilities 7.66 2.86 - 10.52
Adjustment pertaining to income and expenses recognition based on
effective interest rate 26.83 4.13 - 30.96
Fair value of financial instruments 0.40 0.40
Fair value of derivative financal instruments [11.20} - 14.13 2.93
Total deferred tax assets {A} 153.66 {2495} 14.74 143.44
Deferred tax labilities:
Interest strip asset on assignment (94.54) 0.25 - (94.29)
Fair value of financial instruments {6.50} {1.49] - {7.99)
Right of use of Assets {6.99 {2,713 ~ 19.70}
Total deferred tax liabilities (B} (168.03) (3.95) - (111.98)
Deferred tax assets (A+B) 45,63 {2891} 14.74 31.46

Significant components of deferred tax assets and Habilities as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:

RParticulars

Gpening

balance

Recopgnised
inStatementof
Profitang

Recognised
infreclassified
from OCE

% in Crores

Closing
halance

Deierred tax assets:

Property, Plant and Equipment 0.64 {0.01) - 0.63
Expected credit josses 12813 {0.91} - 127.22
Provision for employee benefits 162 0.78 .12 252
Fair value of derivative financial instruments - A . B
IRight of use of Assets and lease liabilities 0.60 3.06 - 0.66
Adjustment pertaining to income and expenses recognition based on

effective interest rate 20.17 6.66 - 26.83
Total deferred tax assets {4) 151.16 6.58 0.12 157.86
Deferred tax Habilities:

Provision for Bad and Doubtful debts under section 36{1){viia) {8831 8,83 B
interest strip assct on assignment {76.28) {18.26) - (54.54}
Fair vaiue of financial instruments {3.23) {3.44) 0.17 (6.50}
¥air value of derivative financial instruments 1.27 ~ {12.47) {11.24)
Fotal deferred tax liabilitics {B) (87.07) (12.87} (12.30) (112.24)
Deferred tax assets (A+B) 54.09 {6.29} (12.18) 45.62







ITFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financiai Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 11A.2, Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company
As at March 31,2024 (X in Crores}
V : Whether title deed

holder is promoter,

Particulars o Description ofitem . Gross Carrving  Title Deedsheldin  divector orvelativeof  Property held since ﬁi‘;ﬁ";ﬁ:ﬁ;“ggi‘fﬁ
o N of property. Value the name of promoter. director or which date ’
: the Company
employee of
promoter/director
Investment Property Building 275 Borrower to whom No January 10, 2020 Acquired in the

loan has been given SARFAES! Proceedings

As at March 31,2023 {%in Crores}
2 : 4 ‘ : = Whether title deed -

holder is promoter,

e . . Descrii;tion ofitem Grbsstarrying Title Deeds held in  director or relative of Property held since -Reasa*n SR
“ Particulars : , " : held in the name of
" of property Value the name of promoter. divector or which date
; the Company
- employee of
promoter/director
Investment Property Building -2.75 Borrower Lo whom No January 10, 2020 Acquired in the

SARFAESI Proceedings

loan has been given

Note: Due to the voluminous nature of transactions and sensitivity of the information, individual borrower wise details, in whose name the title deeds are held are
not disclosed.




IIFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

Note 11B. Property, Plantand Equipment

Freehold . Furnlture & - Office Electrical

. Partirulars

Land* isture  Equipment  Equipment Coniputers Vehicles Total

As at March 31, 2022 9.09 153 0.95 0.78 18.26 1361
Additions . 022 0.15 0.64 4.21 0.69 591
Deductions /Adjustments - 0.08 0.01 0.04 212 - 2.25
As at March 31, 2023 0.09 1.67 1.09 1.38 12.35 0.69 17.27
Addirions - 0.62 2.25 .45 3.77) - 5,08
Peductions/Adjustmenss - 0.31 3.08 0,15 2.39 - 2.93
As at March 31, 2024 .09 1.98 1.26 1.68 13.73 0.59 19.42
Accumunlated Depreciation

As at March 31, 2022 - 0.95 0.63 0.51 4.97 - 7.06
Depreciation for the year - 0.26 015 0.21 274 0.03 341
Deductions/Adjustments - 0.07 0.01 0,04 .73 - 0.85
As at March 31, 2023 - 1.14 0.77 0.68 6.98 0.05 .62
Depreciation for the year - 0.3s 0.17 0.27 3.36 014 4.29
Deductions/Adjustments - 0.23 .04 0.08 155 - 1.91
As at March 31, 2024 - 1.26 0.90 0.87 8.79 0.19 12,00
Net Block as at March 31,2023 2.09 0.53 0.32 0.70 3.37 0.64 7.65
Net Block as at March 31,2024 0.09 .72 0.36 0.81 4.94 0.50 7.42

* The above Freehold Land is hypotheticated with Debenture Trustee(s) for Issue of secured non-convertible debentures,

Note 12. Intangible asset under deveiopment
{%in Crores)

" Particalars AsatMarch 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023
Opening balance v 0.11 -
Additions during the year 0.34 0.11
Capitalised during the year 0.11 -
Closing balance 0.34 0.11
Ageing schedufe

o Asat March A1, 2024

Particulary Morethan 3

2years . Z3years years

Projects in progress
{Projects temporarily suspended { - -4 - 1 . -

AsatMarch 34,2023 °

8 Mbrethan 3
1-2 yoars 2-3yeary years

Less than
1 year

Partculars

Projects In progress
Projects temporarily suspended

No projects were delayed for completion or had exceeded its cust compared to its original plan,

Note 13A. Other Intangible Assets
{%in Crores
313344 <)
Bart]
i

As at Maych 31, 2022 1,22

Additions 0.47
Deductons/adiustinents -
As at March 31, 2023 1.69
Additions 0.45
Deductions /Adjustments -
As at March 31, 2024 2.14
Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31, 2022 104
Depreciation For the year 0.21
Deductions/Adiustments -
As at March 31,2023 1.25
Depreciation For the year 0.33
Deductions/Adjustments -
As at March 31, 2024 1.58
[Net Block as at March 31,2023 I 0.44]
[Net Block as at March 31, 2024 | 0.56]

The Company has not revaiued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use Assets) and Intangible Assets.
e -~




HIFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalene Financial Statements as at and for the year cnded March 31, 2024

Note 1338, Leases

Statement showing movement in lease Habilities

{2 in Crores)

Parfioglare.
Asat March 31, 2022 16.38 1.60 17.38
Additlons 14.91 3.28 18.18
Deductions/Adjustments 2.70 0,08 0.76
Finance cost accrued during the year 2.05 0.18 2.24
Payment of lease Habilities 6.47 G.85 7.32
As at March 31,2023 26.17 3.85 29.72
Additions 21,56 LB1 23.37
Deductions/Adjustments 3.45 0.08 3,53
Finance cost aceried during the year 297 0.34 3.31
Payment of lease labilities 10.43 167 12,10
As at March 31,2024 36.82 395 40.77

Statement showing carrying value of right of use
XinCroreg)

Particulars Premises phicte Total
As atMarch 31,2022 14.50 0,95 1545
Additlons 15.16 3.28 18.44
Deductions /Adhistments 0.65 0.07 0.72
Bepreciation 4.63 076 5.39
As at March 31, 2023 24.38 3.40 27.78
Additions 21.56 181 23.37
Deductions fAdjustiments 2.67 0.07 274
Depreciation 846 140 9.86
As at March 31, 2024 3491 3.74 38.55

Statement showing break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease Llabllities

As gt March  AsatMarch

Particulars 31,2024 - 31,2023

Current [ease liabilities
{Non- Current lease liabilitles

L

Statement showlng contractual maturities of lease Habilitles on an undiscounted basis

30211 3,44

AsatMarch . AsatMarch

Particulars 31,2006 31,2023
Dus tor
Up to One year 13.61 8.55
One year to Two vears 9.29 8.03
Two ta Five years 17,66 13.67
More than Five vears 11.06 7.33
Total 51,62 37.58

Statement showing amount recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss:

Partleulars

Inlerest o tease liabilities 331
Expenses relating to ieases of low-value assets, excluding

0.15 0.21
short-term feases of low value assets
Total 346 245
Statement showing a 1t recognised in Stat t of Cash Flows:

T AsatMareh AvatMarch

Rt 81,2024 31,2023
Payment of interest on lease Labilitles
Payment of lease Habilities 8,79 5.08
Tatal cash outflows for leases 12.10 7.32




HFLBOME FINANCE LIMITEDR
Notes forming part of Standat Finantial St nix as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Nate 14, Other Non Financial Assets

T in Crares

Aviblarch 12004 | nat March 312023

|Capitad agvances aRL) 4.3v
Prepald expenses S 39 1.3,
Advances to vendors 220 208
Staff advances 102 4.0
Toks] 767 5.81

Note 15. Trade Payables

‘Toral outstanding dues of mivre enterprises and small enterprises (Refer nose 134} .12 201
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smalk

epterprises 7G51 47.94
“fotal 73.73 58,95

Note 154, Disclosures under the Micro, Smal and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006

The Company hid requested its supplicrs to confirm the status as to whather they are covered under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 and is in the i s process of ehtsining such confirmation from s suppliers. The disdosure refating to unpaid amount as at the year-end togrther wish
interest paid/payahle as required under the $3id At bave beea given to the mxtent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the
Cumpany regacding the status of suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006,

2 in Crores

51t Maseh 3 §

{8} Principal amadm remalng 4 to diy supplier al s yeur wid 312 ER
(b Interest due therean remaining anpald ¢ any sypplier at the year ead B B

{£) Amount of intersst paid and paymenss made o the supplier beyand the appalnted day during the ytar - .

{d} Amount of interest due and payable for the pecied of delay in making payment {which have been pald but
heyand the appolated day during the year) but witheut adding the tnteress specified under the Act

{e} Amount of interest accrued and remacaing unpald at the year end B N
(F) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the surceeding years, until such date when
the interest dues above are actually paid to the smail enterprise, for the purpase of disatiowance of 2 dedurtible
expenditure under section 23 of the Act R

No interest hat heen paid /s papable by the Company during the year to the Suppliers registered upder this Adt.
The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Tompany 1o fts inquiries with suppliers with regard to dppheabiity under the said Act. This hag been
retied upon by the auditors.

Trade Payables aging echedule

Farticidars Dtstanding for allawing period from the date ol tranraction

lessthan t Year - T2 Years X3 Years Muare thea X years

Asat March 11, 2024

11} Toral outstanding duek of micro EHILTPrises and
smalt enterprises
{15} Total cutstandheg dues of creditors other than
SO ERTRTPIiIes

Axat Marchi 31,2023

{i} Total ourstanding dues of iniceo enterprises and
small enterprises

11} Total volstanding dues of creditors other than
sticrs enterprses and spull enterprises

Note. The Company does not have any disputed Trade Payables.

Note 16. Debt Securities

T ] ATABUFISEd Cast

Farieutars AsstMareh31,2024  AsatMorch 34,2023
Secured:
Non-conyertible debentures - {Refer Note (a), (B and 16.1) 322189 2,10%.31
Zern Coupon Bonds -{Hefer Note (a) and 16.1) 15851 144.91
Total (A} 3,350.40 2,25422
Unsecured:
Commerrial Paper - [Refer Note 1613 23254 -
Tota) (8] 23264 .
Total {A+B) 3,833.04 2,254.22
Pebic securitios in ladia 3603304 2,454.22
Debt securithes vulside [mbia . -

3. The above Non Convertible Cebenturss {NLDs} and Bonds are secwed by way of first pari passa charge i favoor of Debenture Trustee by way of hypethecation
an recejvables of the Company, both present and futare, brak debrs, joans & advances, exeept those rereivables present and/far future specdfically and exclusively
charged in favour of certain exwting charge holders. The NCDs/jBonds, ather than Market baked debentures (MLDs} are issued with fixed toupan rase and
redeemabte at par. NCDs/Beonds in the nature of MLDs are G-Sec Hinked and the Interest {5 payable on maturity

b. Non Convertitle Debentures « Securad includes redeemable non converuble debensure whick carries call option and contams a repayment chause by way af
reductian in face value ¥ 15.00 Crores [from March 20, 2024) {As at March 31, 2023 1 15.04 Crores {from [ecember 20, 2023) and ¥ 15.09 Crores (from March 20, e
2024)) and NCOs carrying eall i put opting of 2 280 B0 Crores (fram Aprd B2, 2025) (A 3t March 31, 2023 ¥ 280.00 Crores {frum Aprd 02, 2025} 4 ’5




HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming partof Standaiose Financial Staterdents as at and far the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 16.1 - Terms of repayment

A4 ox arch 18,2024 i
‘Amonnk Bave of lutecest

Secussd NCD [A)

AL UL AArcn 31, 2123

Hate ol intetent

{a) Fixesd:
More than 5 vears 533,69 5.00% -9 18% 131550 5.0 - 3.1 8%
3- 5 Years $558.36 500% - B75% 21525 B.20% - B.62%
1:3 Yesrs 540.03 500%, - 18.05% 53572 8.25% « 10.33%
Less than 1 year JaL81 5000 - B9, 204 L.00% - 10,3346
Totai Secured RED {4} 3,221.89 2,109.31

- Reviluat Maturity

Secured Lero Coupon (B

More than 5 yrary . - 815 875%

3- 5 Years 555 875 433 & 5045

1-3 Years 513 A50%: 13404 8.25% - 10.30%
Less than 1 year 14673 B.25% - 10.30% -

Total Sacured Zero Coupon {B) 138.51 144.91

Bekinal Mativity
Unsecured {(]

~Asat Mach 35 20%%

Aprinsit

Rate sEtoteient

Comimerciaj Paper

Less thas § year 23264 Y 055 - -
Total Unsecured {C} 232,64 -

« Security wise detalls of Secured NOY

Parsiculnrs

Asat March 31, 2024

Axat March $1,
2073

B.55% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Non Convertibie Debentsre, Sevies § Tranche 16 Date of nasutity -
03701/2025 B.25% 22572 22572
10.33% Secured Rated Listed Hedeemable Non Comvertible Debenture Series U1l Dute of maturity - 1033 <
19/12/2025 3% - 1500
" : TR e " T —
IQ.OS%: Serured Rated Listed Redeemabie Non {onvertibie Debenture Series 13 Date of maturity 10.05% 1500 500
20/03/2026
8.5% Sesured Rated Listed Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures Letter O Allotment Series DR Date of) 8505 2800
maturiy - 31/03/2026 ~ - 26960
8.5% Securad Rated Listed Redeamable Non Copvertzble Debentures Latter OF Allatrent Series D9 Date of; .
: - B50% 32000 -
maturity - 22/05/2024
B2 Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Non Convectible Debeatwres Serizs D7, Date of maturity -
28/09/2026 A.20% 11200 11200
isted Re K ‘e ature Series 1 Tranche L1 rity -
8.20% .Secured fated Listed Redeemable Xon Convertple Debentare Series 13 Tranche . Daze of maturity B20% 5265 5265
03)01/2627
9,50% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Noo Convertibie Debenture. Series IV Tranche i Date of maturizy -
13/01/2027 B.50% 13.60 13.60
8.36% Secursd Rawd Unlisted Redeemable Nep Copvestible Debenture Series DID Date of maturity - B .
8.136% 223.33 -
15 /0843027
% i ie Non { stihle Do . Series. D3, D3 fomads »
B.50% Sef'ured fated Listed Redeemabie Non Convertible Debentures, Series. D3 Date of maturiey 5.60% 1800 1800
11/02/2028
8.62% Setured Rated Listed Redeemable Nun Convertible Dehentares, Series D4, Date of mawurity -
5
12/03/1028 B.62% 19.00 15.00
B26% Secured Rated Unlisted Redeemable Non Conventible Debentuce. Series D1d. Daxe of matury « RI6% 17333
15/068/2028 ) ) "
2.43%, Setured Rated listed fedeemable Non Comvertible Debeature. Sertes V1 Tranche 11 Date of matangy - BAI% $174 5174
6370172029 s 337
— ; ] - oo S VT3 Aty -
B75% Secured Kased Listed Redeemable Non Cenvertible Debenture. Series Vit Tranche 11 Rate of minujty 9755 2213 2218
9370172629
870% Secured Qated Listed Redeemable Non Convertible Debeatures. Series D5 Date of mauaity Y
* 71 i 36,4
16,/0472029 8.70% 36.00 36,00
B.36% Secursd Rated Unlisted Kedeemable Non Convertble Debensure Serles D19 Date of maturity -
1540872028 B.36% 27333
$.18% Secu i - : Serles C15. 1y -
%38% SPfured Rated Listed Redsomsbie Non Converuble Debestyres. Sertes C15. Date of mawsniy 9.18% 300.00 300,00
0371072029
?535% Secured Rated Uniisted Redesmable Nuc Copvertinle Debenture, Serivs AD T Date of matarity - 6.5 19140 4130
25702 /2030 .
8.70% Secured Rusted Listed Redeemable Now Joavertbis Debenturss, Series D6 Dote of materity ~ 870% . 11900
14/05/2430 : - s
curet it et H rerti by § Serle . 4 .
BE9% focured Rated Listed Redeemabie Noa Convertible Debentures. Series Serles D2 Date of maturty ©09% 00.00 160.00
12/11/2030
5% Secured Rated Unbisted Redeemable Nos Convertible Debenture. Sepes AU W Date of materity
d B 747 74.7
w2031 500 ) 870
Total 3.142.98 24079.89

Nnte, Statemsent show.ng contractual princpai outstanding of Secured Mon Convertible Debentores,

Note 16.2{b} « Securiy wize desails of Secared Zaro Coupnn Hood

Particotans .

s o Mareh 11, 2024

tin{Lrores
AsatManch 3L,
24623

- aee Linked Seruped Rated Listed Principas Proterted Reasemabie Not Convertitile Debeatures, Seves L L2 .
9.12 5130 5L20
Date of matutity - 25/04/2024 %
_Sec Lin o inll sincips shle C Ve Yok ns. S
G- Sec Linked §Ltured Rated Unlisted Principal Protacted Redeemable Non Lonvertible Debontures. Serles € 14 10.30% 2600 000
Date of maturicy - 27 /0672024
3 ¥ i 3 e Semes i Tranche 3L Dae
Secared Rated Listed Redeemabls Non Lonvertible Debenture Semes i Trancke i Dite of msaturity a25% 2623 2073
03/01/2025
Y T p Canvert! Debe! arivy ¥ Lo Date wi ity -
Secured Rated Listed Redeemuable Non Canvertibie Qebenturs, Series V Tranche $1 Date wf maturity 650% 415 325
a3/83/2027
Secursd’ Rated Listed Redeemable Nen Uoavertibie Debenture Series Vi Tranche L Date of maturity - 875 553 55
7370172029
Toial 107.81 107,81

Note Statement showiag conzactual priacipal outstanding of Secused Zero Lowpoa Bami




HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Nutes forming parst of Standalone Finaocial Statements as at and for the year ended Macch 31, 2024

Note 1 7. Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Partieolaiy

St March 31,3073

Secured:
{2} Term laans
{i] from Banks {Refer Note (2], {biand 17.1) 6,555 25 767651
(i1} fram Natianal Housing Bank [NHE) {Refer Note (3}, (B}, {£)and 17.8] 479148 308544
{ilt} from Finanria} Institution {Rejer Nate [b] and 17 33 132107 7889
{b} Seeuritisation Liabiity (Hefer Note 17.4} 145.28 17958
Lc} Cash oredit £ Qverdraft from fanks (Refer Note {a] (bl and 37.4) 12011 .15
Total 13,033.19 1162067
Sorrowings i Indsa” 12615.20 1519853
Rorrowings mitside lndis 417,92 422.14
Total 13,033.19 11.620.67

a Tt of the total burrowing fram Banks, borrowings amaunting to 1 20 00 Zrores {As 31 Mareh 31, 2023 { 2000 Crores) and Refinance
Facliity from NHB amounting to 390,32 Crores (As at March 31, 2023 1546494 Crores) 4re also guaranteed by Helding Company he. JFL
Finance Limted.

b The term oans fram banks, Finaacial institution and NHEB and cash credits from hanks are secured by way of first pari passu charge by
way of hypothecation on recetvibles of the Company. both present ang future, hook debts, loans & advances, except those receivahles
present and/or future specifically and exciusively charged in Favor of certait smsting eharge holders, Further, borrowsngs from Financsal
Instiutinn amsbsting 1o T§1330 Crores {before interest accrued but not due, exchange fluctnation and BIR adfustrsents) (As at Mareh
31,2023 Nal) ave secured by way of flrst priority exclusive charge on the identifled receivables of the Gomguy.

< Borrowings from NHE Jncludes T 8,401,316 Crores (A< at Mareh 31, 2023 € £.520.49 Ctores) secured by way of first sxclusive tharge an
anencumbered individual housing doan portiolio in Favor of NHB.
* This includes FONB borrowings ameunting 10 ¥ 1,106,17 Crores [As at March 31,2023 1972 39 Crares.).

Noie 17.1 - Terms of repayment of Teon Loans from Banks

£ Restdual Maturity

Amoust

s AsatMarch 3%, 2004

Rate of futevest f Yipht

Aot

_ AsatMarch 31,2023

Pateof futerest 2 Yisld

Floating:
More than 5 years 906.87 849509, 30% 1,249.63 7.70% - 9.00%
3.5 Years 159543 H49%-9.55% 31,555.15 7.70% - 9.55%
1.3 Years 258042 A39%-9.55% 2,48703 T.70%, - 9.50%
Less than 1 year 153253 H.39%-9.555% 2,384.70 7.70% - 9.70%
Tota} 8.655.25 7.676.51
Note 17.2 - Terms of repayment of term lpans from NHB
Tin Crorey
1 % 4

553 d ek 2 i €5 ¢
Fixed:
More than 5 years 143570 .B0% - BSDSH 78314 280% - 7.90%
3-S5 ¥ears 1,227.19 B0 < BSO% 723.32 2.580% - 7.90%
1.3 ¥ears 141593 2.80% - 9.00% 1.09271 280% - B.40%
Less than § vear 7166 2.80% - 9.00% 48527 2.80% - 8.40%
Total 4,791.48 3.085.44

Noie 17.3 - Terms of repayment of term leans from Figancial Institution

L ArstMarch 3L 2524 T TR
Residuad Matnrity : - - P oete
Anivany Ratent Interest’] Yieht Amount Rate of erest / Yield

Fioating:
More than 5 years 31112 9.10% 31578 9.10%
3-5 Years 23541 2.10% 15£.63 9.10%
1-3 Years 25419 4.10% 140.08 9.10%
Less than [ yedr 10236 4.10% 56.48 3.10%
Sub-Tolal - Floating {A} 503.08 67889
Fixed:
More than 5 vears 10884 - M
3.5 Years 105 - -
1-3 Years 31,80 - -
Less than 1 year 35.55 . A
Sub-Total - Fixed (1) 417.99 -
Total (A+B} 132187 67189

Note 17.4 ~Terms of repayment of sther loang

{1in Crores)

AR L 3024 i, -, e M el 35,2023
Amount: Hagpid futerestf Vield Amount Hake oftntorssy £ ¥inld
Fleating:
Cash eredit / Qverdraft from Banks (A}
Less than 1 vear 12011 8.30%% 015 £,35%
Securitisation Liability (B}
More than B yrars 11280 8.108 - 5.350%, 13306 7.30% - B.45%
3-8 Years 13,22 8,104 - 9.35% 15.22 7 30% - BO5%
1-32 Years 1273 B.10% - 935" 14.56 7305 - 845%
Less than ) year %.85 B.10% - 9 355 6.84 7.30% - B0
Sub-Total - Securitisation Liability 145.28 179.60
Total (A8} 26539 179,893




UFL ROME FIRANCE LIMITED
Notes farming part of Standaloue Financial Statements as atand for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 18, Subordinated liabilities

Non-convertible deltentures - Unsegured 83525

Zero Coupon Bonds - Unsecured 208.16 191.85
Total 1,037.38 1.078.31
Subordinated Liahilivies in [ndia 103738 107831
Subordinated Liamliues autside India . .
Total 31.037.38 107831

Nom Cunvertible Debentures - Ynsecured incudes redeemabie noa convectible debentures carrying call aption of 1 10.00 Crores {from
February 28, 2024}, 1 12452 Croves, {{rom May 14, 2024), $ 3200 Croves. (irom fune 18, 2025 and ¥ 30.00 Crares (Trom july 14, 2025)
{As at March 31, 2022 1 100 Crores {froni February 28, 20247, 1 126,52 Crozes {from May 14, 2024), T 40.04 Croves {from june 16,
2025] and X 3050 Croves thram july 14, 2025)}

Nate 18.1 - Terms of repayment of Subordinated Debt

., g o BA AT MaTC3Y, 2008 ¢
Residunt Watnrity st L e ot Tnterest

L2023

o A st March 3
At Hike of Intesrst

Non-convertibie debentures - Unsecured

More than & years - - 708,14 #.60% - 10.02%
3-3 Years angs9 SA8%% - 10.02% 2500 A85H - 205%
-3 Years - - - -
Less thany 1 year 2553 8855 - 18 02%, 9332 843% - 9.30%
Total Non-convertible debentures - Upsecurad 82422 BRE.46

Residoal Matyrity A% atMarc 31,202 AsstMarch I, 2021

A i 5
Angunt o Yield Amnany Yiekd

Zero Coupon Bonds - Unsecured

More than & years - - 191.85 9 A0%
3- 5 Years 208.16 940% - -
Total Zera Costpon Bonds - Unsecured 208.16 191.85

“These debentures are subardinated to present and future seniuy mdebtedness of the Company and gualify as Tier 11 capital under RBI Directions for Housing Fundnce Companies far
asaessing cupitai adequacy. Based on the halance term to maturity As at March 31, 2024, T8% {As at March 31, 2023 92%) of the book value of the subordinated debt (s considered as Tier
il capital fur the purpose of capital adequacy computation.

Hote 18,2

2} - Secirity wise detatit of Kon-tonvertible debentures - dlacecured % fn Crores

Pasthiolars o . Loupen Asmmarcnitzes 5% March st

8.65% Listed Unseowerd Sulwidinaied Redeemadie Non-Uonverible Debentures UDRY Dotz of matoriey -
14/04/2023 9.93% A 5040
4.30% Listed Unssvured Suboerdinated Redeemable Non-Lonverthle Ueneptures HE3. Date of matarity - 0.30% 50
29/05/2023 . . 00
B43% Rated Listed Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Non-Convertibiz [iehentares Series ¥06. Date of aen
maturity ~ 2707 /2027 Ba5% 75.00 7540
‘).65%‘6 ’}atf:d Listed Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Non-Canvertihle Debentures 8108 Date of inaturity - 9.05% 080 hoo
2B/02/2028
49.85% Rated Listed Unsecured Subardinated Redesmable Non-Convertinie Sehentures D09, Date of maturiny - 985% 4500 000
16/06/2028
9.85% Rated Listed Unsecared Subordinated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures U110, Date of matusity - 2.85% 1000 1000
13/07/2028
10% Kated Listed Unsecured Suhordinated Redeemable Non-Convirtible Dobentures Series L Date of maturity 10.60% 23272 23272
03/41/2028
Gh 'R:oh‘d f,iswf Unsecursd Subordinated Redeemahle Non-Convertivle Debentures Series I Date of 9.60% 282 38282
matnrity - 63/11/2628
Rated Listed Unsecured Sebordinated Bedeemable Non-Converubie Debertares Seras 11 Date of matursty - 10.02% 4028 4o 18
03/11/2026

Tota} 810.82 875.82

Noke: Statement showing contraciund principal sutstanding of Subordinated Non Cunvertible Debentures,

fooste TH 2} ~ Security wite debails oY Non-conserble debentires - Unsecured
: Partiulars

Tero Coupon Grdec Linked Rated Listed Ynsecured Subordinated Redverpable Nou-Limvertitne Uehentures
Sertes a3 Date ofmaturity - 11/DB/ 2028

" AgatMarch it
21025

930% 12630 12630

Total 126.30 126.39
Nre Statement showing contractual principal outstanding of Sutordinated Zers Coupan Bonds.

st March 38,2024




HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes farnting part of Standai financial 5 as at and for the vear ended March 34, 2024

Note 1. Other Financial Liabilities

Bauk overdraft® 8202
Unctaimed interest and redemption praceeds of NCDs*” 461
Other Payables# 45.56
Total 185219

* Book averdrafl reprasents cheque issued towards disbursemsnt to borrowers but not presented to banks.

** As reqaired wader Section 125 of the Companies det, 2012, the Company, during the year, has transferred T 0.08 Crores, {as at March
31,2023 2009 Crores.) tathe Investor Eduration and Protectzan Fund |TEPFY, A<of March 31, 2044, 0.00 Urores. {as at March 31, 2023
T10.00 Crores) was due for teansfer to the (EPF.

4 Primarily inchides Hability towards Credit Link Subsidy Srhente received from NHE of 1004 Crores. (a5 ai March 31, 2823 1 0.04
Crores) and lizbility sowards asspnnwent payable.

Note 20. Provisions

| KsatMarcl 0, 7008 - Axat Sareh 31, 2028

vrovisnns for Emphavee Benedits
-Provision foc Leave Encashment 1449 7.2t
“Provision for Gratulty {Refer 32.2) 380 0,70
~Brovision for Boaus 15.75 11.43
Total 30.04 15.34

Note 21. Other Nost Fimancial Liabtlities

St MR 3L 2000 AsakMarch 31, 2023

Statetory rEmRLANCEs 15.26 1410
Unspent CSH (Refer note no 3841 6.99 5.20
Adyances from borrowers 7655 24555
Total 9811 254.85

Note 22, Equity Share Capital

fa) Authorised, issued, Suhscrihed and fully paid up share capital

AearWarcn 35, 1688

Authorised Share Lapitat

XSZ‘OOB,QOD‘EquikyShare; of ¥10/- each with voting rights (a5 3t March 31,2023 - 15200 152.00
152,600,000)

. o s £ 2000 20.00
20,000,000 Preference Shares of 210/ wach {as at March 31, 2073 20.080,063)
Total 172.60 172.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
Equity Share Capitsi
26,344,638 Equity Shares of T10/- cach fully paid-up {as at March 31,2023 - 26.34 2634
26,344,638} -
Total 26.3¢4 2834

(b} Reconcilintion of the shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting year

Partseulars Asat ”ﬂt‘h 208 ) Asat March 31, 2023
No.of shoares Nex nfsbares Amount
At the beginning ol the year 4,83 44638 5,34 £45%9.08,181 2097
Add: Issued dering the vear - - 5376457 337
Dutstanding at the end of the year 2,63,44,638 2634 2,63,44,638 2634

During the year ended March 2623, the Company has aitotted 5,376,457 vquity shaves of 1 10/~ zachuat a premuum of 408191/~ per share

{c) Terms/cights attached 1o equity shares:

The Company has duly one class of Equity Shares having » par valise of €10 par share, Each holder of pquity share 1s gtivied so one vate per share, The Company dediares and pays dividend
in indian rupees.

in the wvent of hquidation of the Company, the kolders of Equity Shares wil he eatitled 10 receive remaining asseis of the Company, after distrihution of ai} preferential amounts. However
o such prefereatial amounts exisy currentiy. The distribution wil be fn gTeportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders.

{43 Deraits of shareholders proding nrore ap 5% shares in the Company:

CEHE BB ) - No.of sharey % Buslding
Equity shares of 10 vach fuily paid
1{£1. Finance Limited {hoiding companyl and is nominess 20968181 20958181 79.59%
Platinom (wl € 2018 RSEC Limlted 53,716,457 20.41% 5376457 2041%

{2} During the perlod of five years unmediately preceding the Balence Shezt date, the Company has not issued any egaity shares without payment baing received in cash nr by way of boaus
shares or shares bought back.

{f} Detalls of thares held by Promatars

%K {hange daving
the yedr

% $EToral Shiares

&5 az Mapch 31, 2024 15, Finance Limited 2.0958,181 74595
&5 at March 31, 2023 {UFL Finance Limited | 2,054,195 | 79.551% ]

* Shares held by 1iFL Finance Linited and its nominess. The shareholding of Nominze (§ 500 shares {As al Mareh 31, 2023 300 shares).

;







1HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes farming part of Siandslone Financial Statvmonts a5 93 and ter e year eoded Mared 31, 2524

Nole 4. Interest incorme
2 {8 Crovesy

Frimass

P ancial Assels veasored at

S R el Ot FYYPE

Interest un Laans G3iHT LALEBL LhAY 4774 40
Inderast income from savesiments - 3438 19385 3453
Interest on ihlee corprrnte deposiy - 4218 - 42 38
Interest or deposits with Banks” - $073 - 407
Totad 341,87 2,831.37 4342 191686

FEA033 2%
Parvicatry tarbrancial Ases mservd ot
; VLeL

fatersst on Laans .
intepzst incame {rom ipvestiments - 2862 JREH 416
Intarest on Inter vorprale deposits 1134 N 153
Iriverest o4 depnsits wirk Rankse - 5815 - 881
Total 232.1% 303177 13.6% 224153

Mo dusbes interest ncame un serurity depusits
Note 28. Dividend income

Dividrrd intorme

hnm

Note 76. Fees and Commission Intome

Vartienia FY L 24
Fews b Other Uharges® 4574 §
e and I3 2414
Foral 187,94 11437

* Inchades e and charges m the nature sf sery e tee, Inrecinture, el

Note 7. Nrt Lain on Fair Vales Changes

Net Gain /{lasy) on Anancial instruments 4t FVTPL
G trading portfaln
- bavestiments 2576 59 6%
- ARers {212 -
Total Ket gain on fatr value chinges 447 59.45
Fair Valye chaages:
-Heatiyad {183 4593
Hppeslisad &30 1373
Forat Net gain oo (ajr vaive thanges 1.47 59.65

Note 28; Net gain/{lous) on dorecoghidon of financial insiremepis

Note 28.1 Nut gain /{loss) on derecogniiion of finundcal instraments soder FYTOLL

Bty

{astgmmnt af fosme

[Toal

(1.03)]

72.5¢ |

Note 29, Other Income

42 in Crores)

lNli‘kﬂmL abvertisenent gnd support sefvice fres

127.58

[rotat

127.58 |

Sote JO Finance Couts

{¥ iy Crprec)

O ol Uatittes mvmsured of dmantized

Featiat

YL

InTerest on bt rowings pother than debt setusdies) 74012 a8 46
Foterest i debt sequnities 25892 17238
Interest an sahardanated Habilhes 3757 12113
Giber interest expetiss
frter st on Joace tailines 331 224
Dther bocrowing cost 2746 2502
Toiab 132774 1,iB253

Seaterment showing mxcharge frrtyat

Revpluatinn Gain/ 103§ un Foreisn rurrsncy ivan

T na axeount ol fRrvign rureAnsy harrowin;

1 0 Crores)

Rreupnssed in Other Cumarehensore [

Receprused in Srtemers of Profit and Loss




HFLHOME FINANCE LIMITER
Notes forming gart of Standatare Finafteial Statements as a2 and for the yrav ended Match 11, 2024

Note 31 jmpairmant on Financial Instraments, tncleding write-ofix
{tin Crores)

o g gty
Pardesgars Op Fipancial Anyels itoesihns at

Fehuh
{3zsas)]
{6.43)

108

235,12
116,64

(T in Croras)
ek
toans (¥ U]
Recivabley A9
Bad rinbis wortten ofl {Ket of vecavery} - 1165 181 65
Total f2.00) 14005 13n.05

Notw 32, Employer Benelits Exponsas

v T in Crores)
FETEVA L RVanEaE

Raderies et wages 213 12 22121
Lonrmasan Yo peavidert and wther feads {Reler Note 3271 11.98 92}
Leave Envashment 122 06
Lratoity {Reler Kntr J2.2Y 123 185
51aff wellaze sapenses B.11 .07
Share Rased Paymeats s ampleyees [Reler Notr 3233 39737 -

Tatal 34003 240.2%

AThe Group companivs se UFL Finance Limited and 81, Securittes Lonited have granted stexk aplons o sts employess 33 wel as
emnpiayeer of the Lampany. Pursaant to the scieime, e Lompanry has romburyed the grovp companies € 33 Sroees {for FY 200323 ¢
049 Crores}, on account o such ross sad the same s formiag part »f Empicyee benefit expenses,

Mote: Thy Indian Farliament has approved the Code on Sl Svrunty, 2120, which winld impact the contribttions by the Company
tirwards Providerd Fued and Gratuity The offectes date traos whoen the chidzgts are apyiscabie o pet 1y by nuzitied and the firal teies srv
yot 1o be framedd. The Company will 2arry not 3n evaioston of the impact 32t 7ecord the same in the finsncal staements sn the prriod big
whith the code hecurmm etlective and related sale are pubiished.

32.1 Defhined Contribmion Plans:
The Cusmgany has recagnised the fellowing 2naunts 35 sn exprnee amd fnctodedd o the Emploves Beaefits Dxpenses

{¥in Crores)

PR

L0 mirnatien to Provatent fund 596 470
Chreritation to ESIC ¢ Ry @43
Conimitntos o Lataur Welfarn Fund nps 11.64
Company eontsibuton 1o EPS 5.0% 173
Lonpary (antyibetion te NPS D3% .52
Toatal 11.98 k22

32.7 Disclasures pursesnl 1o Jod AS 19 on “Employes Bepefits®

Assupinn s {Casrent Yesr)

Faratues : v PERITLY
Lxpenmd Betii 5 on £ Assets 7.20% Laow
Rate of Duscsuabng 7.40% 746
Rawp ot Salazry increase 950%: S.80%

For tarvsce 4 yoars snd | Far service 4 years oo

Beluw SHO0% o For heinw 28.50% p.a
Rate af Employve Tuzanver service T years and shove | Forsenioe % years and
1 00% p.a. ahove 3 H0% pg
Magtabty Rate Dunay Employment Irnbion Assared Lives Enduen Assured Lives
Muortatity Mostabty
(2812 %3] Dittmate 05314 umare}
Retizenigeat As for employees fi years) 5 i

Table Shuaving Change o the Presant Value of Projpeied Benetit Qhlgations

1%in Crores)

a0 Wik

§igsert Valus of Benebt S0Lgation af e Beg anerg uf tie Veas 3143 X
intesest Lost Gue Y68
Curreat Service fast 218 156
Liability Traosfecred Inf Agnisitons 204 887
taabikty Transferred Gty Divestment 5.00% {049}
Benefit Fanl From the Fund 1433 81}
Aveudriai {Gonszshoses un Oihgaticss - Duc to Shange it Firancad Ssasmptivng %y {8931
Avtuarns {GainsjfLnssek ag Sbhgrtions - Dur te Expetience 04¢ 108
Present Yaive of Benefit Oblization at the End of the Year 1409 1331

Table Showing Change ia the Falr Yaluz of Plan Assels

U irares)

st Valne of Fan Assels a1 tpe Beginniag uf 1he Year : el 350
Inperest hcome o 353
Chntributizns by the Fapleyer - 155
Homeht Paud from the Fuisd {111} e
Returs on Plan Asets, Excnding interest Iacome 0.2l {5391
Fair Yalue of Plan Assets ol the Eand ol e Year 10.29 1043

SN




HFL HOME FINARCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standilene Financial Statements as 02 and tor [he year ended March 31, 2024

Amount Hecogaised in the Balance Showt

P MM A A Mok X, R

£% {n Croves)

ap o e ofit Obhgation at the end of Uye Year [§C AL 1533
Fasr Vatue of Blan Assets ab the et of the Ymae pLiye) [LE2S
Fundad Status Susplusf (Teficn) (3.853 (070}
et {Liabilicy]/Assot Recognised Iy the Batarice Shaet 1380y {0983

Net interest Cost

§2 o Crorey)

Presens Vatue of Benetit Uhligstion at the Beginping ot the Tear IS 43
Faur Valye of Plan Assers st iy Beginning of the Year {33 61) [SXTH
Yel Liability /{Asset) at the Beginning of Oie Year .78 {B.ap)
Interess Cost .04 D56
ey st incasas (749 [{(:EXH
Net interest Cost .08 10.00}

E: gnised in the

of Protit and Loss

]

it ;n Lrabes)
FY 8433y

Currert Service Last 236 (214
Net (nucest Cost ¢095 (000}
Expenses Kecognised 2.23 186
E d in the Oiker Comp! Townme {01}

10n Lentred

’ Partieslacs Py 205328 wWigss

Actuatal (Lanas]fLonses on (iggation For the Yeas 639
Remen un Plan Assets. Exciudang dntesest income 1622y 828
Net {income}/ Expunse Fos Use Year Recognised in 041 .83 048

Balancw Shest Reconalfation

Dpening Net Latutity

Ay March 31, 20%%

It in Crores)

Asat March 31,2024

Het Liabdity /{Assel] Revogrised in the Balance Sheet

Exproses Becogoised in Statament of Prolit snd Loss 223 156
Expenses Recogrased in OCF .83 €48
et Liabshity/{Asset) Travsfer in BT .07
Nt hashbAy 1/ Asset Transfer Cait™ (B0} 006y
Employer's Lontribution - {1533
380 o

500 Senotes pround liss than € Fiity thonsands
Categnry of Azsets

Particetars

Aat Mt 31, 0Tk

{tin {rores)

Sk Narch 35,201

jtusurange pelicy i FLTSY ;
{Total 0.23 | 10.61 |
Dther Detatls

';F'!mnm Lunthtution For Neat Tear 1o Muotaln)

Wk

i in Crnras)

i

Matarity Analysts of the Benu(it Payments: From the Fand

¥ in Crnras)

Peapentud Benefi abie  Fature Vedrs Frion shie a2 o Reposng

381 Peltowing Year 2] .60
2nd Foliowing Yesr 015 a12
it Folluwing Year 215 %14
3t Faftoaing Fras 233 017
Sth Fallowing Yewr (X3] 91?7
Sum af Years 5 Tu 10 i H 134
Surm of Years 11 and above 5002 4247

Sensitivity Analysis

Tolta Effece of 1% Change in Rave of Engloyes Trurmoves

Frogted Senehit ub urient Assueptions 1509
Deita Etfecs of + 1% Chazge i #ate of Disrountng 1218}
Beda £fact 0f -1 Change w Rate of Disconating 3
Drita Zffect nf v1% Change 1s Rate of Salary Intresse 185
Deits Effest of <1% Cuinge i Rate of Salasy fncrease §143)
Deira Bffert of » 1% Change in Rate of Brnpicvee Tuznseer {0171
5%

The senulivity analyns have heen determined bated an reasoaadly posuble shonges of the tespective aswamptings octarring ar the

erd of the reparting period, while hpiling Al ether sssumibnas (asstaat

The senchwity adalysss preseated those may not be represeptatzvs ol the actual change in the projected beoctit ohlatan as o1z
uniikeiy that the change th asseaptiors wiukd nccur in psoitied of onz annther 25 3w of the asumptons may be correlated

Furthermare, 15 prasentiag the abnve sensayvity apalysss, the present yalus of the projacie: henesic obbgation bas heep catoulated using
the progecsed omst cradlt method At the end of the repurtery petnd, which 15 (he same ruethed s anptivd e cxioulansg the

Profed bl nbagatiu as rerngmisead i ke halaver shert

Thers wiss a5 change in 1he methods 4od assumitiens vsed i prepatiag e seeitwdy anafyzs hem prsr yoars

i

SR
S
L




HFLHOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes farming part ol Standalone Financlas Siatements as 21 4id for the yrar ended Morch 31, 2074

Note 32.3. SEmplayze Stack Option

The Lampauy hax 3R BEL £50F PLAR-20622, snder whih vproes heve heen gasted to ehgibie employees to be vested from tims 1o tine
The ptar s establishad 43 g1 the approvai granted by the sharelalders by & speal sesoiutinn oo Avgust 4, 227 The Bao is amended
vie Buard vesulutier dared June 17,2023 20d approved by shazchoiers vide rasofution doted fure 39, 2023,

ESRP widl vest to wiigible empioyees 20 per vesting arhetule and sestung ratie Al gpfinzs wilk vest with smeamun vesting paend of $year
and maximum vesting perisd of § yeats having Graded vestong @ 25%pa (vasting ratin of 25.25:25 251 As per ESUF Flan, the Vested
Ontinns tan be exercised by the 2ption Gasptres anly fa tafnecton with of upan e happesing of 3 Linuiity Gvent and wathin such
périvd 3s prescrhed by tr Buasd lo this regard

The N tissr and R n L may stany tme pruceed (o tetife any o2 3l the unaxerised Vested Gpmnms hedd by the
Oplien Grantees, ether tontnung of Separated, by way of cash paymen?,

iOption Price Model #lavk Suhales Methad NA
Exercive Price 131830 NA
Snare Pasre on Grant Bate 451338 nA
Expectest Volatity 500 KA
Expreted il of apriuns {Years] £ HA
Rish-foww rate of renyen VAT A
Davidend Yreld 0.36% RA
Far Vatue of ESUP 3t frant e AT RA
Walzhted Average rernabisiey conti aqual 158 of the nptian { Years® 155 KA
Fair Value Methodology:

e fais value of the ereplayoe shice sptons £as been measured usisg Black Sthotes Dption priving medel. The haw valpe ol the Aptians
and the snpats veed [n xhe measurement of she grant-date far values of thy equay-séttivd share based paymentoptiens granted duning the
AT,

Takde Shawing aplions movement duripg vean
Fartiedarx
Cutstanding at e beginnizg of the year
Granted dayng the yaar £.42,563 i A
Farleited dnrng the year 3935 WA

“ TSR AR

Expredt duping the yeae - NA
- NA

Gl 3B A2 HA

Esercisabiv 3t the end n' the vear - A

Weighted-avetage execcise nrices 87 2ptians granted during the year o ¥ 1318 2 option.
Weighted aversge share price at the date of axercise date s NA. 23 5o BSOP exerdse in Yoar

£2in Cropes)
FYIHETLR

Kote: The Company hat geanted pptions m wqual BArLS i tao banches {3} 3% an Dciaber 01, 2023 {time based); andd {1) 50% on Aprd 21,
2024 {pectormane: based) and will vest a3 spzcfied in the Graeat imter.

Note The compary hius graveed 155,123 no of E5Ps to KMPs during the yrar
Notg 33, Other Exprases

{2 in Croresy

Wi

Asbvertisement i231 724
Valuatins & seriliation txpenses 36} 148
Markrving expenies 2342 379
Bank charges 239 126
Commuucation 131 125
&lertriity Fx: L
Rating ants cuntedian Jees 2% 133
tezdl & profussieny fors 3814 27833
Compsyion & st ne Ires 278 7%
Mizpeliannons sxpunses 056 a3
Difie expenses 1 7Y 1285
Postage & conrier 137 70
Prinung & slabionary 134 130
Raters & tuzes A0 D2
Reat 1B8; 738
Repars B mgintrnance iu% 101
Payioents rm auditors® 183 81
Sofrwara rhargry 1914 303y
Security pipenses 2¥5 152
Traveibng & conveyatics 2492 B8R
Eprporate Socaal Respopsiduijry (USR] Expengee (Refer nute J8A 1740 1310
Lns<nn sk of asspre it 94
Total 16529 189,86
SPayments o asditors X it Crrws)
Aundit Freg bay u3L
Limitnsd Revigws 573 a1s
{ther marters aad tartitivation .25 027
Oyt gf forket Expenses 8z o7

Total 183 0681




JFL HOME FIMARLCE LIMITED

Raotes forming parl ef Standaion e Financtal SLatements us 21 and for the year eaded March 31, 2024

Nate 34, tncome taves
43 A g e in the of Profitand Loss

{%in feores)

A0 Wt
Cusr et tag pepense
Carrint year 2IT55 23705
Tax of rachar years 0 98) {0.171
Deferred tax expense
Ceagiratien and reversal of lemgusary doflerences 28 9% 629
Towl 313,37 23257

34.2 Amoenbs recoguised i other comprrhensive arome

Pasticutars

AN as RVl AL R0

{¥ fa Croves)

Herns that will notbe relassified 10 pro®i or lnsy

Remensuenment ganf {lusy) of definmd henefit habslives f(assets| 02 01
frema that will be reclagsified Yo profit orloss

Kue movernent on alfartive prissos of cash fow hedgs 13% 4241

Ener vaine of lnans carrad ot faw value thynwh nther comutrehansive income D#n 019
Total 2.52 {3.23]

14.3 Reconciliation of tnta) (X expense

1% 56 Crores}

Profithwiore Lax 1328.21 102289
Tax uting the dasustn: taa 1ate {25.3568%} 33428 15744
T pffect of:

Ror-dueductibde expensas 513 337
Tax-cxempt meue pachides deducnan ufs AEHAAY (38 75} (26.13)
Tax on Dwigerd - {023
Incume tased ot ditferent rates 1162} .
Adpunstments tur suorént tax foy prae gennds $0.08) {277}
Losses fay which an deferyed tax 3s5et 13 rpecgrised - {144}
Tio-Recig 1 previansly rogetved drtuetitle trporary fiffereces 186 031
Tots! income lax expense 01,37 231.87

344 The Company Bas wlectd to exercise the pptins Jreitted undec secticn 1ITEAA of the intemedax ars, 1961, 36 amtrbdated by the

s en laws {sarendment} ondsnanes, 2019,
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HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 35, Earnings Per Share:

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share ["EPS”] computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 “Earnings per shaye”
1 in Crores except per share data

FER02328 L BV R022-2%
Nominal value of equity shares in 2 fukiy paid up - ‘ 10 - 1D
BASIC
Profir after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 1,026.84 790.32
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding ] 2,63,44,638 2,42,38,245
Basic EPS (In ¥) A/B 38977 326.06
DILUTED
Weighted Average Number of Equity shares for computation of diluted 2,63,44,638 2.42,38,245
EPS
Add; Potential equity shares an account conversion of Employees Stock 83,933 -
Options
Weighted average number of equity skares fur computation of diluted EFS G 2,64,28,571 -
Diluted EPS {in ¥} A/C 38853 326.06

The basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the adjusted profit after tux by the weighted average number of equity shares for the
respective periods; whereas the difuted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the adjusted profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares, after giving ditutive effect of the cutstanding stock options,

Note 36, Capital / Other Commitments and Contingent Liabllities at the Balance Sheet date
a. Commitments:

{i) As at the balance sheet date there were undrawn credit comniitments of ¥ 3,262.11 Crores, (As at March 31,2023 ¥ 2,098.41 Crores.);
(i1) £stimated amount of contracts remaining fo be executed on capital account of 2 0.34 Crores (As at March 31,2023 ¥ 1.54 Crores).

b. Contingent Liabilities:

(1) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt £ 0.15 Crores {As at March 31, 2023 10.19 Crores);

(it} Contingent liabifity on account of income Tax Dispute is ¥ 7.28 Crores (As at March 31, 2023 X 7.2B Crores) - The Company has filed appeal
against the said demand;

{ii1) Contingent hability on account of GST Dispute is ¥ 0.76 Crores {As at March 31, 2023 % 0.19 Crores) - The Company has filed appeal against
the said demand and has deposited 0.04 Croves {As at March 31, 2023 Nil) under protest;

{iv} Credit enbancement and Guarantes given for securitisation and assigniment transactions amounting to X 79.91 Cyores and ® 23.34 Crores
respectively {As at March 31, 2023 T 79.95 Crores and  23.34 Crores).

Note 37. Disclosure as per Ind AS -108 "Operating Segments”

The Company’s main business is Enancing by way of loans for the purchase or construction of residential houses, loans against property and
construction of real estate and certain other purpases, in india. Ali other activities of the Company revolve around the main business, As such,
there are no separate repartable segments, as per the Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 108 on ‘Operating Segments’,

Note 38A, Corporate Soclal Responsibllity
The Company was required to spend X 17.40 Crores. (for FY 2022-23 1 13.10 Crores.} towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) activities for
the current financial year.

FY 20232074
. Amount
Amount Speat T y—— Total

{a) Amount of expenditure incurred 1177 5.63 1740
{b} Shortfall at the end of the year® - 5.63 5.63
{c} Total of previous years shortfal} 3.93 1.27 5.20
{d} Nature of CSR activities:

(i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -

{11} On purpose ather than {1 above 1570 5.63 22.60

Reason for Shortfatl: During the year, the Company contributed towards the ongoing projects which remained unspent as on March 31, 2024
resuiting in shordall. The unspent amount has been ransferred to a separate Bank account on April 26, 2024, which will be spent during the FY
2024-25.

v FY 20222023
Pardentars Amonnt
: bELTTR T Yinspent/Provision
{a} Amount of expenditure incurred 7490 5.20 13.10
{b} Shortfal at the end of the year™* - 5.20 5,28
{¢) Total of previous years shortfall 3.02 - 3.03

{d] Nature of CSR activities:
{i} Canstruction /agquisition of any asset - - N
{it} On purpose other than (i} above 1093 5.20 1613

Re:son for Short{ail. Durmg the FY 2021-22, the Lompany umtribumd mwards the ongning pm,ects which remamed wrspent as Gh w’a:ch










IIFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

39 A.1{I) Credit Risk Grading of loans and loss allowances
The credit quality review process aims to aliow the Company tc assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take
carrective actions. An independent risk and policy team reviews adherence to policies and processes and carries out audit on periodic basis.

The Company has initiated portfolic quality review mechanism which enables analysis of portfolio along various behavioural, demographic and
financial parameters. Additionally, through tie-ups with external bureaus, an analysis of collection performance coupled with continuous credit
assessment for various key segments is undertaken. The practices aid in proactive course correction thereby modifying credit or sourcing
mechanisms, if required. Additionally, application scorecard has been developed enabling the Company to standardize credit underwriting &
improve sourcing quality in the long run.

The Company applies general approach to provide for credit losses prescribed by ind AS 109, which provides to recognise 12-months expected
credit losses where credit risk has not increased significantly since initiaj recognition and to recognise lifetime expected credit Josses for financial
instruments for which there has been significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, considering all reasonabie present and forward
looking information, including that of forward looking.

The Company categorises loan assets into stages based on the Days Past Due status: -

Stage 1: {0-30 days Past Due] It represents exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
were not credit impatired upon origination.

Stage 2: [31-90 days Past Due] The Company collectively assesses ECL on exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
{nitial recognition but are not credit impaired. For these exposures, the Company recognises as a collective provision, a lifetime ECL {i.e. reflecting
the remaining lifetime of the financial asset).

Stage 3: {More than 90 days Past Due and other cases basis regulatory guidelines] The Company identifies, both collectively and individually, ECL on
those exposures that are assessed as credit impaired based on whether one or more events, that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

Additionally, the Company evaluates risk based on staging which are as follows:

} in Crores

S AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,

Rssk LCategorisation 2024 2033
stoge 1 21,591.78 16,754.93
Stage 2 1,178.78 1,087.31
Stage 3 340.92 386.10
Total 23,511.48 18,228.34

Financial Assets measured at Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances, Unsecured
inter Corporate Deposits to group companies, Trade Receivables, Investinents and Other Financial Assets. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recogniticn.

39 A.1(1}) Credit quality analysis

(a). The following tables set out information about the credit quality of financial assets. Unless specifically indicated, for financial assets, the amounts
in the table represent gross carrying amounts.

¥ in Crores

Asat March 31, 2024

Fimsncial Assets
where foss
altowance

measured at
Simplified
Approach

Financial Assets  Financial assets for Financial assets for
where foss whichoredit risk - which ¢reditrisk
allowance basgincreased has inereased

medsured at 12 - significantivand . significantly and
month ECL credit not impaired credit impaired

Particulars

Loans at FVTQC!
Loans at amortised cost

3.827.04
18,164.74

1.28
1,177.50

3,828.32
19,683.16

340.92 -

) % in Crores
‘As at March 31, 2023
) Financial Assets
where loss
allowance
measured at
Simplified
Approach

Fimancial Assets | Financlal assetsfor Financial assets for
wheve foss which creditrisk . which credit sk
alfowance bas inereased 7 has increased

measured at 12~ sigoificantly and  significantly and
month ECL cradit not impaived . credit impaired

Particulars

Loans at FVTOCH
Loans at amortised cost

2,854,590




1IFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

{b). The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the Exposure At Defauit (EAD) and Expected Credit Loss (ECL) by class of financial instrument,

Loans and advances {tinCrores

Financial assets for which credit  Financial assets for which credit
“visk has Increased significantly and risk has increased significantly and
credit not impaired creditimpaired

Financial Assets where lass
allowance
measured at 12-month ECL

Unfunded
exposure/

Unfunded
exposure/

Unfunded
exposuref

Upfunded
expusure/

Recounciliation of Exposure at Default

Principal Principal Principal Principal

Ountstanding

Interest
Accrned*

Outstanding

Interest
Accyued®

Qutstanding

Interest
Accrued*

Ouistanding

Interest
Accrued*

Opening EAD March 31,2023 16,623.25 2,202.02 1,044.74 70.65 387.46 (1.37) 18,055.45 2,271.30
New Loans Disbursed during the year 11,746.48 2,364.08 91.57 9.01 9.85 {0.08) 11,847.90 2,373.01
Loan Derecognised {3,987.93) (403.08) (153.52) {4.59) (114.86) 0.06 (4,256.31} {407.61}
Loans written off (177.34) (7.35) (22.21) {6.97} (78.49) 0.48 {278.04) {13.83)
Movement in Stages - - - - - -

From Stage 1 (778.18) (64.91) 637.48 53.12 140.70 11.80 0.00 -

From Stage 2 336.22 23.08 {427.46} {32.09) 91.24 9.00 0.00 -

From Stage 3 50.96 {0.21) 17.09 {0.04) {68.05) 0.26 {0.00} -
l.oans Repaid in part or [ull (2,002.74) (743.81} (59.01) {0.55) (24.96) {22.14) (2,086.71) {766.50)
Closing EAD March 31,2024 21,810.71 3,369.81 1,128.67 88.54 342.90 {1.99) 23,282.28 3,456.36

*Includes amount w.rt sanctioned but un-disbursed considered for ECL of ¥ 3,227.17 Crores {As at March 31, 2023 ¥ 2,098.41 Crores)

¥ in Lrores)

Financial assets for which credit ~ Financial assets for which credit
visk has increased significantiy and risk has increased significaatly and
creditnot impaired credit impaired

Unfunded
exposwre/
Interest
Accrued*

Financial Assets where loss
: allowance
measured at 12-month ECL

Unfunded
exposure/
Interest
Accrued*

Reconciliation of Exposure at Defanit Unfunded

exposore/
Interest
Accrued®

Pnfunded
exposure/
interest
Accrued®

Principal
Outstanding

Principal
Qutstanding

Principal
Qutstanding

Principal
Outstanding

Opening EAD March 31, 2022 14,412.66 1,723.46 927.58 67.12 328,55 (0.33) 15,668.80 1,790.25
New Loans Disbursed during the year 9,264.64 1,443.89 73.38 6.16 9.18 {0.11) 9,347.20 1,449.95
Loan Derecognised (3.686.33) {213.43) (96.62) (4.64) (52.19) 0.04 (3,835.14) (218.03)
Write offs (15.92) (7.20) {24.36) (7.26) {126.05) 0.21 (170.34) (14.25)
Movement in Stages - - - ~ - «

From Stage 1 {391.47) {25.64} 35791 25.58 33.56 0.06 {0.00) {0.00)

From Stage 2 662.32 4118 (678.45) (41.19) 16.13 0.01 (0.00) {0.09)

From Stage 3 181.49 12.09 108.42 8.89 {289.91) (20.98} - -
Loans Repaid in partor full {3.800.14) (772.33}) 376.89 15,99 468.18 19.72 {2,955.07) {736.62)
Closing EAD March 31, 2023 16,623.25 2,202.02 1,044.74 70.65 387.46 {1.37}) 18,055.45 2,271.30

\\ i 7
v P S
: (?I::f ‘3'.11"!’,
Yzt Sl
. N\~ T8 ))
« ‘\\( . o ): 4
. F o

",13%!‘%3%@“‘3&11%{ w.r.t sanctioned but unvdigbgyzed considered for ECL of ¥ 2,098.41 Crores (As at March 31, 2022 £ 1,652.76 Crores)




1IFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as atand for the year ended March 31, 2024

Loss Allowances ) Tin Crores
Financial Assets whereloss ~ Financial assets for whicheredit  Financial assets for which credit
allowance risk has increased significantly and risk has increased significantly and Total
measured at 12-month ECL credit not impaired credit impaired

Reconciliation of Loss Allowances : Unfunded = Unfunded ' Unfmded . Unfunded
Principal exposure/ Principal exposure/ Principal exposure/ Principal exposure/
Outstanding Interest Qutstanding Interest Qutstanding Interest Ouistanding Interest

Accrued® Accrued* Accrusd™ Accrued®

Opening ECL March 31,2023 245.27 20.53 112.79 108.19 {0.01}) 466.26
New Loans Disbursed during the year 40.48 9.69 11.19 2.81 2.73 - 54.41 12.49
Loan Derecognised (43.59) (3.37) (11.23) {0.73) (5.45) {0.00) {60.26) {#10)
{5ans written off (33.25) (063) (12.83) (0.72) (51.40) : (97.47) (1.35)
Movement in Stages

From Stage 1 {16.52} {0.75) 13.20 0.60 3.32 0.15 - -

From Stage 2 30.24 1.83 (40.25) {3.01) 10.01 1.18 - {0.00}

From Stage 3 13.33 - 4.38 - (17.71) - - -
Loans Repaid in part or full {125.53) {10.65) 39.15 14.02 57.58 {1.30} {28.80) 2.07
Closing ECL March 31, 2024 11044 16.65 116.40 20.22 107.27 0.01 334.13 36.90

*Includes ECL w.rt sanctioned but un-disbursed of * 13.89 Crores {As at March 31, 2023 X 18.88 Crores).

% in Crores

Financial Assets where foss Financial assets for which credit  Financial assets for which credit
atfowance -zisk has fncreased significantly and visk has increased significantly and Total
measured at 12-month BCL credit pot impaired credit impaiced
Reconciliation of Loss Altowances tnfunded Unfunded Unfunded . Unfunded
Principal exposure/ Principal exposurs/ Principal exposure/ Principal exposure/
Outstanding Interest Qutstanding Interest Qutstanding Interest Qutstanding Interest
Accrued® Accrued® Accrued® Accrued®

Opening ECL March 31, 2022 233.68 9.52 132.26 7.31 123.50 - 489.44
New Loans Disbursed during the year 87.06 12.52 3.18 0.32 2.21 - 92,45 12.84
Loan Derecognised {3891) (1.06) {9.25) {0.38) (12.46) 0.00 (60.61) {1.44)
Coans written off (4.83) (0.04) {7.20) {1.06) {54.59) (66.61) (1.09)
Movement in Stages
From Stage 1 (70.31) (2.37) 57.65 2.37 12.66 - - -
From Stage 2 74.28 0.40 (30.38) (0.40) 6.10 - - {0.00]
From Stage 3 9.84 0.07 1456 0.87 (74.41) {0.95) - X
Loans Repaid in part or full 4.45 1.48 (48.04) (1.77) 55.18 0.94 11.58 0.65
Closing ECL March 31, 2023 245.27 20.53 112.79 7.26 108.19 {0.01} 466.26 27.79

*Includes ECL w.r.t. sanctioned but un-disbursed of ¥ 18.88 Crores (As at March 31, 2022 ¥ 7.67 Crores).




[IFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

39 A 1{[f1} Concentration of credit risk
Concentrations arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause thewr
ability to meet contractual obligations toe be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Campany's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on spreading its lending portfolio across products/states/customer base with
a cap on maximum limit of exposure for an individual/Group, Accordingly, the Company does not have concentration risk.

The Corpany's Loan outstanding from Borrowers residing across 5 various states of India is 57% (As at March 31, 2023 62%]).

39 A.1{IV) Contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the reporting year
{¥in Crores

Particulars : o PY2023-24 FY 2022-23

Write off {ner of recoveries)

39 A.1(V) Collateral held

The Company is in the business of extending secured loans backed by mortgage of property (residential or commercial). This also includes cross-cellateralisation on other property{ies} of the borrower.
The Company assessess and monitors value of the collaterals periodically on the basis of the internal policy. In case required, the Company also requests for additional collateral(s).

in normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or collaterals. Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property(ies) may be
initiated under the provisions of the SARFAESI Act, 2002. Repossessed property(ies) is disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAES! Act, 2002, to recover outstanding debt.

39 A.1(VI} Modified financial assets

For financial assets, such as a loan to a customer, where the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that the modification does net result in cash flows that are substantially different
{thereby not resulting into derecognition}, the Company has disclosed modification gain or loss based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR {Effective Interest Rate).

Lin Crores

Particulars FY2023-24 FY 2022-23.

Amortised Cost of Modified Assets at the time of modification during the year - -
Modification (Gain}/Loss for modification during the year - -

Rin Crores
AsatMarch 31,  AsatMarch 31,
2024 2023

Particulars

Carrying amount of Modified financial assets

The terms of the assets have been modified in accordance with NHB (Directions)/RBI (HFC) Directions and as per RBI Notification "Resolution Framework for COViD-19-related Stress™.




HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standajone Financial Staterents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

39 A.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its short-term financial obligations. The Company manages liquidily risk by maintaining sufficient
cash and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of credit lines. Further, The Company has defined Asset Liability Management (ALM) Framework with an
organizational structure to regularly monitor and manage maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities including debt financing plans, cash and cash equivalent
instruments to ensure liquidity. The Company seeks to maintain flexibility in funding mix by way of sourcing the funds through money markets, debt markets and banks to

meet its business and liguidity requirements,

(1) Maturities of financial Uablllties

% in Crores

151 i1 0 D ¥ D 5 i g O ) 3 Q
; . 0 L on 0 € 3 §
Trade Payables 73.73 73.73 - . - - -
Finance Lease Obligation* 51,62 3.44 3.40 6,77 1686 10.09 11.06
Debt Securities 3,613.04 15624 47.97 56696 945,16 963.02 833,69
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities} 13,033.19 569.24 666.31 1,274.21 4,295.05 3,263.05 2,965.32
Subordinated Liabilities 1,037.38 328 22.16 0.08 - 1,011.86 -
Other Anancial liabilities 1,052,19 1,052.19 - - - - -

cnntfaml maturities of fin;mc!al
,Siayilitiesﬁsat» March 31, 2023

Trade Payables

Upta 3 months

Over 3 months
to 6 months

QOver 6 months to
1year

Over 1yearto 3
yoars

Overite s
years

¥ in Crores

Over S years

50.95 5095 - - - - -
Finance lLease Obligation® 37.58 2.16 2.14 4.25 1394 7.76 733
Debt Securities 2,254.22 17.98 8.65 16.22 669,76 219.97 1,321.64
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 11,620.67 656.89 101193 1,265.63 3,734.38 2,460.32 249152
Suberdinated Liabilities 1,078.31 68.10 2513 0.08 - 85.00 900.00
Other financial liabilities 897.91 897.91 - - - - -

*Contractual maturities of financial lease obligation are on undiscounted basis.

{1i) Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars

Asat March 31,

2023

Cash flows

Qthers*

As at March 31,
2024

Particulars

As at March 31,

Cash flows

Debt Secyrities {Inchuding subordinated libilities) 3.332.53 1,748.10 69.79 4,650.42
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) 1162067 1,456.20 {43.68) 13,033.19
Total Liabilities from Financial Activities 14,953.20 2,704.30 26.11 17,683.61

% in Crores

As at March 31,

2022

2023

Debt Securities (lncluding subordinated libilities) 3,275.67 55.97 {9.11) 3,332.53
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) 10,944.93 648.65 27.09 11,620.67
Total Liabilities from Financial Activities 14,220.60 714,62 17.98 14,953.20

*includes the effect of amortisation of borrowing cost, interest accrued on borrowings, exchange differences and conversation factor of

derivative instruments.
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39 A.3 Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by movements in market rates
ar prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and for commodity prices resulting in a loss to earnings and capital.

Financial institutions may be exposed to Market Risk in variety of ways. Market risk exposure may be explicit in portfolios of securities / equities and
instruments that are actively raded. Conversely it may be implicit such as interest rate risk due to mismatch of loans and deposits. Besides, market risk may
also arise from activities categorized as off-balance sheet item. Therefore market risk is potential for loss resulting from adverse movement in market risk
factors such as interest rates, forex rates, equity and commodity prices.

The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk.

39 A.3{}) interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in market interest rates might adversely affect the entitys financial condition. The rise ov fall in interest rates
impact the Company’s Net Interest Income.

Total Borrowings of the Company are as {ollows:
T in Crores

Floating rate borrowings 7,.823.74 8,535.24
Fixed rate borrowings 9,859.90 6,417.97
Tatal borrowings 17,683.61 14.953.21

ot o prr ™
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As at the end of the reporting year, the Company had the foliowing floating rate borrowings:

AsatMarch 31,2024 i As at March 31,2023

: Weighted
Particulars . averaps
interest
rate

; Weighted
Balance %o of total leans - average interest Balance
rate

% of total
Ioans

Bank loans and bank overdrafts and
Securitisatdon Liability

Non Convertible Debentures - - - - - -
Net exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk 7.823.71 44.24% 8,535.24 57.08%
An analysis by maturities is provided in note 39 A 2{i) above, The percentage of total loans shows the proportion of loans that are currently at floating rates
in relation to the total amount of borrowings.

9.01% 7.823.71 44.24% 8.72% 8,535.24 57.08%

As at the end of the reporting year, the Company had the following cross currency interest rate swap contracts/ forward contracts outstanding:

AsatMarch 31,2024 : . _AsatMarch 33, 2023
Weighted
Particalars - average
: interest
rate

Weighted

Balance . .% of total loans * average interest Balance WO

foans

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps and
Forward Contracts 7.74% 1,523.99 8.62% 8.97%| 1,394.53 9.33%

The Company had following foating vate loang and advances outstanding: ¥ in Crores
: As at March 31,2024 ; As at March 31, 2023

Weighted
Balance shoftetal loans - average interest Balauce
rate

Weighted
Partivalars ; average
foterest
rate
Loans and advances* 23,511.48 X 18,228.34 100.00%

% pftotal
loans

*Since certain loans disbursed by Company carry a fix rate of interest only for an initial short tenure of the loan{not more than 3 years), all loans granted are
considered to be Roating rate loans

Sensitivi
Profitor !?ss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borvowings as a result of changes in interest rates. Other components of equity change as a result of an
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cash flow hedges related to borrowings,
% in Crores
Impact on other components of
equity .
FY2023-24 FY2022-23 FY 2023.24 FY2022-23

Particulars Impact on profit after tax and equity

Interest rates - increase by 30 basis points {30 bps) *
Interest rates - decrease by 30 basis points {30 bps} * | 17.56 19.16 - ] - !
* Holding all other variables constant
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Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from loans and advances as a result of changes in interest rates.
T in Crorves

Interest rates - increase by 30 basis points {30 bps) * 52.78 40.92
Llnterest rates - decrease by 30 basis points {30 bps) * | {52.78) 1 {40.92)

* Holding all other variables constant

39 A.3(3) Exposure to currency risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the [air value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company's exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primary to the foreign currency borrowings taken from banks and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB).

In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as cross curvency interest rate swaps and
forwards contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures and variable interest rate exposures, the Company’s central treasury department identities,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co- operation with the Company’s operating units

The Company follows a conservative policy of hedging its foreign currency exposure through Forwards and / or Crass Currency interest Rate Swaps in such a manner that it

has fixed determinate outflows in its functional currency and as such there would be no significant impact of movement in foreign currency rates on the Company's profit
before tax {PBT) and equity.

‘?ammla rs S Anount OQutstanding

: > fn INR InUSD
Borrowing as on March 31 2024 1,523.99 18.16

'_Burrowmg ason March 31, 2023 1,394.53 16.79

Since the Company has entered into derivative transaction ta hedge this borrowing, the Company is not exposed to any currency risk on
this borrowing,

39 A.3(111) Price Risk

The Company's investments carry a risk of change in prices. To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company periodically monitors the performance of the
investee. The Company's exposure t0 assels having price risk is insignificant,

39 A.3(1V] Competitions Risk

Company offers a range of mortgage products such as home loan, loans against property and construction of real estate, These are provided to a broad segment of customers
including salaried and self-employed personnel and corporates. We face competition primarily from othee HFCs. The major competitive factors among the peer group are an
extensive branch network, greater funding capabilities, wider range of products and services, and advanced technology offerings.
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39.B Capital Management

For the purpese of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is t¢ maximise the sharcholder value. The Company monitors capital using a capital adeguacy ratic as

prescribed by the NHB Directions/ RB{ Directions.

Farticulars

As at March 31,

2034

AsatMarch i1,
2023

Total Debt {X in Crores) 17,683.62 14,953.20
Total Equity {% in Crores) 6,447.40 5,553.20
Total Debt to Equity Ratio {times) 2.74 2.69

Total Debtinlcudes debt securities, borrowings [Other than Debt Securities) and subordinated liabjlities.

Total Equity includes equity share capital and other equity.

39.B.1 Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer an Hability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous} market at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of
whether that price is directly observabie or estimated using a valuation technique.

The Company evaluates the significance of financial instruments and material accuracy of the valuations incorporated in
the financial statements as they invoive a high degree of judgement and estimation uncertainty in determining the
carrying values of financial assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, Fair value of financial instruments is
determined using valuation techniques and estimates which, o the extent possible, use market observable inputs, but in
some cases use non-market observable inputs. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs can materially
affect the fair values of financial instruments. In determining the valuation of financial instruments, the Company makes
judgements on the amounts reserved to cater for model and valuation risks, which cover both Level 2 and Level 3
instruments, and the significant valuation judgements in respect of Level 3 instruments.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments:

%in Crores
o 3
4 3 ) i €0

Financial assets
{ash and cash equivalents - - 771.15
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents - - 294923
Receivables

(i} Trade Receivables - - 47.94
Loans - 3,810.85 19,329,63
Investments 401.60 - 180.48
Other Financial assets - - 486,44
Total financial assets 401,60 3,810.85 21,114.87
Financial labilities
Derivative financial instruments - 2.61 -
Trade Payables - 73.73
Lease liabilities - - 40.77
Debt Securities - - 3,613.04
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) - - 13,033.19
Subordinated Liabilities - 1,037.38
Other financial liabilities - - 1,052.19
Total financial liabilities 2,61 18,850.30

T in Crores
. . Asat March 81, 2023

: e FVTPL FVTOCH Amortised cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,628.26
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents - - 359.29
Derivative financial instruments (2.03} 44.02
Recejvables

[} Trade Receivables « - 40.59
Laans - 2,829.19 14,905.10
[nvestments 371.57 - 1,055.62
DOther Financial sssets - - 452.36
Tota] financial assets 369.54 2,873.21 18,441.22
Financial liahilities
Trade Payables - 50.95
Lease liabilities - - 29.72
{Jebt Securities - - 2,254.22
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) - 11,620.67
Subordinated Liahilities - - 1,078.31
(Other financial lizbilities - 897.91
Total financial Habilities - - 15,931.78
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39.B.2 Financial instruments measured at fair value - Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three levels according to the
observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values, Changes in the abservability of significant valuation inputs during the
reporting period may resul in a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Company recognises transters between
levels of the fair value hizrarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of ohservahility of the inputs to the
valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into

which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position.

Finarcial assets ond Habities mensured ot fatr vilue -

% in Crores

recurring fair value nieasurements Levetz
As at March 31,2024

Financial assets
Loans at FVTOC] - - 3,810.8% 381085
Investments

(i) Debt Securities, Security Receipts and -Sec 401.60 - 401.60
Total financial assets 401.60 - 3,810.85 4,212.45
Financial liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts and Lross Currency 261 R 261
interest Rate Swaps i )
Total financial liahilities 2.61 - 2.61

Financial assets awl Habllities meastured at faiy value «

recurring fair valite measurements Level 1 Level3
As at March 31, 2023

Financial assels
Loans at FVYTOC! - - 2,829.19 2,829.19
Investments

{i] Alternate Investment Fund and Debt Securities 371.57 - - 371.57

Foreign exchange forward contracts and Cross

Currency Interest Rate Swaps 41.99 41.99
Total financial assets 371.57 41.99 2,829.19 3,242.75

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

1. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement

date

2. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

3. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities,

Assets and Habilitles which ave meusured at omortised cost for which fuiy

values are disclosed
As at March 31,2024

Fair value

Carrying value

Fair value
hierarchy

Financial assets
Loans 19,327.76 19,329.63 Level 3
Investments

{i] In other securjties* 181.58 18048 Level 1 /Level 3
Total financial assets 19,509.34 19,510.11
financial Liabilities
Debt Secarities 3,479.24 3,613.04 Level 3
Subordinated Liabilities 1,029.13 1,037.38 Level 3
Total financial liabilitles 4,508.37 4,650.42

Assets and liabllities which are measyred at amortized cost for which fuir

valiies wre disclosed
As at March 31,2023

Fair value

Carrying value

% in Crores

Fairvalue
hierarchy

Fipancial assels
Loans 14.911.08 14,905.10 Level 3
Investments

{i1in other securities™ 1,058.02 1,055.62 Level 1 /Level 3
Total financial assets 15,969.10 15,960.72
Financial Liabilities
Debt Securities 2,169.44 2,254.22 Level 3
Subordinated Liabilities 1,006.65 1,078.31 Level 3
Total financial lHabilities 3,176.09 3,332.53

*Refer note no 8 for Investments measured at Amoritsed Cost. These are measured at Level 3
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With respect to Bank Balances and Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade Receivables , Other Financial Assets, Trade Payables and Other Financial
Liabilities, the carrying value approximates the fair value

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company's financiai statements. These fatr values were calculated for disclosure purposes only.

(i} Loans: The cash flows at the fixed rate were discounted to present value at the applicable internal benchmark rates . This value, as
estimated, was discounted to present vaiue at the applicable rates to determine their fair value.

(i) Investments in Other securities: Other Sccutities {e.g. certificate of deposits, commercial papers, etc.) are initially recognised at
transaction price and re-measured {to the extent information is available) and valued on a case-by-case hasis and classified as Level 1 and or
Level 3.

(111} Debt Securities and Subordinated Liabilities: The fair values of these instruments are estimated by determining the price of the
instrument taking into consideration the origination date, maturity date, coupon rate, actual or approximation of frequency of interest
payments and incorporating the actual or estimated/proxy yields of identical or similar instruments through the discounting factor. For
instruments, having contractual residuai maturity less than one year, the carrying value has been considered as fair value.

{iv} Financlal assets and liabilities: For financial assets and financial Habilities that have a short-term nature and lang term financial asseis
and liabilities having floating rate structure, carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
Such instruments include: cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
lease liabilities, other financial assets & liabilities.

33.B.3 Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following tables show a reconciliation of the opening and closing net amounts of Level 3 financial assets which are recorded at fair value,
¥ in Crores
Loans - FYTOCE

Particulars Asat March 31, AsatMarch 3%,
2024 2023

Opening Balance 2,82%.19 2,885.40
lL.oans derecognised during the vear [2,485.19 (2,274.81)
Loans originated {net) 3.466,85 2,218.60
Closing Balance 3,810.85 2,829.19

40.1 Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

During the year, the Company has sold loans and advances as per assignment deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of deal, since the
derecognition criteria as per IND AS 109, including transfer of substantially all the risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred to the
buyer being met, the assets have been derecognised. The management has evaluated the impact of the assignment transactions done during the
year for its business model. Based on the future business plans, the Company’s business model remains to held the assets for collecting
contractual cash flows.

The tabie below suminarises the carrying amount of the derccognised financial assets and the gain/(i0ss) on derecognition:

, Loaps and advances FY 2023-24
Larrying amount of derecognised financial assets 2 485.19 2,274.81
Cain from derecognition for the year 177277 149,85

fnvolvinent in derecosnised financial assets
AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
2024 2023

The tabie below summarisex the carrying amount of the continuin

" Loangand advances

Carrying amount of continuing involvement in derecognised financial assets

40.2 Trausferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety:

The Company uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transaction resulted in the transfer of contractual cash
flows from portfolics of financial assets to holders of issued debt securities. Such deals resulted in continued recognition
of the securitised assets since the Company retains substantial risks and rewards, The table below outlines the earrying
amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and associated
liabilities.

?in Croves

e 6 AX A% MAYrLH
$

Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 144.99 179.55

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 145.28 179.68

Fair value of assets 144.98 179.55 -
Fair vaiue of associated Habilities 145.28 179684 “
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43. RBI Disclosures

43 A. Disclosure made vide Notification “RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21" dated August 86, 2020 on Resolution Framework for COVID-
19-related Stress (Resolution Framework 1.0).

*)
Exposureto
accoumts classified:

Exposure to
accounts classified
4% Standard
cousequen! o

®) - m

as Standard of(A) ageregate 0 xy omount OF (A) amount

Type of Borrower debt that slipped
into NPA during

the half year

paid hy the
berrower during
the half year

consequent to
implementation of Implementation of
resolution plan as vesolution plan as
at September 2023 at Mareh 2024

written off during
the balf year

ra Lo 199198 5.68 8.91 25,63 156.04
Corporiate persons 785 - 272 4.83 -
uf which MSMEs - - -
Others W23 4.23 0.75 2.70 75.56
Total 293.96 9.83 12.38 40.16 231.60

43 B. Disclosure made vide Notification No - RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC}.CC.PD.N0.10%/22.10.106/2019-20 on "Implementation of Indian Accounting

{% in Crores)
Difference
between ind

AS 109

As st March 31,2024

Loss
Asset Allowances Provisions
- Classification  Gross carrying {Provisions} Net Carrying reguired as rovisions
asperind AS  Amount Ind 45" agrequired Amonnt periRACP provis

109 under Ind AS norms LY
' 109* norms

Asset Classification as per RBI Notes

{1) 3] (3) {41 (5} = (3p(4) {6} (7)=(4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 21,991.78 11540 21,876.38 84.60 30.80
fear Stage 2 1,178.78 134.42 1.044.36 17.52 11690
Subtotal 23,170.57 249.82 22,920.74 102.12 147.70
Non-Performing Asset
Substandard Stage 3 220.39 55.89 154.50 33.30 3259
Subtotal for Substandard 22039 65.89 154.50 33.30 32.59
Doubtful upto 1 year Stage 3 103.42 33.94 69.48 29.82 412
1to 3 years Stage 3 16.48 6.84 9.64 6.84 0.00
Mare than 3 years Stage 3 0.62 0.62 - 0.62 Q.00
Subtotal for doubtful 120.52 41.40 79.12 37.28 4.13
Loss Stage3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA* 340.21 107.29 233.62 70.57 36.72
Other items sych as guarantees, loan Stage 1 3,188.73 11.68 317708 - 11.68
commitments, etc. which are in the scope Stage 2 38.43 2,20 36,23 - 2.20
of Ind AS 109 but nut covered under Stage 3 - . .
Subtotal for Other Items 3,227.16 13.88 3,213.28 - 13.88
Stage 1 25,180.52 127.09 25,053.43 84.60 42.48
Total Stage 2 1,217.22 136.62 1,080.59 17.52 119.10
ota Stage 3 340.91 167.29 233.62 70.57 36.72
Total 26,738.64 371.00 26,367.64 172.70 198.30
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As at March 31, 2023

%

Asset Classification as per RBY Notes

Asset

- Edassifivation
a8 perlnd 45

i09

Hross areying
Amount Ind AS*

Los§
Allowances
. fProvisions}
a8 required
under ind AS
109*

Net Carrying

Amount

Provisions
required as
per IRACP
norms

{1inCrores
Difference

between ind

A5 109
provisions
and IRACP

norms

{1} iz} €3] (4} (5} = (3)-{1) {6} (7}=(4)-(6}
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 16,754.94 248.09 16,506,86 91.87 156.21
Stage 2 1,087.31 118.89 968,41 24.44 94.45
Subtotal 17,842.25 366.98 17,475.27 116.31 250.66
Nos-Performing Asset
Substandard Stage 3 301.80 79.386 22244 46.39 3297
Subtotal for Substandard 301.80 79.36 222.44 46.39 32.97
Doubtful upto 1 year Stage 3 60.26 16,88 4339 1596 0.92
1103 years Stage 3 21.99 2.91 12.07 9.91 0.00
More than 3 years Stage 3 Z2.04 2.04 - 2.04 0.00
Subtotal for doubtful 84.29 28.83 5546 27.92 0.92
Loss Stage3 - .
Subtotal for NPA* 386.09 108.19 277,30 74.30 33.89
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 2,070.33 17.72 2,052.61 - 17.72
commitments, etc. which are in the scope Stage 2 28.09 1.17 26.52 - 1.17
of Ind AS 109 but net covered under Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal for Other Hems 2,09841 18.88 2,079.53 - 18.88
Stage 1 18.825.27 265,80 18,559.46 91.87 173.93
Total Stage 2 1,115.39 120.05 995.33 2444 95.62
Stage 3 386.09 108.19 277,90 74.30 33.89
Total 20,326.75 494.05 19.832.70 190.61 303.44

in terms of the requirement as per RBI notifications no RBI/2019-20/170DOR(NBFC).CC.PDNe.109/22,10,106/2019-20 dated March 13,2020 on implementation of
Indian Accounting Standards,Non-Banking Financial Companies {NBFCs) are requived to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall In impairment allowances under
ind AS 109 and Income recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) Norms (including provision on standard assets). The impairment allowances under ind
AS 109 made by the Company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning) as at March 31,2024 and for March 31, 2023 and

accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to iinpairment reserve,
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43¢€. Dasclosures as per the Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021: The fullowing additional disclosures have been given In terms of the Notification RBY/2020-21/73 DORFIN.HFC.CCNo.120/03,10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2621

Liguidity Risk Management Frimework

¥ iR Croves)

1 Total High Quality Liquid Axsets (HQLAY 622.19 60023 785,46 71801 1,0067.78 385.60 669.74 657,02
Cash and Bank Batance 5111 5111 $609 44.09 26,51 26 51 3416 3216
Fixed deposits (other than those invested for the
purpose of Section 296 of NHE Act, 1987} - - . N - - >
Liquid Investments .86 0.86 ¢37 0.3 - N
HOLA Investments 7108 54810 FU651 673,05 a77 90 §58.72 839 58 E26 4
Cash Cutfiows
2 | Deposits {for deposit king companies} - - - - - - - -
3 [Unsecured wholesale funding 219 52 242 135 11.18 12.85 1650 18,44
4 ISecured wholesale funding 346 46 39843 32177 370.04 40591 A66 80 389.64 448.09
S fAddihonal requirements, of whick
Dutflows related to dertvative exposures and
{$) _Jother collateral requirements

Qutflows refated Lo foss of funding on debt
Uiy iproducts
(i} 1Credit and liquidity facilities

B {Dther contraciuat funding obligations 124.29 14291 91403 104 68 7879 9060 5866 5826

7 jOther contingent funding ebligations 214.17 246.29 45397 52184 37546 43178 31956 36749

B [Total Cash nutflows HH7.11 73037 869.49 999.9% 87134 1,002.03 776,76 893.28
Cash Inflows

Y ISecured jending

10 finflows from fully pecforming exposures 295.25 22144 271732 20373 260,05 19504 249.48 W7
11 Pother cash faflows 22593 169.45 41104 308.28 748.28 561.1% 553 20 41490
12 iToetal Cash fnflows 521,18 396.89 GH2.76 512.07 1,008.30 756.23 8G2.68 602.01
Total Adjusted Yalue Total Adjested Vatue Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 [Total HQLA 680,21 710.01 985,60 657.02
14_|Total Net Cash OQuiflows 399.28 487.84 250.51 291.27
15 |Liquidity Coverage Ratio{%} 156325 147,59% 393.44% 225.57%

Note. LUR computation ig based on Managemunt estimation of future inflows and nutflows and 18 retted upon by the auditers.
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1 in Crores)

) Axar March 31,2023 i Asat Hecemiier 31, 2082 : AsatSep 30,2022, Asat june 30,2002 i
Particuliry Total Unweighted Yalue.  Totwl Weighted Valus Tolal Udwelghted Vaine . Total Weighted Value & - Total Unweighted ¥Value  Tortal Welghted Value - TotalUnweighted Value ©  Total Widghted Value |
oo {verage} _faveragey 0 faverage} o fanerage} {average} faverapel {averame} {averane)
T [Total Miph Guality Liguid Asscts (HQLA) 534.79 43278 61533 524,53 27148 233.63 29571 29571
Cash and Hank Balance 807 807 599 9.99 19.18 19.18 3457 3457

Fixed deposits fother than those invested for the

purpose of Sectien 298 of NHE Aet, 1987} - - - - - v 2nl 34 28114
Ligquid Invesbments - - - ~
HQLA [nvestinents 526.72 44771 H05 24 S1454 25230 21145 - -
Cash Outflows
2 {Neposits (or deposit wking compasiss} B N - N
3 secured wholesale funding 12.96 14 94 299 3.43 14.13 16.25 543 6.24
3 o 345,34 39714 380 65 437,75 356 36 509,81 33846 3R 45
5 jAddibonal requirements, of which - N
Dutflows related to derivative exposures and
(i) _{other colisteral requirements - - - -
Oudflows related to loss of funding on debt
(i} fproducts - - . -
i} iCredit and hiquidity favifies - - - -
B j(nher contractual funding ohhigations §7.18 77.49 5233 £0.17 5258 B 47 5271 6177
7 {Other contingent funding oblipations 146 10 168.01 144.28 16593 5 143 83 16541 14103 1218
& {Total Cash suttlows 57178 657,53 90,25 647,28 566.90 651.94 53802 619.64
Cash Inflows
% {Secured lending
10 [inflows from fully performite exposures 232.27 174.20 227.61 1706 76 217,72 1683.29 20845 156,34
11 {Other cash inflows 201082 1,508.12 145296 1,089.72 1,245.75 934 32 159.1% 11933
12 |Total Cash inflows 2,243.09 168232 1,680,356 1,26042 1,463.47 1,097.61 367,56 275.67
‘Total Adjusted Value Totat Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 {Total HQLA 455.78 52453 233.63 295.71
14 {Total Net Cash Qutfiows 164.39 166.82 162.98 34397
15 |Liguidity Caverage Ratio{%) 277.26% 314.43% 143.35% 85.97%

Note: LOR computation is based on Management estimation of future mflows and outflows and is relied upon by the auditors.

43D, Details of loans transferred / scquired durtng the year ended March 31, 2024 under the REL Master Direction on Transfer of Loan Fxposures dated September 24, 2021

¥ in Lrores)

Anat March 31, 2023

Particulars Asak March 31, 2024

1 ICount uf Lean Assigned 17024 15898

2 jamount of Loan transferred 248519 2,274 81

3 Retention of beneftal Economic Interest{ MRR} N 10% 10%

4 | Wt Averape Maturiyy {Residual Maturity) 207.65 mopths 19167 months

S Wit Average Holding Period 13.44 months 12,64 months

& __Coveraps of Tangible security 100% 100%

7 {Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrawed Unratedy,

: i

e
W
i\

2
e
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44. Distlosures as pev the Nan-Banlung Financisl Company - Rousing fiaance Lampany {Reserye Rank} Directions, 30T 1: The fuhiwng 28010141 dasclosanes hasr been gven i terms of the Hubikanun

RBE;2020-217 3 DORFNHFCLC N 120/03.20 136/2020-21 dated February 37, 2021 3 ameaded #om Gme to timme,

Th helew meatisacd rotes have bres prepared 4 gor Bdlan Accounnng Sandards {lud AN} nataiied uraler section £33 6f the Comaparses A2t 2817 4798 Act™) read wath

Ralrs, 20235 {INB AS )

44.1, Public disclosvrs an Hyuidity risk.

§] Funding Concentration besed on significant counterparty (hath deposity and borrawings}

ottt Depois

Morch 33 L
i Marck 1)
Kot
*The above ameusat does fotincude Bofrnwings oo »veunt af shrasativg trangacton,
T Tatat Lrakiiies has Been compited 33 Tett) Labibies Jecs EQuaty share ragitad less hber Kigutey:

18 1393413
{ TZ00n 16 | WAL

{41] Tap 20 large depusits [ampunt in s Milions and % of total doposits] - Not Applteable
{i#i)Top 30 borrawings

11 ¥yeras

Marchy 33,2024 12,652 36 §
Mareh 33 7003 1 15633 28 | LI
THte:; The alsuve AMARL Jors AT ISCiude Rottewse g% 0 ICoURE Of SEOUTtHISAt D TrARISCIs.

(v} Funding Concentration hased or sipnificant instrement / product

{30 Erares)

Pars o hew Lymtunt At (¥ i Cracy St Sudak

Libikities*
Nua Lonvesthle Debenturex 431788 % )
Tierm Loans 1276780 67.25% 1144074 70 46%
Secarisation 13570 D375 7958 it
Cash Credit { Uverdralt Faribias 12041 D4I% 13 BO%
Tammercal gages 23263 123% . Q Gy

"Nute - Total Laabiles has been camjnaed as Tota? bishitityes tess Enusty chate capataf {pss Other Equty
Sigaficant mstrament /praduct is as defined on RE} Liooodur RBE2019. 20,88 DOANBEC{PO] CLM0. 10203 13001/ 2019-20 dated Nawember 4, 201 on

Leguidaty Risk Management Framewnrk for Non-Baskoy Finansial £ and Cove b mert Camp
{v) Slock Ratias
March 3%, 202

Nil
Hon-convirthly detentures fonginat matunty v sy thad uae year) 35 2 % of fotal pablic fuds Ni)
Hon-conyertible dubentures {arigingl raaturity of less £33 png yrat] 3¢ 2 % of totad obilizies Hil
Non-roywertibly debentuies {origusal maturity pf less than one vear) a5 2 % of 1ota] axxety Ml
Crtier short-teres Hablities as 3% of tota) public s 8494
iiver shorttermy habulities 2s 3 % of toval lab ey 76 h1%]
Ether shurf-term Liabiities as a3y ol wesl assats 18.83%

fv1) 1astiutianal set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

panies Undun A g Stanstards}

The Board of Directors of the Company has 90 pyerall revpunsibiley and eversight for the management of o¥i the riuks, inchuding liguediry risk, 20 whish the Company is axpesed toia the covcse 8 conductng its
business. The Board appraves the gevernante struet e, poleses, edtegy sud the sk imits lor the snanagement of lgaigity o3k, The Boaed 2l Directors spgroves the tonstitution of the Risk Management
Commttee (RMC) for the effecnve supervisim, rvafeation, monitus ing snd review of varuwus aspedts and types of risks, mdding liguidiy risk. fared by the Company. Fircther, the Botrd of Drectsrs alsn appmaves
crstitutson o Asset Liahiizty Commttor {ALLL, which functions as e strateic decisson making bedy for the asset-hiubildy maragemesnt of the Company fram rizh return persgmetive 3d within Dye 233k appestite

and guard-raifs appravad by the Boaed.

The mn vbeclive of ALEO 14t assiag the Baasd and RMC sp effective dunchrge of the vespumaibilitiad of as:et.hiabiisty management inarket risk management, Higundity 3nd snterest rate risk management and aiso

16 ensnew adbepoare o sk 1olerance/ s se) up by the Buard,

ALCD provisies gusdaoie and diterhans in b of interest rite. ligddty, twadag saurces, angd investaveri of surpius fuds. ALCD meetiags are Neid anck in & @onth o7 mare regaemly as wareanicd feorn tiae 23

tpe

The Company aive matiges Bquidity 157 by mamtaming 97hoent tayvh snd by having 3ctess tn funding tirough 40 adeguate amount of <redit lines. The Company serks 0 Matatain Texihility 10 funibng mix by

vy of aenrcng the funds throwgh ey tarkis, ebl mazkets sl ks to ment 1ox busdigss and hquidty requirpments.

Dincissat e G Fringypsd buslnesé vriturie

4532 "
b Mo araons Mk n 2028

[Lirtai Houseng Loans 1%]" £ 3% S0l
ieidivichy s} Howsing Lons [#.1° I 62 04%1 53 30%)

U5 of Total assets nested ofsniaophie 355615

44.3. Other Discloyures a5 per B Hon-Banking Financiat Company - Housing Fraance Lompany {Heserve Bank} Dircciions,

L Sapiial {€in Croreey

% 3 1 2w
l.l CRAR - Tier 1 Canital £ 3787 33.24
2} TRAR - Tiet il Capiga) {3 522 8%
1103 Avnant of ke rdinaled deld raised ax Tier 3 Usnets) 73270 92D 14
v} Amowent pacsed by issue of Perpebial Dede [nstyuvients . :

11} Heserve fund /3 29C of KHB Act, 1937

Irores)
e 5

Balance at the baginning of the year

23 Sratubory Beserve 45 39C of e NILB Act 1987 38406 4638
L Amaarnt of spesial zeserve Ufs 3511 )ivin) of income Tax Act 1981 takar ko accownt for the pueposes of Staturory Reserve L5

25C of the NiH Act, 1987 . ™,

29 ofthe NHiH Act, 19 43901 15639
€) Total 58107 9T
Addivtion fAppeopriation Withdrawal dursag the year

Ady s Amwyrgiransferred 248 296 of the RID Ast 1987 8251 3544
%) msenns of specaal reserve £265 I8¢ 1 )ivisi] af (ncomse Tox Act, 194§ Laiomn 03t secotist far the pricgoses of Statsttory Reseree (5

o B of, Y987

2 of the MUEB A 7 1a2uy 19762
fesa: 3l Amenns Foprepriated from the Satutory Reswrya 1 /S 94 of the WIHE Act, 1987 ~ -
by Amoant withsitswe from the Special feserve t% YA(1Hviit} af Inzome Yax Aet. 1961 wrizh has heew taien ints sccaunt fot this

purpuse of peonstsn U fs 29 of the NRB Act 0287
i{Bajance at the end of the year

a3 Statutesy Beserve Uds 191 af the NHE Act 3987 15457 132,06
1] Amunnt of specad resesve Ufs 3643 Woon) wf Inewise Tax Art, 1563 raken ints account fo7 the purpases af Satitary Geserve s

29€ of the NUB Act, 1997 51190 preen
¢} Total 766,47 561487

e




HEL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standstone Financial Satements 85 2t and for the year ended Mavch 31, 1024

LY tnyrshments

Aj Vatue of Invesinienis

11 Giroxy Value of invesnmenty

(a8 tnisdia®

by Outsule tadss

113 Provision for Deprenativn

1) in fndia

by Outside India

153

Sid Netk valor of bayextryonts

{s} i tudha

b Owtmde lndia

314 29

142883

B} Mevement of pravisives hield towards depraciztion on Investments

it Bpeang balance

D46

.85

15} A Provisions made during she yeas

332

03

[iv] Laess: Write-olf / Weds hunds f vecess provisiens durag the vear

435

{(i¥} Closing blancs

15%

D46

* Incluides wvestmerd propesty sf $ 274 Crenen (a5 2t March 34, 202312 75 Lrorrs |
1V} Derivatives

s Foeward Bale Agreanant (FRA1J Inteeest Rate Tnay [HHS] 1% 1 Crores)

Marew 8%, 2003

Harth AL 4524

{3 Tho nutionad arincipal 0f SWAp IEreemapts s fpTwand euptrats IREPN ¥
{5 Losses whivh waubd be dcurred §f counterparting fadled to fuifil thes

ohligatinns unders the agresmantz : L]
{1s1] Loliateral required by the BEC upun entesing wte swaps bl K

The Company has entered {nto dezivaiises

iv} Conzentration of cradit rivk arging frnm th swaps
v % A cantrart with the Schedule Lommercial Banks.

$i) The faiv walug uf the 5wy books nrward rontracts* 261 4198

* Fai vajue 35 at March 17, 2024 represents Terneaton Lsabihnes and fur the yeas end March 31, 2022 represepts Decivative Assets

b, Exchangs Traded Juterest Rate {IR} Dertvative

(oA DU sosesth o f vackangs tratid IR Sers atzey weits baken darig the gy fincirurment wised

ek 34,2024

{ir) Notonal priscipal amoust of exehapgs traded (0 denvatives gutstanding 28 on 31 Marck 2024 pastrument wive}

i) Notaonal priscrpal amount of enchange soaded 1R derrratves susstandiig and a0t “ghly effectae” [instrument wive}

i) Mitrg-to-matket valoe of axchange trated |8 geavatoves otatatdsg and pot “hechiv eflechvs” fingtrunent wise]

[i} Kntioral prineinad mmount of exchange yraded IR denveshives Godertalone anning the yeor (inchrment. wive]

in Ceores

Mares 38 2084

(i) Momanal pringipal amcunt of exchangs traded IR derrratives putstanding s on 315t March 2003 (instrament-wise}

gis] Notiunal princpat smoust of exchange traded (K dessvatives esestanthong and st Nghly effertrve’ [msirument-wise}

{iv] Magk-to- grnarket value of pechange traded (8 dersvativy A 10t "hrghty sifactive” firsrummeat wise)

. Bisclosures vp Risk Exposure in Dertyalives

A, Qualitative Disctosure

The Company has Lo manags varwas Tiske 25p00atrd with D lunding basensgs. These rieho e bade bquday risk, exchange rish, interest rate risk and conmterparty fish

T manags theas tsks, e Campray bas hoard spproved pokey famiwork Tor derivatives,

with its genessl
wondd be further integrated int the company's cverall Fisk managensens gystem

Ity fur orporate governance. The manegement ol desivabive activity

The ratwnate far hedgrag riskn rase of the campany 3¢ th reduce pozental sos2s ol Grdasial distress by making the campaoy less vulnesatir to adverse mackes Aeavements it wterest rate, excnange rate et and
%

alsu rreate 2 stakle planmny e ronint e ol bage fucteations oa ta (ipanclals of the compang due to market movements

Chyectivas of the puisey

« Sbentify andl rianage the company's gebt and eelated iaterast rase risk

= Heduce overatl interest cost of the company

» Managermanit of lareigh currency paskions, dervatve riansactions aed reiaaed Nisks

« Toevatoste and measure these righs and the sensivity th aperatinms

« Exrabiish processes for menstanng and tontrsl of the 11385 23 per pohey

* Effective MIS and vegular raporting of pissiions a5 715k to the Rigk Maragement Lommastes

B Quantitative Tisclosure

Ladtoncy,
BDerivagives,

Inkcrens Hate Berbegsives
Marels 31, 2620

spakrer iNLt

{1} Macked to Marks: Pusitions
(3E Assors ()
D] Lighdite (-3
11} Tredit Exnesure - N
{iv] Unhedged Exposures e o

st oy ey n

Durteitives  Titerest Hale Dorivatives
Marih 31, 2008 Misch 1, 208F
133183 -

{uf fierivatives ot i Pranoipal Azauns) Fur Bragy g
§i1} Markead 1o Sarket Pesibons
(a3 Assets 12} 34039 -
0 Lisinday (=% 271 N
{1 Credit Fxpersare B 3
(7o) Unliodgs Exposures - -

e 2 e,




HFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalowne Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

V) Assets Liability Manapement {Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)

" Particutars

Liahilitiey

Idayto 7days BdaytoiSdays

15 dayto
3G/31 days

Overito?
muonths

OverZta3
months

- Qverdtoé
months

Over 6 months to
1 year

Qver § te 3 years Quer 3 to Syears

Over 5 years

¥ in Crores)

Peposits ] 0 S [ 0 Q ® @] ® 0 @)
Borrowings from Bank 18.33 10.72 49.50 45.31 386,37 603.04 1,148.16 3,83240 2,935.28 2,480,10 11,509.20
{7.62) (21.33) (38.55) (70.47) {473.82) {568.78) (1,203.13) (3,484.38) (2,210.32) {2,147.74) {10,226.14)
Market Borrowing 6.94 - §4.90 241.54 35.92 70.13 567.05 1,015.16 1,715.60 913.19 4,650.43
i {6.63) (50.00) (3.00) {23.34) (3.11) (33.781 {16.30) {669.76) (304.97) (2,221.64) (3,332.53)
Foreign Currency Liabilities - - 9.4?4 56.25 B ('»7.73 135.45 }90,77 341.80 422.5$ 1,523.99
{2.30) ! -} {42.80) ) (RE3, 151 The.60) {250.00] (250.00) (343.78) (1,394.533

Assets
Advances 121.11 113.33 576.84 414.99 433.31 950.61 1,988.69 6,443.56 4,299,34 7,798.70 23,140.48
{94.57) {84.71) {446.93) {310.95) (327.39) {989.11) (971.00) (5,077.19} (3,034.23) {6,398.21) {17,734.30})
lvestments 0.03 003 48,32 6.36 0.12 0.26 55.05 104.98 77.81 240.16 583,12
{99.94) (99.78) (398.56) {259.13) (196.97) (0.08) (161.59) (51.04) (28.06) (132.09) {1,427.24}
Foreign Currency Assets 5] @) ) 3 &) 5] B! ) 5] ) (-

Camputation of ALM is based on Management estimation of future inflows and outflows and is relied upon by auditors.

Figuresin brackets (} represents previous year's figures.

Maturity pattern of Advances disclosed above are hased on behavioural maturity pattern.
Borrowings from Bank includes borrowings from Financial institutions.

Foreign Currency Liabiliies means borrowings from banks




HFL HOME FINARCE UIMITED
Notes furming part of Standalene Financiat Statements av at and for the year ended March 34, 2024

Vi Exposure

=3 Fapodsre (o Vel Extate Markot

Harch 43, 200% Mareh V3,023
2} Pl ect exposir ¢

{tjuestdontial Mastgages.

Lerdirg fally severys by meoxgages oo eesidenzal

reperyy it 13 o waill he axcoped py e boss swss artbat o reated, 2245141 17,2248

[iHLemmnercial Keat Estate-

Lending segured by martgages on eomytprzial real eskate’s {office busdsiangs redadd spave meihporpose somruercial premises mult-
fumly residentsd] bukdngs multvtensnted commersal premises sdustrial of warehause space botels land acyuisiiva dev.
ant consirarbnn etv | Exposire wold abie inciade won-Sund based{NEB liants,

pment

850 85 310419
| [ Inyestments in Mosiguge Backed Secorities(MBS]} and other secusitized 2xposures.
 Resutenual 520 ThL
b {nspmrcon] Rost Estate ) ”
Fapsd hased and sun-fund hased suparutes an Natnnl Bapsirs Banki KR ird Housing B s Companmes(BFCa) 75.0% B
VUntal Exposurs o Real Estate Secrer 2159362 18,235.45

Leposure incuges amount eatstandiag indhudng P erpal, and wierost stirwed,

Thae sove formiston & prowaded as per MIS eepodts goviratal avadable foy nternal seporting saspowr whirh intiude ertam estimates sed aanmpnos. The namie has feen cetied
uptin by audiors

b} Exposuce o Capita) Market

{2 ta Cror

Rarch

L B exgranres m Altersative Envestment Furds:
] _Caegury ! -
{41), Category it . 16134
fin} Lategory il .

Total Expagure fo capiCsl market : 16144

Note: [nvestments are thown as marid fu muacket,

(b4} Seetoral exposurs

Feryonal basns

1 in Frores)

«. Housing 18479, W17 1.05% 1299857 2533

130%

iz Hop-houming® 7,357 146.54 203% 619335 15371

248%

Total Personad oans 35,536,446 34091 1.33% 19.190.97 366,09

2.91%

|Others:

i Lonstrurtion Finance 120219 - JEEEED)

Total 16,138.65 34091 1.27% 20,326.7% 3BbH.09

1.95%

* Marsy-Hesing Joan inctaies ons ayainst prapyriies The obave dxpoust e includes sanction but smbishrted amaunt
«] betalls of financing of parent campany products: The Campany dees ot hirve any expasure ba financng of pareat company products
4} Single Borrower Umit {SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (LBL} exceeded by the HFC: The Company has nat exceeded the SGL and GBE Limas

2§ Unsecursd Advantes: The Company dnes rot bave any unsesursd afdvani es sit the Torm of rghts, hoensek, authnrisations, eto. itut are chorped as toflateral ioz e puirpraes of
linancing. The Company does not Save any unvreured advances other than thuse manticned in Mot 7

1] Exposure to group companses engaged in real estale business

£ XY

7 EXpusure 20 iy S etiiee 50008 10 5 £10000 igasmd o, Yra witete bl N
|k Expronge o srbites on 2 group engaged 1o o estiate busiesy 1 - -3

K} ingra group exposures

“pavtiealars L e ik March 4208

Tursd anmusrs oF inira group gxjrosures

Tosal uroount 6f 1op 28 stkra-REGUE TN pRAITAS 1185 | 2047 |
Percertags nf miragnug rapusares to tutal expasurr of fise NOBFE w0 borzuw ersjoustamers | .05 a13%)

* Naste ntra-graup axpasurs it Jusdes 0ff balsnce sheeltens {ie Sanchoand but prudisbursed loans}.

&) Unbedgest preigh cocrensy exposare

“Mauch 352024

Total ameunt of wikedged inzeign tusrency expasures




HFLHOME FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Fisanclal

44,34 Retated Party Blsclosure

as 3t and for the yeas ended March 31, 2024

ANBURIHE S JUBHR.

{3 inCroves)

Parent G per St " ; Koy Manapepent : <
owaneshipor :‘:"0’3 SR ki mff&mw Perssanel Koy Manageaient Parsunivel s Diburste Folyt
MarB 3L - MancR3L . March3%  Stamcbdy 0 Mach3s _ March a3, ‘March®t,  Mwsthilt. Mapch 3,  Marchdl March2Y,  Mamh3L, March3f, Manch 31
024 2033 2024 2022 "B P 2024 IS 2024 2023 2024 2023 2023 FES
 Rorrowiegs
Gutstanding - - - 209 297 2.09 29.75
Maximum (ugztardty) - - - - ~ - - 200 29 2.09 2935
Advances®
[ Jing 530 494 - 446 - 1133 -
Hapmum Dytstanding 5.Rg 499 - - - 046 1133 -
Suvestments N - » - > . - - -
Dusstanding - 0.85 das - - - - 0.85
Magmum tutstunding - . 885 005 - - - 0.05
Purchase of fivedywiber asseys 9.66 0.32 0.81 XY - - - 8403 22 055

sale of fixed/other assets D48 0.6 a3 038 M 0.62 3% 1.3

Iterest pard - - : - - - 2.60 .59 899

Interesy received 238F 1.07 - .19 551 LAL] s - 58,56 0.1z 1138

jotherz
porate Soctat Responsibibity Expense {CSRY N - - - 1649 FiIRKS 16,40 8.52
Unsggmamounlm(wd v - . - - . 353 - 3.54 -

. : Sain » - 22.7% 13.65 - - .84 840 2387 16.05
fnmmnslan[ Bmkerasg Expanse - - - eo7 : oy .
Brokerage Expense Heverssl - . . - - - - 028 . 9.98
Rewwneration snd Compets shion 1o KMP > . - 2220 1063 - - 2220 10.63
Situng Fees paid Lo Pivectars & Commission to
Piewctars - - - 1.0% (A% - 1.05 0.64
Interim uvideed Fayment 11532 RAKT - - » . - - . 115832 B3.RY
intenim Drvidend Recesved - . - - 125 - - - - . 1.25
MR Lazan Givers 1,450,000 3000 800 40000 33500 - -~ - - L455.00 Itoon 1305.00 1453.00
1CD Loan recnived bach 145000 3onen B 4G 50 77500 - N 1.455.00 37800 3,305.08 1,453.00
Puichase of investment 63.84 - - - - < - 8184 -
Sale of Investment - Equity Share 238 25%.08 - - v - - 2.38 259.08
Netntere Accrued - - - - ; - . 497 0.07 -
fonymission an Corporate Guatasdes 493 - 3 - - - - - - - 493 -
Qtter Paid 3182 .44 859 257 - - - 348 6.63 69.28 79.6%
iher Recetved 123 273 941 a4 : - - 0.68 981 2.02 296

* fiFL Samasts Finance Limted [Fueminly Samasta Microfinance Lamsted] {ceased to be an svsosoate from uly 27, 2022}

** Dther Group Companies
~ 10Dy given and wken back Bave been shown separately










1L HOME FINANCE LIMITED
KNotes forming part of Standatone Fikanaal Statements us a2 hod for the year ended Marrh 31,2024

34.5, Addirinnal Disclesvres

1} Dutails okt Provizions and Contingencies
2] Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shawn under the head Expenditure in Proft and Loss Account

Brealcap of Provrdons and Cmtnmenties vhows endty e hvad
Exgraidiiucsin vrolis o Lo Fvaunt

Frowsigng fer degrecistion on foyesnnent® i.:3 350
[Pravision towards NFAS 733} (430}
Pruvision made tnwards bneoime tas 361.37 23257
Sither Bepvarinn and Conzngang ks*?” 29348 528
|Yeowision for Standard Asseks (with details tke teacer foan, CRE, CRE-RH {12215, 1588

“iactudes deprecianon up bivesiment Prapenty.
=7 Ingludes proviaen towards Trade Receivabies of €6 43 Urores [PY, € 5440 Crerces),
**Incledes proviswes for amplovee hanefigs,

b} Break up of Loany asd Advances and Provistiens tberson

r;
Ty it Led and Adanges uk : Housing. i g .
Frovarinne therwin smstariigane SIS ot | UeiaaaL
Sandard Assets
2% Tuzal Dutstand ng Amount L6 RIB 7T 1235047 £36185 339138
b) Provigions made 14408 23224 31963 15360
Sub-Standard Asyaly - -
33 Total Derstanding Apsent 31243 19192 18728 1$9.88
o} Brovislasns made WS 395 3047 2540
Ooubtiu] Asyels - Category § - B
| 2] Total Dot standing Aot 924 3367 438 3858
by Provivngs auagde 2365 iR 1438 A86
Poubiful Assets -Lategary If - N
{a] Total Qutstsnding Amonnt 337 509 0y 1550
BE Frovisens mads 188 47 295 44
i Doubtful Assets - Category 11 - -
4] Tutal Datataneng, Armvastnk 7% B.98 218 108
{h] Prosesimay made X i) #.18 108
{hass Assets
3} Towst Dutstanding Amaunt - - < -
] Provisiuns made . . M
Total
9] Total Outstanding Amount 17.000.43 12,583.62 6,511.08 S840
1) Provisions Amount 206497 29969 164.03 194.3%
1, tn the azset ck and pr i in tesins of the RBI guidelings, HFCs are regusred to disclnse the dwvergendce in asset classification and provisianing
c.vn»eqaﬁuk 1o NHE's assessment in thers 40kes 20 2crpunts 1o the Gnannad , whesever the addi ¥ forang asiessed } gross BPAs it et by BiHR

excerds the shrrshaid speaafied in the gundelines. During the year ended ¥Y 24 mspection was carried out fur £Y 23 .\nd The final report s awaited.

HI} Detarts on drawn drown from resesves
Thy disclasurs pertainsag to drawsn dowst from Reseers has hewes disciosed shaws in Detorr Fguity {Refer 2o 210

1¥} Loncentration of Puliic Depastts, Asdvances, Exposures snd NPAy

2} Concentratian of Public Deposiis: The Company, bring a non-tepait taking huusing i:6 ance company, does sot bl any
deposits fram puhke

3 i6 Crurey’
PO Aem Morch 34, 2852

1103} depusise bf twenry 1ar]
Perventage of uposits uf ternly fargest deposenss ta rolal deposits pf the
depmait aldng HFC . .

b} € of Leans & Ad

% 10 Lrorey

Rigt Marhy e, 2015

y : RN R,
Fartivatars Yoas

eal Loaas & Advaiees b LAty i
#ercentage of Loans & Advances to Ywenty lacgest borrowers 1o Tokas Advanees of
the HEC 2.29% 4574

£} Gonceptration of ail Exposure {i t-bral; sheet expa 1]

3 Inrgest burrowers £ oustomers
{Percrntags of Bxa %o twenty bargest 1 customers t Total
iExpesure of the BEG op briowers £ vustumers
fote, Exposure meludes amouat mastindsng mciugding priswipal, mtered, araraed, vaamortised processing fee, modidication gam loss
and sanctiened bat undisharsed.

341 £ npentsdtion 1§ NPAS

At M 36,2088

A Howglog boogs

1 adsvisuais 1 is%: 1.468%,
7 Buriders/Project Losns -
3 Lorporares 3nelg 2364,

A Others {specify’ - -
8. Nen-Housing Loang
L2, Non Nousing Taank

¥ Tndidals 2 35% 3
7. Burlders/Peoect Laans ) $0% 3 A%
Y Carporates 2% 243,
3 othiers (Speriy) - -
Rore:

1 The jwrtentage shown ahove Dave heer camputed hasts the NPA smeunt of the calegory diviied by the sutstanding of the
sesprntive Tategaiy

2.The above (Afermatin s provtbid as pet MiS renorts genrratest svaiabos fur mkernat reporong pui pase which include crrtan
estimates an asmptist, The sarne has keer refied upan by audiers




1FFL, HOME FINANCE LIMITRED
Notes forming part of Standsinne Finandiad Stotetments as o¢ and for the year anded Marsh 31,2024

Vi Mavement of NPAs

Kk B 1 2001

S Mt NEAD v Nes Arvaneer 456 1.50%
131 Meymnent pf NEAY {Gross}
@ nirg balance 30609 18985
b Addiong Juring the pear 22175 PR
¢ Reducticis during the year 126693 (12337}
ooz AELCHIONS 2UTING b
d. Clasing balance 340,91 386091
18] Mpveimentof Net NPAY
L....a. Cpetng balance 27T un 33932
& Addition éulias‘h‘& year 14652 JRRTY
% Redutions dseing e yesr ¢ Y0 BT 1250527
4. Slasing halanse 233.52 27750
(V) Movement of provisives for BPAs fexcluding provsinns on stamdasd asseta)
B Gpening halance 19819 §50.13
b Frovisis made darics the yes EAXAS .21
£ Wit o fbwrite-batk uf pxcers previsions (3613} {12128
4. Choxlag hatence 167.24. 108 19
S Dwersess Avante 1 in Crores

i [y ; HA Nk

VH) Difbalance Shevt SPVs spomsored which arv reqeised ta he consoBidated as prr sccounting Mo

44, Disclosure of Complaints

13} Summary wfarmation on compiants received by the Company frem custumers:

1 Particalary MIEchH 312028
Faraplaints recevied by the Company from its enstomers:

fitpuadis ol compiaints, [ complainty. Btmber of eetoplainie Kuiioes of Selncowasey decrenseds Nambior ot HER samber ol
iating o} g At the beginsing of - vty recelved 1bpmunber of Complamty perding eapplaints jending

the peat ‘ during e yRat consdaings ceceied over & e sad b i eyt 30 days

“ i Qrexions youy yoar
k1 *
Barch 44,2024
Dy aecsant of Credit Linjoed Subsrdy Scheme 2 72 £T% - -
On apcount ot RO! related 3 119 $3% B
On_iccount of Rehand relaied + ay i2% -
Dn asgnunt of Distascsement 3 61 o .
On actount of Farecinsure 8 6% 13%, : :
3 368 47% 5 -
: I3 787 5 -
Machi2f. 2088 ) i

O ancpund of Ceeitat Linked Sudsidy Scheme 4 17% 1% -
On seepunt of AL relared 1 e 539 -
{in arcount of Retvnd related ] #3 4%k .
00 ancpunt of Desdursement i £1 131% 3
O secount of Leght 3 71 Fi% 8 3
Dihers 2 Pak) 1A% 5 -
Total 16 718 15 3

“The abava snformation iz pravided as per MIS/reparts pennrated svariable for (ntaonat reporing putpose whick include rprtmin estiates and assunption The same fas heen tedied
upon by auditors.

4%,7. Branch of covenant: There ary 1o snstances of breach of covenants far Joan availed or debt spcurties puded,

4.8, Master Direction - Monjtociug of Frauds s NHFCs {Reserve Bank} Directfons, 2016: Thare were 4 ¢3es {(Previout Year
M} of Fraudy reported duriag e year whete amonst rvelved was £ 0 79 fitres (Frowons Teus Nz,

44.9. Master Direction - Reserve Raok of fadia { af § dard Assers} 1,202

Seaprithation ransactiogs ender 3PV Struclure sponsorsd by HFC® {tinCroves)

] 3 HIF 2023
35 M ot SV S o e 1iF ¢ e 3
2) Total amount ef securitisedt 355t as ger bunks ulthe SPVS saoperet 174995
31 Tota) amonnt of expasures retained by she HEC vowirds the HER 25 o the
13 D balancs shent expesures towasds Ciedit Enbanrements - -
1} Oa-halgnce sheer expasures towards {rrift fuhaacements BEFA 13827

|41 Amwust of sxposures to teeanindation ansactings sther tun MRE
13 Off-fatance theet exposures tosamds (g Enfuaniuents

{2} Exposute tb wwn seruritrratont

| b} Expusare to thicd pany Seeaatinas - -

$i} De-batanee shent puposures toward¢ Cendit Brbansemants
{103 Bxpociere ko pwh SArnIBASHOnS 1331 47 40
ib} Expesure to thtrd mirty securizations - -

“Tha disclosure i teras 4f Baster Direcian - Reserve BanX of Irstia {S2cuntoaton of Standacd Assery] Dorections, 2071 .8 net
appheabie pursuant w Para 4 of the Direation.

Note 45: Other Disclosures:

A Fugpares fus the grevinas yoar bave beea re-groufad f sectassified whirrever aecessary, th canfirm te eierurt year's classificanan, The details IGF eginuping ace a3 failtwes:

L Auipis Heid 7o ale 544
Tatanpbde asants peder deveiopstect Diker neni-financial asxets Bl
{ither pan-Hoaniial habdities Otker £azacial Lisildes E¥ 1]
inlerest Jucome Hat Gase O [ izt OF Fusanciad fnsimmments niber Cost Listepury 125F
iturest iocome Nt £i0 On Uezeragaition OF Firancia tnstruments Uater Fuiso 1148
trypal. an financial i Yet Gaz Oa Derecagnition O Fliang ot instrumenss Duder Amartized LoQLagony g6
Utker expenses - Bank Charges (es expanses - (s oxpenyes f37

R The company has usedt 2 nannhling saitware in whach the 29t trad {edit ing} dpature & enabied and povrarm tyroughout the year, Purthys, the company kds nat neted any instances of changes in the audit

trag feature duzing the year
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INDEPENDENT AUDFTOR’S REPORT

o the Members of [IF], Home Fipance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financiai Statements
Vipinion

We have audited the accom  aying consolidoted financial statements of [IFL Home Finanee Limited
ihereinafter referied 1o as e Holding Company™), its subsidiary {the [olding Company and its
subsidiary together referred wo as “the Group”) comprising of the consclidated Balance sheel as al March
21 2024, the consolidated Statement of Prolit and Loss, fncluding other comprehensive income, the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended. and notes 1o the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory intormation (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
tianen statements™)

In our opinion and to the b of our information and according to the explanations gtven to us and
based on the consideration of reports of ather auditors on separate financial stalements and on the other
(inancial information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consoiidated financial statements give the
information required by the Comnanies Act. 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required
and give ¢ true and fair view in o . _esg lly accepted in india,
of the consoliduted state of affairs of the (noup, as al March 31, 2024, their consolidated profit ineluding
other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes
in cquity for the year ended  that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of  consolidated tinanciai statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as speeified under secrion 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are [urther descr 1 in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” sectic  f our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics™ issued by @ Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are releva .0 our audit of (he financial slutements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thercunder, and we have {ulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
(hese raquitements and the Code of Ethics. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
slalements,

ey Awdit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
andit of the consolidated financiai statemonts {or the financial year ended March 31, 2024, These
mattess svere addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial siatements as a whole,
and ., forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
cach mauter below vur description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We i o deterniined the ma s deseribed below 10 be the key audit matters w be communicated in our
report. W have (ulfilled the  sponsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated nancial siatements section of our reporl, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly. our audit ce of procedures designed to respond to our asscssment
) LT . . ﬁ""“i‘a\-‘
of the risks of materta sonsolidated financial statements. The resulls of audétr,-f”* S
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srocedu en performed by us sad by other auditors of components not audited by one of joint auditors
PSR Bambibel & Associates 1LUP. as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to one of joint
auditors by the management, including those procedures performed 1o address the matters below.
provide the basis for ourawe  opinion on the aecompanying consolidated financial statements.

A Rey Aadit Matters for . ding Campany

: Kc‘; audit matiers How our audit addressed the key audit matéer

hnlmn ment of loans as at the bulanee shwl date (nu.[udmg determination of expected credit
1 losses)

: tus described in note 3(K) of the consolidated financial statements)

. The Lompan\ provide for  sabrment of its | Our audit procedures included the foflowing:
logns wsing  the bBapected  Credit Loss
{"ECL ymedel ECLinvel  an estimation |« Considered the Company's accounting policies

ot probahility weighted Joss on {inancial for impanment of loans and assessed compliance
assets over their fife, considering reasonable ol the policies with Ind AS 119 Financial
und  supportable nforma 1 about past lnstruments and the pgovemance framework
events, current conditions, and forecasts of approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to
future econontie eondilions and other factors applicable Reserve Bank of I[ndia guidelines,
which could impact the credit quality ol the t“the RBI Guidelines™.
Company’s loans.
Evaluated the reasonablencss of the management
[n the process, a significant degree of estimates by understanding the process of ECL
judgement has heen applied by the estimation and related assumptions, Tested the
management {or: internal controls around cxtraction. validation
a) Defining qualitative/ quantitative lactors and computation of the input data used in such
for “signitieant increase in credit risk’ estimation.
CSICR™MY and dedault’.
by Grouping ot borrov (refail loan | o Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
porifolio) hased on nogeneily for their past-duc status to check conmipliance with
catimating probabilin 7 defaull loss requirement of Ind AS 109. l'ested a sample of
given default and exposure at default ; performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any
) Determining effect ol less frequent past SICR or loss indicators were preqem requiring
cvents o future probability of default. them to be classificd under slage 2 (i.c. default in
d) Determining maero-  nomic  factors repayment is within the range o 31 to 90 days) or
rpacting credit quality of loans. stape or 3 (i.e. the delaull in repayment is more
than 90 d&}-b}‘ i
In view of the bigh degree of management’s |« Tegted 1he arithmetical accuracy of computation
judgement involved in estimation of ECL. of ECL provision performed by the Company.,
impairment ol foans as at the balance shegt
date (including expected credit fosse) is s Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included in
key audit matter. twe consolidated fnancial statemenis with the

relevant requirenents of Ind AS 107 and 109,

B. key Audit Matter for subsidiary company — {[HFL Sales Limited — No key audit matters reported
by e subsidiary company's auditor for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Oriner inforpmiion

The olding Lumpam s Board of Dieclors is responsible for the other information. The othu e
inforimation tT ition included in the Dhrector report, bur does not mc.ludu}jh;’ 5, A:g':;\'ﬁ,-,\
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consalidated financial statements and our auditor's reporl thereon.

Chy opinion on the consolidated financial statements Jdoes not cover the other information and we do

Suel s e s form of aasurance eonchision thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Tmancial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financia! statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. I©  1sed on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstalement of this other it mation, we are required (o report that fact, We have nothing to report in

this resard.
Respoensibilities of Manag  :nt for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Folding Company’s e | of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consulidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and [lair view
af the consalidated  fine  al position, consolidated  financial  performance  including  other
comprehensive income, cor dated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity ol the
{rroup i accordance with + accounting pringiptes generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (nd AS) specitied under section 133 of the Act read with the Companics (Indian
Accounting, Standards) Rulcs, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible tor maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for
preventing and detecting - ds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making  Igments and cstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
impiementation and mainter ¢ of adeyuiate internal financial controls. that were operating effectivety
for ensuring the accuracy & ompleteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolic | financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstaicment, Wl © Jue to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
peeparation of the consalid — d financial statements by e Directars of the Holding Company, as
aloresaid.
[n preparng the consolidated financial statements. the respeetive Board of Bireetors of the companies
inclucled in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies 1o continue
as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated Lo going concern and using the going
ancern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 10 cease
operations. of Lias no realistic altematis ¢ but 1o do so.

Those respective Board of | :ctors of the companies included in the Group are alsa responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of thelr respective companies.

s 1 diter's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements
a5 2 whole arc free from material misstatenient, whether duc 1o fraud or crror. and to issue an avditor’s
report Jhat ncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a puarantee
(hat an audit comducted b accurdance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when i
svists, Misstatements can arise from [raud or error and vre considered material if, individually or in the
apareraie, they could rason ¥ be cxpected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the
(arsis ot these consoludated Hnancial statements.

As part of an audil in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

projessional skeptieism throughout the audit. We also:
y . . i eial stenen DA,
« ldentify and asscss the risks ent of the consolidated [inancial mdmmqﬁ‘,,_{,},\;158\1
- (..' B - ! 'W__‘Q‘ Vs
f!-‘_): {z' ;.l’,;‘
R

e
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s hether due to fraud o ror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of ot detecting a mate misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
arrer. as frand may e e coblusion. forgery. Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal congrol,

s Obuain an understanding of internal control relevant fo the audit in ordey to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circemsiances. Under section {43{3)(:) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 1olding Company has adequote mnternal
financial contrals with reference Lo financial statements in place and the opernting cffeetiveness of
such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

< Cenclude on the appro steness of management’s vuse of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
vr conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
coteern, Fowe wonelude e muterial ancertainly eadsts, we are required Lo draw allention in our
auditor’s seport (o the laied disclasures in the consolidated financial statements ar, if such
disclosures are inadequ  to modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
ablained up to the date  Hur auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to ceasc to conti @ as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall pr  atation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclost . and whether the conseclidated financial statements represent the
underlying transaction:  d cvents in a inanner that achieves fair presentation,

»  Obtain sufficient appr¢  ate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
apinion an the conselic  d lnancial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision
et perfarmance of che audit of the financial staiements of such entities included in the
consolidaled financial statements of which we are the independent auditars, For the other entitics
included in the consolt d financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain sulely responsible for our audit opinion.

W o mnieate witl those chiarged with governance ol the Holding Company and such other entities
inciuded in the consolidated financial staements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
< ieny other matters, the pranned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit (indings, including

L0 siesifiann defich neies v internal controt that we identify during our audit,

Woe al.o provige those charsed with governance with a statement that sve have complicd with relevant
cthicat equiranenis recarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and other
maticrs thal may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
silpuards.
From the matters communic  d with those charged with governance, we determine those maiters that
were ol mast significance in the audit of the enisolidated financial statements for the linancial year
Linded March 31, 2024 and arc therefore the key audit matiers. We describe these matters in vur auditor’s
report unless law or repulati  precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
e tuuen e, we deterniine that a matter should not be communicated in our report hecause the
ven e consegquences of doing so would reasonably be expected Lo outweigh the public interest benetits

of sueh comnunicalion,

Other Matter f’c'/g?é—:‘%&t
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roswconipunying consolidated fimancial statentents includes the audited {inancial statements and other
tinancial information, in respect of 1 subsidiary, whose financial statements include total assets of
2a.40.50 Cr as ar March 31, 2024, total revenues ol Rs.49.69 Cr, total net profit/loss) afler tax of
o 0 480 Or rots censpnchensive comes Hoss) ol Rs.00.36) Cr. for the vear ended March 31, 2024,
and act cash ooty i lorast ol Re 3 a2 O foe dhe r car ended March 310 20240 as considered in the
consolidated lnancial statements which have been audiled by one of the joint auditors of the Company
fe. Suresh Surana & Assoctates LLEP and whose report on the financial staterments of this entily have
heen lmished to other Joint auditors ie. 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP by the Management and their
apinion o the vonsulidated financial statements in so far as il relates o the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this subsidiary is bascd solefy on the reports of one of the joint auditors i.c. Suresh
Surang & Associates LLE.

Our opinion on the consolidi  financial statements is not modtified in respeet of the above matter with
respeet o our reliance on the report of the above auditor.

The comparative Tinancial intormation of the Group tor the corresponding year ended March 31, 2023,
included in the consolidated financial ciaterients, were awdited by one of the joint auditors i.e. Suresh
Surana & Associates LLP and onc of the predecessor auditors Le. M. P. Chitale & Co. who expressed
an unmodified opinion on thosc consolidated financial informatior on April 24, 2023,

Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements

. Asreqt dbytheC i ‘Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by thet tral
Government of [ndia in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of - rt of the other joint auditors on separate financial statements and the
other financiul information of the subsidiary company, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other
Matter” paragraph. we g in the *Amnexure 17 a statement on the matters speeificd in paragraph
3 xxndy of the Order.

T As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
lhe nther joint auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiarv. as noted in the ‘other matter” paragroph. we report. to the extent applicable, that:

(2) Welthe other joint auditors whose report we have relied upon funve sought and oiamed sit the

information and explanations which to the hest of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of vur acudit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements,

(b} i vur npinion, proper books of nceonnt as reguired by faw relating to preperation of the aforesaid
cosolidation of the fin ial statements have been kept so [ar as it appears from our examination
of those books and repons of the other joint audilors,

foy e ¢ msolidated Balance Sheet. the Consolidated Statoment of Profit and Loss including the
Sraternent of Other Comprchensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Iquity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
hooks of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

sfateinenis:

(dy In our opinion, the aforesawd consotidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ol the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accoumting
Standurds) Rules, 2015, as amerded.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the dircetors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2024 tab~ ~ =anned b tha Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the,,.mmmq%

reports of the statutory inted under Section 139 of the Act. of its subsidighyo: ‘ S'-S:C\J:q
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conipany, o of the directors of the Group’s compantes. is disqualibcd as on March 31 240124
irom being appobiied as a director i tenns of Seetion 164 (2) of the Act;

Y Wil respeet to the adequaey of the internal financial controls with referenee 1o consolidated
financial sialenenss ol 2 Holding Company and ifs subsidiary company, incorporated in india,
1 the operating cffectiveness of such controls, refor to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to
this report;

{2} Inourepinion and based on the consideration ol reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiary
the manaperial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid / provided by the
Holding Company incorporated b India to thenr directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The pravisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
of the Act arc not upplicable to the its substdiary incorporated in India for the year ended March
312024

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report 11 accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 10 the best of
our information and accerding to the explanations given to us and based on the considcration of
the report ol the other auditors on separate financial statcinents as also the uther financial
information of the subsidiary as noted in the *Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The cansolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position ol the Group in its consolidated [inancial statements —
Refcr Note 35 o the consolidated financial] statements;

li,  Provision has been made in the consolidated nancial statements, as required under the
applicabic law or accounting standards, for material foresceable losses, if any. on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 5 to the consolidated financial
tafemenis inrespect of such items as it relates to the Group;

iit.  Fhere has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
L-ducation and Protection Fund by the [Jolding Company, its subsidiary incorporated in
india during the year ended March 31, 2024,

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are
companics incorporated in India whose financial statements have been andited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary reapecrively that, to
e puesl ol s kaowtedge and beliefl other than as disctosed in the note 38(i) to the
consobidated iinapcial sarements nao Dowas havie been advanced or loaned or invested
{ethior from borrowed (unds or share premivm or any othor sources or kind ol funds) by
ihe Folding Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other persons or cofities,
fnchiding foreinn entities (Cintermediaries”™)., with the understanding, whether recorded in
wailing o nthenvise, that the Intermediary sitall. whether, directly or indirectly lend or
frvest in other persons or cntitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of
the respeetive . ding Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beoeficiaries™) or
provide any guaraniee, sceurity or the fike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries;

H1The respective managements ol the llolding Company and its subsidiary which are
sonanies neorporated i lndia whose tinancial statements lave been audited under the
Aol Nave represanled woous sud the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, 1
R best of s knowledge and beliel. other than as disclosed in the note 38(i) to the
sonsulidated Vnancial statements, uo funds have been received by the respective Hloiding
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For S.R. Batliboi & Assoc: s LLP

the Holding Company or auy of such subsidiary challl whether, divectly or indirectly, {end
or invest in oth  persons or entities identified in uny manner whatsoever by or on behaif
ot th Fumding Party U e Beneliciaries™) or proviede any gaarantec, sovurity o the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

e} Based onthe  dit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary
which are comy  ies corporated in [ndin whose financial statemoents have been audited
under tire Act. nothing has come to ouwr or other auditoi’s notice that has caused us or the
other guditors o believe that the vepresentations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

The interim dividend declared and paid during the yvear by the Holding Company and uniil
the date of the respective audit reports of such Holding Company 15 in aceordance with
seetion 173 of the Act.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the subsidiary.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Group has used accounting
software for mi aining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) faci and the same has operated throughout the yecar for all relevant
transactions re¢  led in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Suresh Surana & Associales LLP

Chantered Aecountants Chartered Accountanis
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ANNEYXURE | TG THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF VN DATE ONTHE
{OMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL HOME FINANCE LIMITED

3T

e b Home Finance Lie o

pxxdy Qraalificanons or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Compasnies (Auditors Report)
Order (CAROY reponts ol the companies included n the consolidated financial statements are:

S No | Name CIN Holding Clause number
company/ of the CARQ
subsidiary report which is

qualified or is
_ adverse
f HFL Home | U63993MIEZ006PL.C166473 Holding (1i}¥c)
| Finance I.imited i Company
2 [ L Sales | 1J74999MH2021PLC368361 Subsidiary vii {a)
| Eimited Conipany
For S.R. Batliboi & Assoei s LLFP For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chattered Accountants Chartered Arconmtants
ICAL Firm registration oo~ er: 1010, /L0004 IC: itration number: 121750W/W100010
; #
! ! f
f
prer Amil Kabra R:
Pariner Pa
slembership No. 094533 N L e Membershyp No. 102366
FDIN- 24094533 BKEXFI2IT93 e UDIN: 24102306BKCGAQI
Place: Mumbai Mlace: Mumbai

Date: & Mav 2024 Date: 6 May 2024
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ANNEXURE TO THE II EPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HFL HOME FINANCE LIMTED

e o the dateensd Financiaf Congrais onder { Lnse (0 of Bub-section 3 of Seciion 843 of the
Lenpanies Ack 2013 (the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated fmancial statements of HIFL. Home Financc Limited
{hereinafter referred 10 as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we
have zudited the intemal i cial controls with refercnce to consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company wind s subsidisny (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as
“the Clrowp o which are eor mies fucorpeortted nobnding as ol hat date,

Munugement’s Responsibility (or Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board ol Directors of the companies included my the Group, which are companies
meorporated in india, are responsible {or establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the nternal contre! over fnancial roporting eriteria wstablished by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Awdit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Re  ting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
iinancial controls Lthat were operating eflectively for ensuring the orderly and efticient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its asscts, the
prevention and detection of  1ds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparationo  liable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsihility 13 10 express an opinion on the Holding Company's intemal financial controls with
reference to consolidated fir  ial siatetnents bascd on vur andil. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Ciuidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143{10} of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audi internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI Those Standards and
e s Cridanee Note reauine that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perforn the audit to
S remsonatne assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial stall  :ats was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invobes performing procedures W obiain audit evidence sbout the adequiey of the internal
finanecial controds with reference to conselidaied Nnancial statements and their operaiing offectiveness.
Chr audit of intesnal financial contrals with reference (o consolidated financial statements ineluded
abtaining an usderstanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidaled financial
Jatemonis, assessing the rish that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
aperating eflectiveness of internal contra) based on the assessed risk. e proecdures selecied depend
an the avditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the visks of malerial misstatement ol the
1Inancial statements, whether due to fraud or arror,

Ve betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of iheir reports referred o in the Other Matlers paragraph below, is sufficient and
approprisie o pronade o Lty for cur sudit eninien on the intemal financial controls with reference to

consolidated naneiat stalements.
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Wieaning of lnternul Financial Controls With Heference to Consolidated Financial Staiements

A zompany's interul {inancial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed o provide reasonahle asswrance repacding the reliabiliny of financiad reporting and the
secparadion of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepted
ageounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated (inancial
statements cludes those palicies and procedures that { 1) perlain to the maintenance of records that, in
¢ocsauahle detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
cornriae Y proov e verwnable assurance that ransactions are recorded as nccessary o permit
nreparetion of financial stal cmts in accordance with woneratly aveepted accounting principles, and
that receipls and eapenditures of the company arc being made oaly in accordance with authorisations
of management and direc of the company: and (3} provide rcasonable assurance rcparding
prevention or tmely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that conld have ¢ makerial effect on the financial statements,

1nherceat Limitations of (nfernal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Siatenients

Because of the inherent limnitations of internal {inancial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper manageinent override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evatuation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk tha e intenal financial controls with reference to isolidated financial
statements may become inadequalte becanse of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

fn our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in [ndia, have, maintained in ail maierial
respects. adequate intemal  ncial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and
such internal financial con s with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31.2024, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Hoiding Company considering the essential components of internal controf stated in
the Guidance Note issued b e ICAL
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UFL LIO®E FINAMCE LIMITED
FTATEMENT OF CHANGES (N EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENCED MARCH 31, 2024
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